
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING June 1, 2017 • Page 1 of 6 

MEETING OF THE 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 

THURSDAY, JUNE 1, 2017 

3:00 P.M. 

AGENDA 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for Thursday,
June 1, 2017.

2. Receive an update on the Strategic Investment Zone incentive program.

3. Discuss potential amendments to Chapter 39 of the Code of Ordinance, “Wreckers”.

4. Receive an update on downtown redevelopment initiatives, including the redevelopment of the
Hawn and Arcadia Theater properties.

Executive Session: Pursuant to Section 551.087 of the Government Code, the City Council may
meet in executive session to discuss either commercial or financial information that the City has
received from a business prospect that the City wishes to locate, stay or expand within the City
limits and with which the City is conducting economic development negotiations, or to deliberate
the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect the public discussion of which
would adversely affect ongoing economic development negotiations.

5. Receive an update on and discuss right-of-way acquisition for the following projects:
 Research Parkway
 Bird Creek Interceptor and Shallow Ford Lift Station
 Hogan Road
 Prairie View West
 Outer Loop Phase 3B
 Santa Fe Plaza
 MLK Festival Fields



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING June 1, 2017 • Page 2 of 6 

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – 
The City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or 
value of real property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a 
detrimental effect on negotiations with a third party. 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING June 1, 2017 • Page 3 of 6 

5:00 P.M. 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

I. CALL TO ORDER
1. Invocation

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting. 
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting. Please limit comments to three 
minutes. No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council. 

III. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS

3. Girl Scout Gold Award Day June 10, 2017 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be removed 
from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered separately. 

4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate
resolutions and ordinances for each of the following:

Minutes

(A) May 18, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting

Contracts, Leases, & Bids 

(B) 2017-8656-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 156 membrane
replacement modules and necessary installation parts from Pall Advanced Separations
Systems of Cortland, NY, in the amount of $262,725.60.

(C) 2017-8657-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 1272 plastic
96-gallon garbage and recycling containers from Toter, Inc., of Statesville, NC, in the
amount of $59,406.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING June 1, 2017 • Page 4 of 6 

(D) 2017-8658-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of an easement
necessary for the construction of the Charter Oak Water Line and authorizing closing
costs associated with the purchase, in an estimated amount of $5,500.

(E) 2017-8659-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of an easement
necessary for the construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor project and authorizing
closing costs and temporary fencing costs associated with the purchase, in the estimated
amount of $24,335.

(F) 2017-8660-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property
necessary for the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and authorizing
closing costs and relocation benefits associated with the purchase in an estimated
amount of $265,000.

(G) 2017-8661-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two vehicles in
the amount of $85,485 from Randall Reed’s Prestige Ford of Garland:

(1) One ¾-Ton Ford F250 Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup/ Bed Delete with Utility
Body in the amount of $42,600, and

(2) One 1-Ton Ford F350 Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body
in the amount of $42,885.

(H) 2017-8662-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with
Quality W Contractors, LLC of Waco, in the amount of $157,880 for the construction of a
new trail connecting Wyndham Hill Park to the South Temple Community Park Trail.

(I) 2017-8663-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with
Double T Construction, Inc. of Belton, in the amount of $57,959 for the construction of an
Environmental Programs Suite within the Public Works Building.

(J) 2017-8664-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract amendment to
Kasberg, Patrick, & Associates, LP, in the amount of $40,300 for expanded scope of
services at the Martin Luther King Festival Fields.

(K) 2017-8665-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an assignment of an
Unimproved Property Contract from Kiella Land Investments, Ltd. to the City of Temple,
in an estimated amount of $120,000 for the purchase of property located within the
Southern Draw subdivision in Temple.

(L) 2017-8666-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a change order to the Construction
Manager-at-Risk contract with RM Rodriguez Construction, LP, of Temple in the amount
of $57,226.10 for repairs to the exterior walls of the Wilson Recreation Center.

(M) 2017-8667-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing contract amendment #1 to the
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick and Associates, LP, in the amount
not to exceed $18,600 for construction administration and on-site representation required
to construct the Membrane Water Treatment Facility Reverse Filtration Header
Replacement Project.

(N) 2017-8668-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services
agreement with Clark & Fuller, PLLC, of Temple in an amount not to exceed
$1,228,090.42 to design the Knob Creek Trunk Sewer Improvements.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING June 1, 2017 • Page 5 of 6 

(O) 2017-8669-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a services agreement with
International Security Agency of McAllen through September 30, 2018, in the estimated
annual amount of $33,600 for the provision of security guard services at the Temple
Public Library.

(P) 2017-8670-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a Retail Sales Interlocal Agreement
with Texas General Land Office for the purchase of electricity at $0.03410 per kWh for a
five year term commencing for meter reads after April 30, 2019.

(Q) 2017-8671-R: Consider a resolution authorizing entering into to an Interlocal Agreement
with the Belton Independent School District to provide school locations for after school
latchkey programming.

Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 

(R) 2017-4843: SECOND READING - Z-FY-17-25: Consider adopting an ordinance
authorizing a rezoning for: (1) 2.497 +/- acres from AG district to GR district; (2) 67.455
+/- acres from PD-MF-1, MF-2, and AG districts to SF-3 district; and (3) 6.606 +/- acres
from PD-MF-1 district to SFA-3, for a total rezoning of 76.558 +/-acres, situated in the
Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract No. 14, Bell County, Texas, generally located east of
South Martin Luther King Jr Drive and generally south and west of Case Road.

(S) 2017-4844: SECOND READING - Z-FY-17-26: Consider adopting an ordinance
authorizing a rezoning and Site Development Plan from Agricultural, Light Industrial,
Single Family Three and Office Two zoning districts to Planned Development General
Retail with a conditional use permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-site
consumption, where the sale of alcohol may be 75% or more of the total revenue, and
Planned Development Single Family Three on 185.634 acres of Outblocks 2075-A, 2050-
D, 2050-A, 2068-A, 2067-A, 2074-A situated in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract
No. 17, Bell County, Texas, located at Westfield Boulevard and State Highway 36.

Misc. 

(T) 2017-8672-R: Consider adopting a resolution appointing election judge(s) and setting
their compensation for the City’s Special election to be held on Saturday, June 24, 2017.

(U) 2017-8673-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing continued utilization of the JP
Morgan Chase Bank N.A. commercial card program through August 31, 2019, as
procured by the City of Fort Worth.

(V) 2017-8674-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal
year 2016-2017.

V. REGULAR AGENDA

RESOLUTIONS 

5. 2017-8675-R: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code §
2206.053 finding that one property situated in the Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 64, and
one property in the J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract No. 259 and H. Millard Survey, Abstract No.
552, Bell County, Texas, are necessary for the proposed expansion of Old Howard Road from
Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road from
Old Howard Road to IH-35 and authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn the property.



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING June 1, 2017 • Page 6 of 6 

6. 2017-8676-R: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code §
2206.053 finding that 0.517 acre in fee simple and 0.494-acre and 0.938-acre permanent
easements situated in the Stephen Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bell County, Texas are
necessary for the construction of the Shallow Ford Lift Station and Birdcreek Interceptor Phase
5 wastewater line and authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn the property.

7. 2017-8677-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing approval of a dual street name of
South 6th Street/Little Joe Drive on a section of South 6th Street between East Central Avenue
and East Avenue E in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas and more particularly shown as
Exhibit A.

8. 2017-8678-R: Consider adopting a resolution to accept the 2017 Bend Of The River Botanic
Garden Master Plan prepared by SWA of Houston.

ORDINANCES – FIRST READING/PUBLIC HEARING 

9. 2017-4845: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING. Consider adopting an ordinance
amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 37, “Traffic,” to include a general update of the
Chapter and changes to the two-hour parking regulations.

10. 2017-4846: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING. Consider adopting an ordinance amending
Chapter 39 of the Code of Ordinances, “Wreckers.”

11. 2017-4847: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-27: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to General Retail zoning district
on 2.485 +/- acres, situated in the George W. Lindsey, Abstract No. 513, located at 40 Morgan's
Point Road.

12. 2017-4848: FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-28: Consider adopting an
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Single Family Two zoning
district of 46.766 acres and Neighborhood Services zoning district of 3.497acres out of 50.263
+/- acres, situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692 and part of that certain
157.93 acre tract, Bell County, Texas, located at 5900 South 31st Street.

BOARD APPOINTMENT 

13. 2017-8679-R: Consider adopting a resolution appointing one councilmember to the Hill Country
Transit District Board.

14. 2017-8680-R: Consider adopting a resolution appointing one alternate member to the Bell
County Public Health District Board of Directors.

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session whenever permitted by the 
Texas Open Meetings Act. 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place 
at 8:35 AM, on Friday, May 26, 2017. 

_________________________ 
City Secretary, TRMC 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

06/01/17 
Item #4(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 

Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary  

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 

(A) May 18, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve minutes as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
May 18, 2017 Special and Regular Meeting 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

06/01/17 
Item #4(B) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT. /DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Damon B. Boniface, Utility Director 

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 156 membrane 
replacement modules and necessary installation parts from Pall Advanced Separations Systems of 
Cortland, NY, in the amount of $262,725.60. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City of Temple water treatment plant is comprised of both Conventional & 
Membrane treatment facilities used to provide potable water to over 70,000 residents, including several 
wholesale customers. The membrane treatment train consists of over eight hundred microfiltration 
membrane modules for the use of delivering high quality potable water that exceeds the U.S. EPA 
drinking water standards. As part of the strategic replacement program schedule, staff is pursuing 
replacement of two racks of original modules (one hundred fifty-six) this year with new modules. The 
original membrane modules have surpassed their useful life expectancy of 10 years.  

At the time the membrane facility was built in 2002-2004, Pall Corporation’s parts and equipment were 
originally installed resulting in specialized equipment on site. At this time, replacement for some of 
these parts can only be supplied by the original vendor, Pall Corporation. Accordingly, this purchase is 
being recommended as a single source purchase per LGC §252.022. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available for the purchase of the membrane replacement modules and 
necessary installation parts from Pall Advanced Separation Systems in the amount of $262,725.60 in 
account 520-5100-535-6310, project # 101419, as follows: 

Project Budget  $   504,000 
Encumbered/Committed to Date   (157,919) 

Pall Advanced Separations Systems   (262,726) 
Remaining Funds Available  $   83,355 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8656-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 156 MEMBRANE REPLACEMENT 
MODULES AND NECESSARY INSTALLATION PARTS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$262,725.60, FROM PALL ADVANCED SEPARATIONS SYSTEMS OF 
CORTLAND, NEW YORK; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 Whereas, the City of Temple’s water treatment plant is comprised of both Conventional 
& Membrane treatment facilities used to provide potable water to over 70,000 residents, 
including several wholesale customers; 

Whereas, the membrane treatment train consists of over eight hundred microfiltration 
membrane modules for the use and delivery of high quality potable water that exceeds the US 
EPA drinking water standards - the original membrane modules have surpassed their useful life 
expectancy (10 years); 

Whereas, as part of the strategic replacement program schedule, Staff recommends 
replacement of two racks of original modules (156) this year with new modules; 

Whereas, at the time the membrane facility was built in 2002-2004, Pall Corporation’s 
parts and equipment were originally installed, resulting in specialized equipment on site – 
currently, replacement for some of these parts can only be supplied by the original vendor, Pall 
Corporation and therefore Staff recommends this purchase as a single source purchase per Local 
Government Code §252.022; 

Whereas, funding for this purchase is available in Account No. 520-5100-535-6310, 
Project No. 101419; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a purchase agreement for the purchase of 
156 spare membrane replacement modules and necessary installation parts in the amount of 
$262,725.60, from Pall Advanced Systems of Cortland, New York.  



2 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lacy Borgeson Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

06/01/17 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Nicole Torralva, Public Works Director 
Lisa Sebek, Solid Waste Services Director    

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 1272 plastic 96-
gallon garbage and recycling containers from Toter, Inc., of Statesville, NC, in the amount of $59,406.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description.

ITEM SUMMARY: Each year the Solid Waste Division purchases new 96-gallon residential refuse 
containers both for new service and for regular container replacement, for both garbage and recycling 
services.  This container purchase will provide for routine growth and normal container replacement. 
The recommended purchase is for 636 recycling containers with a hot stamp recycling symbol at a cost 
of $45.65 per container, and 636 garbage containers at a cost of $45.40 per container, plus $1,498.20 
for freight to Temple.  The pricing is comparable to pricing obtained in recent years, and staff believes 
this to be a good value. 

Toter, Inc. has been awarded National IPA Contract No. 120576-01 as awarded by the City of Tucson 
on January 31, 2013.  Contracts awarded through National IPA have been competitively procured and 
meet the statutory procurements requirements for Texas municipalities.  Per the terms of the National 
IPA contract, pricing is evaluated every three months for price adjustments based on current commodity 
prices.    

The City has done business with Toter, Inc. and finds them to be a responsible vendor. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding has been appropriated in the FY 2017 Operating Budget in the account as 
shown below: 

Description Account # Budget 
Proposed 

Expenditure 

96 Gallon 
Carts 

110-2330-540-2211 $59,406 $59,406 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2017-8657-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF 1,272 PLASTIC 96-GALLON 
GARBAGE AND RECYCLING CONTAINERS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$59,406, FROM TOTER, INC. OF STATESVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
  
 Whereas, each year, the Solid Waste Division purchases new 96-gallon residential refuse 
containers both for new service and regular container replacement, for both garbage and recycling 
services - this purchase will provide for routine growth and normal container replacement; 
 
 Whereas, the recommended purchase is for 636 recycling containers with a hot stamp 
recycling symbol at a cost of $45.65 per container, and the purchase of 636 garbage containers at a 
cost of $45.40 per container, plus $1,498.20 for freight - Staff believes this to be a good cost per 
container and recommends Council authorize this purchase; 
 
 Whereas, Toter, Inc. has been awarded National IPA Contract No. 120576-01 by the City 
of Tucson on January 31, 2013 - contracts awarded through National IPA have been competitively 
procured and meet the statutory procurements requirements for Texas municipalities; 
  
 Whereas, the City has done business with Toter, Inc. in the past and finds it to be a 
responsible vendor – this purchase will be made utilizing a National IPA Cooperative Purchasing 
contract which satisfies the competitive bid requirements; 
 

Whereas, funding for this purchase is available in Account No. 110-2330-540-2211; and 
 

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of 1,272 plastic 96-gallon garbage and 
recycling containers in the amount of $59,406, from Toter, Inc., of Statesville, North Carolina, utilizing 
the National IPA Cooperative Contract. 
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1  
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of an easement 
necessary for the construction of the Charter Oak Water Line and authorizing closing costs associated 
with the purchase, in an estimated amount of $5,500.  
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is installing a new transmission water line in southwest Temple, roughly 
parallel to Charter Oak Drive. The project is necessary to replace deteriorating existing facilities and 
improve service to properties along the route. Phase One of the project is currently under construction 
and required the acquisition of easements from four property owners.   
 
The design of Phase Two requires the acquisition of easements for water lines across 30 properties 
owned by 23 different property owners. Appraisals have been completed for eighteen of the properties, 
and offers based on the appraisals have been made to most of the property owners. The City has 
acquired or reached an agreement to acquire eighteen of the needed easements. Negotiations continue 
for the remaining easements.    
 
Staff is now seeking authorization to purchase one easement needed for the construction of the Charter 
Oak Water Line and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase, in an estimated amount of 
$5,500.  
 
The address and Bell County Appraisal District ID Number of the property is Riverside Road, Bell 
County Rural—Bell CAD ID #33507 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available for the purchase of an easement necessary for the construction 
of the Charter Oak Water Line in an estimated amount of $5,500 in account 520-5900-535-6110, project 
#100608.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8658-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE EASEMENT 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE CHARTER OAK 
WATER LINE; AUTHORIZING CLOSING COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
PURCHASE IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $5,500; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is installing a new transmission water line in southwest Temple, 
roughly parallel to Charter Oak Drive that is necessary to replace deteriorating existing facilities 
and improve service to properties along the route - Phase One of the project is currently under 
construction and required the acquisition of easements from four property owners;   
 

Whereas, the design of Phase Two requires the acquisition of easements for water lines 
across 30 properties owned by 23 different property owners - appraisals have been completed for 
eighteen of the properties, and offers have been made to most of the property owners, based on 
the appraisals; 

 
Whereas, the City has acquired or reached an agreement to acquire eighteen of the 

needed easements and negotiations continue for the remaining easements;    
 

Whereas, Staff requests Council authorize the purchase of one easement on Riverside 
Road, which is needed for the construction of the Charter Oak Water Line and authorize closing 
costs associated with the purchase, in an estimated amount of $5,500; 
 
 Whereas, funding is available for the purchase of one easement in Account No. 520-
5900-535-6110, Project No. 101608; and  
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of one easement on Riverside Road 
which is necessary for the construction of the Charter Oak Water Line and authorizes closing costs 
associated with the purchase, in an estimated amount of $5,500. 
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for 
this purchase. 
 
 



2 
 

 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

06/01/17 
Item #4(E) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of an easement 
necessary for the construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor project and authorizing closing costs and 
temporary fencing costs associated with the purchase, in the estimated amount of $24,335.  

Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 

ITEM SUMMARY: The City is currently in the design phase for Phase 5 of the proposed Bird Creek 
Interceptor project. The design requires the acquisition of easements for wastewater utilities and 
temporary construction easements from two property owners situated along Shallow Ford Road. 
Appraisals were performed on the properties and offers were presented to the property owners in 
February and March 2017. After negotiations with one property owner, Staff has reached a settlement 
agreement. Staff is asking for authorization to purchase of an easement necessary for the construction 
of the Bird Creek Interceptor project and authorizing closing costs and temporary fencing costs 
associated with the purchase, in the estimated amount of $24,335. 

The address and Bell County Appraisal District ID Number of the property is 5739 Shallow Ford Road—
Bell CAD ID #24775. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available for the purchase of an easement necessary for the construction 
of the Bird Creek Interceptor project in an estimated amount of $24,335 in account 520-5900-535-6110, 
project #101213. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8659-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE EASEMENT 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE BIRD CREEK 
INTERCEPTOR PROJECT; AUTHORIZING CLOSING COSTS  AND 
TEMPORARY FENCING COSTS IN THE ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF 
$24,335; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 Whereas, the City is currently in the design phase for Phase 5 of the proposed Bird Creek 
Interceptor project which requires the acquisition of easements for wastewater utilities and 
temporary construction easements from two property owners situated along Shallow Ford Road; 

Whereas, appraisals were performed on the properties and offers were presented to the 
owners in February and March, 2017 – after negotiations, Staff was able to reach an agreement 
with one property owner; 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of one easement located at 
5739 Shallow Ford Road which is necessary for the construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor 
Project, authorize closing costs and temporary fencing costs associated with the purchase in the 
estimated amount of $24,335; 

Whereas, funding for the purchase of this easement is appropriated in Account No. 520-
5900-535-6110, Project No. 101213; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of one easement located at 5739 
Shallow Ford Road, authorizes closing costs and temporary fencing costs associated with the 
purchase, in an amount not to exceed $24,335, which is necessary for the construction of the 
Bird Creek Interceptor project. 

 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for 
the purchase of the property. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 

 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(F) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property 
necessary for the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and authorizing closing costs 
and relocation benefits associated with the purchase in an estimated amount of $265,000. 
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Old Howard 
Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road 
from Old Howard Road to IH-35, including a realigned intersection at Pegasus Drive. The design 
requires the acquisition of right-of-way from 21 different property owners. Appraisals have been 
performed on all of the parcels.  Offers have been made to several of the property owners based upon 
those appraisals, and the remaining offers will be presented in the coming weeks.  For those properties 
that will require relocation, the City’s consultant is preparing the necessary relocation studies.  
 
The City has acquired nine rights of way and has reached agreements with four additional property 
owners. Two properties will require the use of eminent domain. Staff is actively negotiating with each 
of the remaining property owners and hopes to reach agreements with each of them this fiscal year. At 
this time, Staff is asking for authorization to purchase one property, pay closing costs, and relocation 
benefits in an estimated amount of $265,000. 
 
The address and Bell County Appraisal District ID Numbers of the property is 4805 Mouser Road, Bell 
CAD ID #56491 and 56492. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is available for the purchase of 4805 Mouser Road, necessary for the 
expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road, in an estimated amount of $265,000 in account 
795-9800-531-6881, project #101004. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8660-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF ONE PROPERTY 
NECESSARY FOR THE EXPANSION OF OLD HOWARD ROAD AND 
MOORES MILL ROAD; AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF CLOSING 
COSTS AND RELOCATION BENEFITS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
PURCHASE IN AN ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $265,000; AND PROVIDING 
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Old 
Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of 
Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35, including a realigned intersection at 
Pegasus Drive and the design requires the acquisition of rights of way from 21 different property 
owners; 
 

Whereas, appraisals have been performed on all of the parcels, and offers have been 
made to several of the property owners based upon those appraisals with the remaining offers to 
be presented in the coming weeks; 
 

Whereas, for those properties that will require relocation, the City’s consultant is 
preparing the necessary relocation studies; 
 

Whereas, the City has acquired nine rights of way and has reached agreements with four 
additional property owners and two properties will require the use of eminent domain; 

 
Whereas, Staff is actively negotiating with each of the remaining property owners and 

hopes to reach agreements with each of them this fiscal year; 
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of 4805 Mouser Road and 
authorize the payment of closing costs and relocation benefits, in an estimated amount of 
$265,000; 
 
 Whereas, funding for the purchase of 4805 Mouser Road is available in Account No. 
795-9800-531-6881, Project No. 101004; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  



2 
 

 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of 4805 Mouser Road, which is 
necessary for the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road, and authorizes the 
payment of closing costs and relocation benefits associated with the purchase, in an estimated 
amount of $265,000. 
 
 Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for 
this purchase. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(G)        
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kirk Scopac, Fleet Services Director 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of two vehicles in the 
amount of $85,485 from Randall Reed’s Prestige Ford of Garland: 

(1) One ¾-Ton Ford F250 Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup/ Bed Delete with Utility Body in the 
amount of $42,600, and  

(2) One 1-Ton Ford F350 Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body in the amount 
of $42,885. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Approval of this item will allow for an addition of one truck to the City vehicle fleet 
for Parks & Recreation, as well as the replacement of one older vehicle in the Sewer Collection 
Department. 
 
Both of these vehicles were previously bid and the bids rejected by Council in April 2017.  As shown 
on the attached bid tabulations, on May 9, 2017, two vendors submitted bids for the re-bid of these two 
vehicles.  The low bidder for both vehicles is Randall Reed’s Prestige Ford as follows: 
  
Bid A – ¾ Ton Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup/ Bed Delete with Utility Body 
 
Description  Qty  Account    Project #           Budget         Recommended Bid 

 
Bid B – 1 Ton Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body 
 
Description  Qty  Account    Project #           Budget         Recommended Bid 

 
 
 

 

Parks(addition 
to fleet) 

1 110-5935-552-6213 101538 $35,000 $42,600 

Public 
Works(replaces 
Asset #12588) 

1 520-5400-535-6213 101561 $40,000 $42,885 



06/01/17 
Item #4(G)  

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

Staff recommends award of the above bids to Randall Reed’s Prestige Ford. Randall Reed’s Prestige 
Ford took no exceptions to the bid specifications. The City has done business with Randall Reed’s 
Prestige Ford in the past and finds them to be a responsible vendor. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is appropriated for the purchase of the two vehicles identified above in the 
FY2017 Operating Budget in the amount of $85,485 as follows: 

Purchase Ford F250 
(Addition to Fleet) Purchase Ford F350 

110-5935-552-6213 520-5400-535-6213
Total 

Project 101538 Project 101561

Project Budget $42,600 $42,885 $85,485 
Randall Reed's Prestige Ford    (42,600)    (42,885)    (85,485) 

Remaining Project Funds  $      - $ - $       - 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulations 
Resolution    



Bid "A" Tabulation

Description Qty

Total Base Bid Price 1

Recommended for Council Award

Tabulation of Bids Received
on May 9, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

One (1) 3/4-Ton Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup / Bed Delete with 
Utility Body

Bid# 13-13-17

Unit Price
$37,280.00

Unit Price
$39,480.00

Randall Reed's Prestige 
Ford

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

No
No

Yes

Caldwell, TX

Hydraulic Utility body lift gate
Light Bar

Local Preference?

Yes
No
No
Yes

Exceptions?

Yes

Delivery within 180 days?

Garland, TX 

Back up alarm
$270.00

$2,570.00
$2,375.00

Credit Check Authorization

Full length entry steps on both sides

$42,600.00 $44,776.00

$80.00
$345.00

$105.00

$2,576.00
$2,295.00

Base Bid Price + Aftermarket Add Alternate 
Options:



Bid "B" Tabulation

Description Qty

Total Base Bid Price 1

Base Bid Price + Aftermarket Add 
Alternate Options:

Recommeded for Council Award

Yes

Exceptions?
Local Preference?

Yes

Tabulation of Bids Received
on May 9, 2017 at 2:00 p.m.

One (1) 1-Ton Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with 
Utility Body

Bid# 13-13-17

Caldwell Country Chevrolet

Caldwell, TX

No

Full length entry step on each side

Delivery within 180 days? Yes
No

Yes
No
No

Credit Check Authorization

Light Bar $2,375.00
$270.00

$42,885.00 $43,220.00

$345.00

Unit Price 
$40,240.00

Unit Price 
$40,580.00
$2,295.00

Randall Reed's Prestige 
Ford

Garland, TX 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8661-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TWO VEHICLES IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $84,485, FROM RANDALL REED’S PRESTIGE FORD OF 
GARLAND, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
  
 Whereas, the Public Works Sewer Department is in need of a replacement vehicle and the 
Parks and Recreation Department is requesting an additional truck to its fleet; 
 
 Whereas, on April 4, 2017, Staff received bids for both of these vehicles but the bids were 
over budget and on May 9, 2017, two vendors submitted bids for the re-bid of these two vehicles, 
with Randall Reed’s Prestige Ford of Garland, Texas submitting the low bid in the amount of 
$84,485; 
 
 Whereas, the two vehicles are as follows: 
 

 Parks & Recreation Department - One ¾ Ton Ford F250 Light Duty Extended Cab 
Pickup/Bed Delete with Utility Body, in the amount of $42,600 

 Public Works Sewer Department – One 1-Ton Ford F350 Crew Cab and Chassis, 
Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body, in the amount of $42,885; 

 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the purchase of the two vehicles listed 
above in the amount of $85,485 from Randall Reed’s Prestige Ford of Garland, Texas; 
  
 Whereas, funding is available for the Parks & Recreation Department vehicle in Account 
No. 110-5935-552-6213, Project No. 101538; 
 

Whereas, funding is available for the Public Works Sewer Department vehicle in Account 
No. 520-5400-535-6213, Project No. 101561; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 
and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the purchase of two vehicles as outlined above, in the 
amount of $85,485 from Randall Reed’s Prestige Ford of Garland, Texas. 
 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 

 
 



2 
 

 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.  
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(H) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Quality 
W Contractors, LLC of Waco, in the amount of $157,880 for the construction of a new trail connecting 
Wyndham Hill Park to the South Temple Community Park Trail. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: One of the projects approved in the 2015 Parks Bond was the addition of a trail 
connecting the park west of the Wyndham Hill subdivision to the South Temple Community Park.  
Approval of this item will allow the execution of a construction contract with Quality W Contractors, LLC 
for the construction of a 6’ wide concrete trail, approximately 2,554 feet long, with two pedestrian 
bridges. 
 
As shown in the attached Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation and Bid Tabulation, on May 18, 2017, 
the City received nine bids for this project. The bids ranged from a $157,880 to a high of $293,780 with 
Quality W Contractors, LLC providing the low bid.   
 
Quality W Contractors, LLC has provided quality work on previous City projects, and as such, staff is 
pleased to recommend them for award of this contract.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: This project is funded with the Parks GO Bonds that were approved by voters on 
May 9, 2015, and sold on September 24, 2015.  Funding is available for the construction contract with 
Quality W Contractors in the amount of $157,880 in account 362-3500-552-6406, project 101466, as 
follows:  

Project Budget  $           285,200  
Encumbered/Committed to Date                (23,927) 

Quality W Contractors, LLC              (157,880) 
Remaining Funds Available  $           103,393  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 
  



Comprehensive Engineering Solutions, Inc. 
319 South First St., Suite A       Temple, Texas  76504 

Voice:   (254) 742-2050       FAX:   (254) 742-2055 

 
 

May 22, 2017 
 
 

Mr. Val Roming 
City of Temple 
2 North Main Street, Suite 201 
Temple, Texas 76501 

 
Re: Bids Received 

 Wyndham Hill Park to South Temple Community Park Trail 
 Bid# 35-04-17 
 Temple, Bell County, Texas 
 

Dear Mr. Roming: 
 

The City of Temple received bids on May 22, 2017 for the referenced project.  Please see the attached 
Bid Schedule for detailed pricing.  Nine companies presented bids for this project.   
 
The Total Base Bids ranged from $157,880.00 (Quality W Contractors, LLC) to $293,780.00 (Patin 
Construction, LLC).  The median bid was $173,012.00 (Choice Builders, LLC). 

 
 
After reviewing the Bid Summary, we recommend that the City of Temple award a contract to Quality 
W Contractors, LLC in the amount of $157,880.00 for the Total Base Bid.  
 
If you have any questions, please call me at 254-743-2050, ext. 101. 

 
Thank you, 

 
Kristine B. Andrews, P.E. 
Principal Engineer 
Comprehensive Engineering Solutions, Inc. 
Firm Registration No. F-1071 
 

 
Xc:   Ms. Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing, City of Temple 

 Ms. Sarah Parker, Senior Buyer II, Purchasing, City of Temple 



Tabulations of Bids Received 
on May 18, 2017 @ 2:00pm

Wyndham Hill Park to South Temple Community Park Trail

Quality W 
Contractors, LLC Dixon Paving, Inc. Yoko Excavating, LLC Holy Contractors, LLC Choice Builders, LLC Wilson Construction 

Services, LLC TCB Construction, Inc. Monitor Construction 
Company, Inc.

Patin Construction, 
LLC

Waco, Texas Belton, Texas Belton, Texas Hewitt, Texas Temple, Texas Belton, Texas Austin, Texas Arizona Taylor, Texas
Mobilization and bonding $7,568.00 $4,800.00 $9,073.00 $4,859.00 $7,000.00 $15,000.00 $20,000.00 $26,000.00 $14,000.00
Site preparation and construction 
staking $9,955.00 $4,200.00 $18,771.00 $8,000.00 $9,000.00 $12,000.00 $17,500.00 $28,000.00 $75,000.00

Furnish and install 6’ wide concrete 

sidewalk including all incidentals $71,512.00 $53,634.00 $65,127.00 $55,115.32 $79,174.00 $84,282.00 $78,765.36 $87,091.40 $89,390.00

Furnish and apply broadcast seeding 
on disturbed areas for erosion control $2,055.00 $1,400.00 $1,564.00 $1,503.68 $5,000.00 $2,400.00 $2,500.00 $2,750.00 $2,500.00

Furnish and install silt fence including 
all incidentals $6,900.00 $4,600.00 $4,600.00 $4,094.00 $6,900.00 $6,900.00 $6,900.00 $20,700.00 $6,900.00

Furnish and install 2” x 6” treated pine 

flooring for foot bridge with six crew 
fasteners per slat including all 
incidentals

$6,084.00 $18,252.00 $6,743.10 $12,168.00 $6,084.00 $9,126.00 $10,281.96 $7,858.50 $16,224.00

Furnish and install 2” x 6” treated pine 

railing for foot bridge with screw 
fasteners including all incidentals

$4,056.00 $7,436.00 $5,854.16 $6,760.00 $2,704.00 $8,923.20 $20,347.60 $20,956.00 $9,464.00

Furnish and install 4” x 4” treated pine 

posts at 50” tall for foot bridge with 

screw fasteners including all 
incidentals

$3,108.00 $6,660.00 $4,872.90 $2,960.00 $1,480.00 $6,171.60 $4,848.48 $5,760.90 $3,996.00

Furnish and install 4” x 4” HSS weld 

pockets for posts including painting 
and all incidentals

$4,440.00 $2,960.00 $7,585.00 $2,960.00 $1,480.00 $4,440.00 $6,500.16 $6,789.50 $3,996.00

Furnish and install 12” x 16” x ½” weld 

plates including anchors, painting and 
all incidentals

$3,738.00 $1,890.00 $5,174.82 $1,743.00 $1,050.00 $2,772.00 $4,777.50 $6,898.50 $2,310.00

Furnish and install 8” x 6” x 1/2” HSS 

beams including painting and all 
incidentals

$18,900.00 $28,080.00 $23,911.20 $27,000.00 $41,040.00 $19,008.00 $35,100.00 $32,400.00 $36,180.00

Furnish and install 7 1/2” x 5 1/2” 

treated pine pipe railing including all 
incidentals

$1,296.00 $320.00 $100.00 $240.00 $320.00 $2,400.00 $572.00 $336.00 $320.00

Furnish and install concrete footings 
as shown in details including all 
incidentals

$7,924.00 $28,000.00 $8,575.00 $27,020.00 $10,500.00 $22,400.00 $8,750.00 $14,000.00 $31,500.00

Furnish and install 8'x4' concrete 
bench pad including all incidentals $1,866.00 $600.00 $320.00 $250.00 $480.00 $1,000.00 $900.00 $1,500.00 $500.00

Complete all site grading including 
excavating 2 cubic yards from 
floodplain

$8,478.00 $2,400.00 $7,533.00 $15,327.00 $800.00 $2,000.00 $9,000.00 $3,750.00 $1,500.00

TOTAL BASE BID $157,880.00 $165,232.00 $169,804.18 $170,000.00 $173,012.00 $198,822.80 $226,743.06 $264,790.80 $293,780.00

Recommended for Council Award

Bidders



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8662-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH QUALITY 
W CONTRACTORS, LLC OF WACO, TEXAS, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$157,880, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW TRAIL CONNECTING 
WYNDHAM HILL PARK TO THE SOUTH TEMPLE COMMUNITY PARK 
TRAIL; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, one of the projects approved in the 2015 Parks Bond was the addition of a trail 
connecting the park west of the Wyndham Hill subdivision to the South Temple Community 
Park; 
 
 Whereas, on May 18, 2017, the City received 9 bids for this project with Quality W 
Contractors, LLC providing the low bid in the amount of $157,880;   
 
 Whereas, the project includes the construction of a 6-foot wide concrete trail, 
approximately 2,554 feet long, with two pedestrian bridges; 
 
 Whereas, Quality W Contractors, LLC has provided quality work on previous City 
projects, and as such Staff recommends them for this project;   
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a construction contract in the amount of 
$157,880, with Quality W Contractors, LLC of Waco, Texas for the construction of a new trail 
connecting Wyndham Hill Park to the South Temple Community Park Trail 
 
 Whereas, this project is funded with the Parks GO Bonds that were approved by voters 
on May 9, 2015, and sold on September 24, 2015 - funding is available for the construction 
contract in Account No. 362-3500-552-6406, Project No. 101466; 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or her designee, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Quality W Contractors, 
LLC of Waco, Texas in the amount of $157,880, for the construction of a new trail connecting 
Wyndham Hill Park to the South Temple Community Park Trail. 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director  
 
 ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract with Double 
T Construction, Inc. of Belton, in the amount of $57,959 for the construction of an Environmental 
Programs Suite within the Public Works Building.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in the item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Authorization of this agreement will allow for the remodeling of approximately 800 
square feet of the existing training room within the Public Works Building (1/2 of the training room) into 
a four-office suite for the recently implemented Public Works Environmental Programs Division. The 
project will include the construction of four offices with a receptionist area, installation of a hallway 
storefront to match the other suites in the building, the addition of two windows, lowering of the ceiling 
with the associated mechanical system adjustments, carpeting, and painting.    
  
As shown on the attached bid tabulation, on May 19, 2017, two bids were received for this project that 
was designed by MRB Group. MRB Group and staff are recommending award of the project to the low 
bidder, Double T Construction, Inc. of Belton in the amount of $57,959.  
 
Double T Construction has not performed work for the City previously. Accordingly, references were 
checked, which resulted in feedback indicating that Double T will be a responsible and responsive 
contractor.   
 
Double T Construction will have 60 days to complete the work based on the date specified by staff in 
the notice to proceed.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding is appropriated for the construction contract with Double T Construction for 
the remodel of the Environmental Programs Suite in the amount of $57,959 as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 



06/01/17 
Item #4(I) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 520-5200-535-6310  520-5400-535-6310  Total 

 101626  101626   
Budget  $                 28,163    $                38,163    $               66,326  

Encumbered/Committed to Date                      (3,520)                      (3,520)                    (7,040) 
Double T Construction, Inc.                    (24,643)                     (33,316)                    (57,959) 
Remaining Project Funds  $                        -      $                  1,327    $                 1,327  

  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 
  



Double T Construction, Inc. Steve Jackson Construction, LLC

Belton, TX Temple, TX 
Description

Total Bid Price $57,959.00 $63,305.00

Bid Bond Yes Yes

Bond Requirement Affidavit Yes Yes

Credit Check Authorization Yes Yes

Recommended for Council Award

Environmental Programs Suite Remodel
Bid # 52-03-17

Bidders

Tabulation of Bids Received
on May 19, 2017 at 11:00 a.m.



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8663-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH DOUBLE 
T CONSTRUCTION, INC. OF BELTON, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$57,959, FOR CONSTRUCTION OF AN ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAMS 
SUITE WITHIN THE PUBLIC WORKS BUILDING; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the recently implemented Environmental Programs Division of Public Works 
requires an office within the Public Works building – an approximately 800 square foot area 
within the existing training room inside the Service Center has been identified for this office 
space; 
 
 Whereas, one-half of the training room will be remodeled into a 4-office suite and will 
include construction of 4 offices with a receptionist area, installation of a hallway storefront to 
match the other suites in the building, the addition of 2 windows, and lowering of the ceiling 
along with associated mechanical system adjustments, carpeting, and painting;    
  
 Whereas, on May 19, 2017, two bids were received for this project that was designed by 
MRB Group and Double T Construction, Inc. of Belton, Texas was the low bidder in the amount 
of $57,959;  
 
 Whereas, Double T Construction has not performed work for the City in the past, so 
references were checked and feedback indicated Double T will be a responsible and responsive 
contractor;   
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a construction contract with Double T 
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $57,959 for the construction of an Environmental Programs 
Suite within the Public Works building; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this contract is available in Account Nos. 520-5200-535-6310 and 
520-5400-535-6310, Project No. 101626; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a construction contract with Double T 
Construction, Inc. of Belton, Texas, in the amount of $57,959, for construction of an 
Environmental Programs Suite within the Public Works building. 
 



2 
 

  
 
 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(J) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW 
 
Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a contract amendment to Kasberg, 
Patrick, & Associates, LP, in the amount of $40,300 for expanded scope of services at the Martin Luther 
King Festival Fields.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Authorization of this contract amendment will allow for enhancements to the  Martin 
Luther King Festival Fields project.   
 
On October 4, 2017, Council authorized a contract with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP (KPA) in the 
amount of $35,600 for the design of the Martin Luther King Festival Fields, which consists of 
improvements south of Avenue B and east of 4th Street. The original contract with KPA was based upon 
an estimated construction budget of $300,000.Additional parcels of land, as well as additional 
amenities, have been added to the project scope. This amendment allows for the following design 
elements for an enhanced project scope totaling a revised construction budget of $1,250,000:  
 

Design Surveys  $  8,000 
Site Grading       5,200 
Drainage Plan      5,500 
Electrical Design      4,100 
Site Plan     17,500 
Total    $40,300 
 

Contract Amendment #1 in the amount of $4,000 for an environmental study was previously 
administratively executed by the City Manager.  As such, the revised value of the Professional Services 
Agreement with KPA for this project will be $79,900.  Per the agreement with KPA, the project should 
be completed by August 31, 2018. 
 
Staff will present for ratification this Contract Amendment to the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board at 
their June 2017 meeting.   
 
 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the contract amendment with KPA to expand the scope of services at 
the Martin Luther King Festival Fields in an amount of $40,300 is available in Reinvestment Zone No. 
1 Financing and Project Plans, Line 408, MLK Festival Fields, in account 795-9500-531-6569, project 
101588, as follows: 

Project Budget  $     79,900 
Encumbered/Committed to Date     (39,600) 

KPA  Contract Amendment     (40,300) 
Remaining Funds Available  $      - 

ATTACHMENTS: 
KPA Proposal 
Resolution 











1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8664-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & 
ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $40,300, 
FOR EXPANDED SCOPE OF SERVICES AT THE MARTIN LUTHER KING 
FESTIVAL FIELDS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 Whereas, on October 4, 2016, Council authorized a Professional Services Agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas in the amount of $35,600 for the 
design of the Martin Luther King Festival Fields, which consists of improvements south of 
Avenue B and east of 4th Street;  

Whereas, the original contract was based upon an estimated construction budget of 
$300,000 - additional parcels of land and amenities have been added to the project scope;  

Whereas, this amendment allows for an enhanced project scope and site plan which 
includes design surveys, site grading, drainage plan, and electrical design; 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize Contract Amendment No. 2 to the 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP in the amount of 
$40,300, for expanded scope of services at the Martin Luther King Festival Fields; 

Whereas, funding for this contract amendment is available in Reinvestment Zone No. 1 
Financing and Project Plans, Line 408, MLK Festival Fields, Account No. 795-9500-531-6569, 
Project No. 101588; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute Contract Amendment No. 2 to the 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple, Texas in the 
amount of $40,300, for expanded scope of services at the Martin Luther King Festival Fields. 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Kevin Beaver, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing an assignment of an Unimproved 
Property Contract from Kiella Land Investments, Ltd. to the City of Temple, in an estimated amount of 
$120,000 for the purchase of property located within the Southern Draw subdivision in Temple. 
 
Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City 
Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real 
property relating to City projects, the public discussion of which would have a detrimental effect on 
negotiations with a third party. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Land acquisition and development of a Southwest Community Park was identified 
in the 2014 Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan. This was also included in the 2015 Parks 
bond package. Recently, Staff, along with the help of community leaders, were able to identify an 
approximately 74.34 acre parcel of land in the targeted area for the Southwest Community Park. Kiella 
Land Investments, Ltd. (“Kiella”) had the property under contract and was willing to assign that contract 
to the City, under the same terms. In April, Council authorized an assignment of the Commercial 
Contract from Kiella and Staff is working toward closing on the purchase of that property. 
 
An additional tract of land has been identified in the same area of the City. LRAS, LLC owns an 
approximately 10 acre tract located to the west of the existing Southern Draw subdivision. The tract 
abuts property already owned by the City and acquisition of this tract would provide additional 
connectivity to the planned Southwest Community Park.  
 
The property is currently under contract with Kiella. The City is interested in accepting an assignment 
of the “Unimproved Property Contract” from Kiella to purchase the property. Kiella has negotiated a 
purchase price of $115,000 for the property which Staff believes is reasonable. Kiella is willing to assign 
the contract to the City under the same terms. 
 
 
 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(K) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
At this time, Staff is asking for authorization for the assignment of the Unimproved Property Contract 
for the approximately 10 acre tract and authorization of closing costs associated with the purchase in 
a total estimated amount of $120,000.  The property description is provided below: 
 

Lots Thirty-four through Forty-two, Block One, Lots Fourteen through Twenty-six, Block 
Five, Lots One through Six, Block Six, and Lots One through Eleven, Block Seven, 
SOUTHERN DRAW, a subdivision in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, according 
to the map or plat of record in Cabinet D, Slide 115-A, Plat Records of Bell County, Texas.  

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding is available for the purchase of the properties listed in the Unimproved 
Property Contract, which will provide connectivity to the planned Southwest Community Park, in an 
estimated amount of $120,000 in account 362-3500-552-6415, project #101324. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8665-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF AN ASSIGNMENT OF 
UNIMPROVED PROPERTY CONTRACT FROM KIELLA LAND 
INVESTMENTS, LTD. TO THE CITY OF TEMPLE IN AN ESTIMATED 
AMOUNT OF $120,000, FOR THE PURCHASE OF PROPERTY LOCATED 
WITHIN THE SOUTHERN DRAW SUBDIVISION IN TEMPLE, TEXAS; 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, land acquisition and development of a Southwest Community Park was 
identified in the 2014 Parks, Recreation and Open Space Master Plan and was included in the 
2015 Parks bond package; 
 
 Whereas, Staff, along with the help of community leaders, were able to identify a parcel 
of land in the targeted area for the Southwest Community Park which is approximately 74.34 
acres - Kiella Land Investments, Ltd. (“Kiella”) had the property under contract and was willing 
to assign the contract to the City, under the same terms; 
 
 Whereas, in April, 2017, Council authorized an assignment of the Commercial Contract 
from Kiella and Staff is working toward closing on the purchase of that property; 
 
 Whereas, an additional approximately 10 acre tract of land located to the west of the 
existing Southern Draw subdivision and owned by LRAS, LLC, has been identified in the same 
area of the City; 
 
 Whereas, the property is currently under contract with Kiella, abuts property already 
owned by the City and acquisition of this tract would provide additional connectivity to the 
planned Southwest Community Park;  
 

Whereas, the City is interested in accepting an assignment of the “Unimproved Property 
Contract” from Kiella to purchase the property and Kiella has negotiated a purchase price of 
$115,000 for the property which Staff believes is reasonable and Kiella is willing to assign the 
contract to the City under the same terms; 
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize an assignment of an Unimproved 
Property Contract from Kiella Land Investments, Ltd. to the City of Temple in the estimated 
amount of $120,000, for the purchase of property located within the Southern Draw subdivision 
in Temple, Texas and any closing costs that may be associated with the purchase; 
 

Whereas, the legal description of the property is: 
 

Lots Thirty-four (34) through Forty-two (42), Block One (1), Lots Fourteen (14) 
through Twenty-six (26), Block Five (5), Lots One (1) through Six (6), Block Six 
(6), and Lots One (1) through Eleven (11), Block Seven (7), SOUTHERN 
DRAW, a subdivision in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, according to the 
map or plat of record in Cabinet D, Slide 115-A, Plat Records of Bell County, 
Texas; 

 



2 
 

 
 Whereas, funding is available for the purchase of the property listed in the Unimproved 
Property Contract with Kiella Land Investments, Ltd. in Account No. 362-3500-552-6415, 
Project No. 101324; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  

 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute an assignment of an Unimproved Property 
Contract with Kiella Land Investments, Ltd. to the City of Temple in an estimated amount of 
$120,000, for the purchase of property located within the Southern Draw subdivision in Temple, 
Texas. 
 

Part 3:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(L) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kevin Beavers, Director of Parks & Recreation 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a change order to the Construction 
Manager-at-Risk contract with RM Rodriguez Construction, LP, of Temple in the amount of $57,226.10 
for repairs to the exterior walls of the Wilson Recreation Center. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Ratification of the change order to the construction contract with RM Rodriguez 
Construction, LP will allow for the water infiltration repairs to the Wilson Recreation Center wall system 
that originated in the original construction of the facility in 1997.   
 
Several windows were added to the Wilson Recreation Center during the recently completed Parks 
Bond project.  With the addition of windows, it was recently determined that the original exterior 
masonry walls behind the metal fascia were not constructed to specifications, whereby heavy rains 
used to overflow into the masonry wall system and flow out through the weep system; now with the 
newly added windows, the rain water that used to flow through the wall system gets dammed up at the 
windows and penetrates into the building.    
 
In order to resolve the water infiltration issue, staff has proceeded with a Change Order to RM 
Rodriguez’s Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) contract to add metal panels to make up for several 
layers of brick that were left off of the original construction in 1997.  In summary, the work will consist 
of the following:  remove the existing standing seam metal fascia panels; install flashing on the masonry 
walls; install wood framing, sheathing, waterproofing, and metal skin to close the gap; then install new 
standing fascia seam panels.    
 
RM Rodriguez Construction, LP was originally awarded the CMAR contract in the amount of 
$1,144,974.76 on August 4, 2016. Staff is recommending that RM Rodriguez complete the work since 
they recently installed a new roof on the facility, and having another contractor do this work runs the 
risk of voiding the recently received roof warranty due to the new metal panels abutting the roof. In 
addition, RM Rodriguez is intimately familiar with the site and the building conditions, which will provide 
a seamless transition from the original work to this new work.   
 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
RM Rodriguez Construction had availability to start the work on May 18th and staff concluded that it 
was important to mitigate additional water infiltration events. Accordingly, on May 16th, staff 
administratively authorized RM Rodriguez to proceed with the work, and staff is now asking Council to 
ratify this Change Order.     
 
FISCAL IMPACT: This project is funded with the Parks GO Bonds that were approved by voters on 
May 9, 2015, and sold on September 24, 2015.  Funding for change order #7 with RM Rodriguez 
Construction, for repairs to the exterior walls of the Wilson Recreation Center, in the amount of 
$57,226.10 is available in account 362-3500-552-6419, project 101328, as follows: 
 

Project Budget   $        1,258,998  
Encumbered/Committed to Date            (1,196,771) 

RM Rodriguez Construction - CO#7                (57,226) 
Remaining Project Funds   $                5,001  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8666-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING A CHANGE ORDER TO THE CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGER-AT-RISK CONTRACT WITH RM RODRIGUEZ 
CONSTRUCTION, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$57,226.10, FOR REPAIRS TO THE EXTERIOR WALLS OF THE 
WILSON RECREATION CENTER; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council ratify a change order to the construction 
contract with RM Rodriguez Construction, LP which will allow for water infiltration repairs 
to the Wilson Recreation Center wall system that originated in the original construction of 
the facility in 1997;   

Whereas, several windows were added to the Wilson Recreation Center during the 
recently completed Parks Bond project and it was recently determined that the original 
exterior masonry walls behind the metal fascia were not constructed to specifications, 
whereby heavy rains would overflow into the masonry wall system and flow out through the 
weep system - the rain water that used to flow through the wall system gets dammed up at 
the newly added windows and penetrates into the building;    

Whereas, in order to resolve the water infiltration issue, Staff has proceeded with a 
change order to RM Rodriguez’s Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) contract to add 
metal panels to make up for several layers of brick that were left off of the original 
construction in 1997; 

Whereas, the work will consist of the removal of the existing standing seam metal 
fascia panels, the installation of flashing on the masonry walls, the installation of wood 
framing, sheathing, waterproofing, and metal skin to close the gap and then the installation of 
new standing fascia seam panels;    

Whereas, on August 4, 2016, Council awarded a CMAR contract to RM Rodriguez 
Construction, LP in the amount of $1,144,974.76 and Staff is recommending that RM 
Rodriguez complete the work since they recently installed a new roof on the facility, and 
having another contractor do this work runs the risk of voiding the recently received roof 
warranty due to the new metal panels abutting the roof; 

Whereas, RM Rodriguez is intimately familiar with the site and the building 
conditions, which will provide a seamless transition from the original work to this new work; 

Whereas, this project is funded with the Parks GO Bonds that were approved by the 
voters on May 9, 2015, and sold on September 24, 2015 – funding for this change order is 
available in Account No. 362-3500-552-6419, Project No. 101328; and 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 



2 
 

 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a change order to the Construction 
Manager-at-Risk contract with RM Rodriguez Construction, LP of Temple, Texas in the 
amount of $57,226.10, for repairs to the exterior walls of the Wilson Recreation Center. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros  
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(M) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director 
Don Bond, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing contract amendment #1 to the 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick and Associates, LP, in the amount not to exceed 
$18,600 for construction administration and on-site representation required to construct the Membrane 
Water Treatment Facility Reverse Filtration Header Replacement Project.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The existing MWTF was placed into initial operation in 2004. The RF system 
consists of a 10-inch PVC suction piping, two 40-HP pumps, and a 10-inch PVC discharge header that 
includes 8-inch connections to each of the 11 membrane racks. The 10-inch PVC discharge header is 
Schedule-80 solvent-weld piping that has experienced breaks in the tees due to age, stress, and water 
hammer. This project will replace the existing discharge header with HDPE pipe and fittings which will 
better withstand high pressures and water hammer. 
 
On January 19, 2017, the City executed a professional services contract with KPA in the amount of 
$20,400 for final design and bidding of the MWTF RF Header Replacement Project. 
 
On May 4, 2017, the City Council authorized a contract with Prime Spec Construction, LLC, of Liberty 
Hill for $229,400 to construct the project.   
 
To accomplish proper construction oversite, consultant services recommended under this contract 
amendment include the following tasks and costs: 
 
 Basic Services  

A. Construction Administration     $ 15,400 
 
 Special Services 

A. On-Site Representation      $   3,200 
 

                  Total    $ 18,600 
 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(M) 

Consent Agenda 
               Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Please refer to the attached proposal and project map for further details.  Construction is anticipated to 
begin in June 2017.  Construction time allotted for this project is 90 calendar days.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the contract amendment with KPA in the amount of $18,600 is 
appropriated in account 561-5100-535-6959, project 101616, as follows:   
 

Project Budget  $           268,583  
Encumbered/Committed to Date              (249,983) 

KPA Agreement                (18,600) 
Remaining Funds Available  $                      -    

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal  
Project Map 
Contract Amendment 
Resolution 

  











1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8667-R 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & 
ASSOCIATES, LP OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,600, 
FOR CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION AND ON-SITE 
REPRESENTATION REQUIRED TO CONSTRUCT THE MEMBRANE 
WATER TREATMENT FACILITY REVERSE FILTRATION HEADER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

 Whereas, the existing membrane water treatment facility (“MWTF”) was placed into 
initial operation in 2004 and the reverse filtration (“RF”) system consists of 10-inch PVC suction 
piping, two 40-HP pumps, and a 10-inch PVC discharge header that includes 8-inch connections 
to each of the 11 membrane racks; 

Whereas, the 10-inch PVC discharge header is Schedule-80 solvent-weld piping which 
has experienced breaks in the tees due to age, stress, and water hammer - this project will replace 
the existing discharge header with HDPE pipe and fittings which will better withstand high 
pressures and water hammer; 

Whereas, on January 19, 2017, the City executed a professional services agreement with 
Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP in the amount of $20,400, for final design and bidding of the 
MWTF RF Header Replacement Project; 

Whereas, on May 4, 2017, Council authorized a construction contract with Prime Spec 
Construction, LLC, of Liberty Hill in the amount of $229,400, to construct the project, however, 
to accomplish proper construction oversite, a contract amendment is necessary to amend certain 
tasks and costs;  

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize Contract Amendment No. 1 to the 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP in the amount of 
$18,600, for construction administration and on-site representation required to construct the 
Membrane Water Treatment Facility Reverse Filtration Header Replacement Project; 

Whereas, funding for this contract amendment is available in Account No. 561-5100-
535-6959, Project No. 101616; and

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  



2 
 

 
 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute Contract Amendment No. 1 to the 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP in the amount of 
$18,600, for construction administration and on-site representation required to construct the 
Membrane Water Treatment Facility Reverse Filtration Header Replacement Project. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(N) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 3 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Public Works Director  
Don Bond, P.E., City Engineer 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Clark & Fuller, PLLC, of Temple in an amount not to exceed $1,228,090.42 to design the Knob 
Creek Trunk Sewer Improvements.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item discussion. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: On April 7, 2016, Council approved the Knob Creek Basin study to assess the 
condition of an aged primary wastewater interceptor line serving some of the oldest parts of the City.  
This study was necessitated by failing infrastructure, and a recognition of the need to ensure continued 
serviceability to both established and future developing areas of Temple. Study results concluded that 
the trunk sewer has significant aging, failures, and excessive amounts of infiltration with a 
recommendation to implement necessary upgrades and improvements in five phases with Phase I 
being the most critical to rehabilitate.  See the Project Map for an illustration. 
 
This contract with Clark & Fuller is for 30% design of Phases I, II, III, IV and V and 100% design, bidding, 
and construction phase services for Phase I.  Please see the attached proposal from Clark & Fuller for 
more detailed information. Staff recommends authorizing the following scope of services and costs 
under this contract: 
  
  Phase I (30% design): 
 
    Surveying Services   $   43,000.00 
    Civil Engineering Design  $ 182,245.22 
       Total  $ 225,245.22 
 
  Phase II (30% design): 
 
    Surveying Services   $   54,750.00 
    Civil Engineering Design  $ 105,958.48 
       Total  $ 160,708.48 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

 
  Phase III (30% design): 
 
    Surveying Services   $   30,000.00 
    Civil Engineering Design  $   91,600.05 
       Total  $ 121,600.05 
 
 
  Phase IV (30% design): 
 
    Surveying Services   $   27,250.00 
    Civil Engineering Design  $ 147,211.52 
       Total  $ 174,461.52 
 
 
  Phase V (30% design): 
 
    Surveying Services   $   18,000.00 
    Civil Engineering Design  $   54,481.35 
       Total  $   72,481.35 
 
 
  Phase I, II, III, IV, and V 30% Design Total $ 754,496.62 
 
 
Upon completion of 30% design for the full project, 100% design and bidding for Phase I is 
recommended, with fees broken out as follows: 
 
 
  Phase I (100% design): 
 
   Surveying Services     $   16,093.00 
   Civil Engineering Design    $ 446,500.80 
   Bidding Project Phase    $     5,500.00 
   Temporary Construction Easements & Exhibits $     5,500.00 
 
   Phase I 100% Design & Bidding Total  $ 473,593.80 
 
 
Total costs recommended under this contract are $1,228,090.42. Time required for design of the project 
is 475 calendar days. For Phase I, the Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost (OPC) is $6,074,840.75 
and estimated construction time is 420 calendar days. The Engineer’s OPC for total construction cost 
for all phases is $19,383,220.45. Funding for Phase I construction is currently programmed in FY 2019.  
Funding for Phases II through V construction are included in future capital programming. 

 
 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(N) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: A budget adjustment is being submitted to Council to appropriate funding from water 
and wastewater retained earnings. Funding will be available in account 520-5900-535-6631, project 
#100629, for the professional services agreement with Clark & Fuller for engineering services required 
to complete 30% design on the Knob Creek Trunk Sewer Improvements Phases I, II, III, IV and V, as 
well as 100% design of Phase I, in the amount of $1,228,090.42.    
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Project Map 
Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 
  

























Revised form - 10/27/06

FY 2017
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER PROJECT # DECREASE

520-5900-535-66-31 101629
520-0000-373-04-11 1,228,091   

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………………… 1,228,091$ 

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? X Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? X Yes No

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Approved
Disapproved

Allocate funding for the Knob Creek Trunk Sewer Improvements from water and wastewater retained earnings.

6/1/2017

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

1,228,091$ 

INCREASE

1,228,091$ 
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

KNOB CREEK TRUNK SEWER IMRPOV.

DO NOT POST

UNRESERVED / RETAINED EARNINGS

City Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Date

Date

Date



1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8668-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH CLARK & FULLER, PLLC OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $1,228,090.42, TO DESIGN THE KNOB CREEK TRUNK SEWER 
IMPROVEMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on April 7, 2016, Council approved the Knob Creek Basin study to assess the 
condition of an aged primary wastewater interceptor line serving some of the oldest parts of the 
City; 
 
 Whereas, this study was necessitated by failing infrastructure, and a recognition of the 
need to ensure continued serviceability to both established and future developing areas of 
Temple; 
 
 Whereas, the results concluded that the trunk sewer has significant aging failures, and 
excessive amounts of infiltration with a recommendation to implement necessary upgrades and 
improvements in five phases with Phase I being the most critical to rehabilitate; 
 

Whereas, this agreement with Clark & Fuller is for 30% design of Phases I, II, III, IV 
and V and 100% design, bidding, and construction phase services for Phase I; 

 
 Whereas, funding for this agreement is available, but an amendment to the fiscal year 
2017 budget needs to be approved to transfer the funds to Account No. 520-5900-535-6631, 
Project No. 100629; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute a professional services agreement with 
Clark & Fuller, PLLC, in the amount of $1,228,090.42, to design the Knob Creek Trunk Sewer 
Improvements. 
 

Part 3: The City Council authorizes an amendment to the fiscal year 2017 budget, 
substantially in the form of the copy attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A.’ 
 
 Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(O) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Leigh Gardner, Library Director 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a services agreement with 
International Security Agency of McAllen through September 30, 2018, in the estimated annual amount 
of $33,600 for the provision of security guard services at the Temple Public Library. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: To promote safety and security of patrons, building tenants and staff, the Library 
has a security guard on site during peak hours. On September 1, 2016, Council authorized an annual 
contract with Special Protective Service of San Antonio to provide these services during FY 2017 at a 
rate of $11.24 per hour. However, in February, 2017, Special Protective Service stopped providing 
services under the contract and became non-responsive.   
 
On May 16, 2017, the City received five bids for the security guard services for a term commencing 
immediately and continuing through September 30, 2018. The bids are shown on the attached bid 
tabulation sheet. The low bidder was International Security Agency of McAllen at a rate of $14 per hour. 
The City has not done business with International Security Agency in the past. Therefore, references 
were checked. After receiving favorable responses to the references, staff is recommending award to 
International Security Agency.  
 
The recommended contract shall commence immediately and shall continue through September 30, 
2018 with the option for four one-year renewals, if so agreed to by the City and International Security 
Agency. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Included in the adopted FY 2017 Operating Budget is $28,720 for Library security 
guard services in account 110-4000-555-2623, of which $3,892 has been expended year-to-date for 
security guard services, leaving an available balance of $24,828.  Library staff anticipates spending 
approximately $10,400 under this contract for the remainder of FY 2017.   
 
The Library has submitted a request for continued funding for security guard services for FY 2018 with 
an estimated annual spend of $33,600.  A non-appropriation clause will be included in the services 
agreement should adequate funding not be appropriated in FY 2018. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation  
Resolution  



Tabulation of Bids Received
on May 16, 2017 at 2:30 p.m.

Security Guard Services for the Temple Public Library
Bid# 40-03-17

Dennis Security and 
Professional Services, LLC

International Security 
Agency, Inc. (I.S.A.) Arber Inc.

Austin, TX McAllen, TX San Antonio, TX 
Description

Hourly Rate $18.49 $14.00 $14.50
Exceptions No No No
Credit Check Authorization Yes Yes Yes

Eagle Systems Inc. Vets Securing America

Waco, TX San Antonio, TX 
Description

Hourly Rate $20.50 $17.24
Exceptions No No
Credit Check Authorization Yes Yes

Recommended for Council Award

Bidders

Bidders



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8668-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
INTERNATIONAL SECURITY AGENCY OF MCALLEN, TEXAS IN THE 
ESTIMATED ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $33,600, FOR SECURITY GUARD 
SERVICES AT THE TEMPLE PUBLIC LIBRARY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, to promote the safety and security of patrons, building tenants and Staff, the 
Library has a security guard on site during peak hours; 

 
Whereas, on September 1, 2016, Council authorized an annual contract with Special 

Protective Service of San Antonio, Texas to provide security guard services during fiscal year 
2017 at a rate of $11.24 per hour, however, in February, 2017, Special Protective Service 
stopped providing services under the contract and became non-responsive;   
 

Whereas, on May 16, 2017, the City received five bids for security guard services with 
International Security Agency of McAllen, Texas submitting the low bid at a rate of $14 per 
hour; 

 
Whereas, the City has not done business with International Security Agency in the past so 

references were checked and after receiving favorable responses, Staff is recommending award 
of a services agreement to International Security Agency; 

 
Whereas, the agreement shall commence immediately and continue through September 30, 

2018 with the option for four one-year renewals, if so agreed to by both parties; 
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize a services agreement with International 
Security Agency of McAllen, Texas, in the estimated annual amount of $33,600 for security 
guard services at the Temple Public Library; 

 
Whereas, the Library has budgeted funds for security guard services in Account No. 110-

4000-555-2623; and 
  
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative 

and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved 
and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  



2 
 

 
 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, to execute a 

services agreement with International Security Agency of McAllen, Texas, after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for security guard services at the Temple Public Library, at the hourly 
rate of $14 and in the estimated annual amount of $33,600. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 

 
        THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
        

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(P) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 

 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a Retail Sales Interlocal Agreement with 
Texas General Land Office for the purchase of electricity at $0.03410 per kWh for a five year term 
commencing for meter reads after April 30, 2019.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
  
ITEM SUMMARY: On May 4, 2017, Council authorized the Interim City Manager or the Director of 
Finance to act on behalf of the City to review pricing offers submitted for the supply of electricity, and 
if in the best interest of the City, enter into a contract with the lowest responsible bidder for a period of 
24 to 60 months beginning for electrical meter reads on or after May 1, 2019.    

 
With the assistance of Texas Energy Aggregation (TEA), a subsidiary of EMEX Company, on May 17, 
2017, the City utilized EMEX’s online reverse auction platform to obtain electricity rate bids for the time 
periods authorized by Council.  As shown in the attached EMEX Custom Pricing Analysis, the following 
eight retail electric providers participated in the reverse auction, which persisted for over an hour:  
Constellation Energy, Texas General Land Office (GLO), Green Mountain Energy, Hudson Energy, 
MP2 Energy, Reliant Energy, Source Power & Gas, and TXU Energy.   
 
Based on the historical low pricing currently available, and with TEA’s guidance, the Interim City 
Manager executed an agreement with Texas General Land Office (GLO) at a rate of $0.03410 per kWh 
for a five year period commencing for the first meter read on or after May 1, 2019, and ending on the 
first meter read date after April 30, 2024.  The attached analysis reflects an energy rate of $0.03248 
per kwh based on the removal of the Gross Receipts Tax Reimbursement (GRT) and PUC Assessment 
Fee Reimbursements that are embedded in the contracted rate of $0.03410, an exceptionality when 
contracting with a State agency.   
 
Per the Local Government Code 252.022(a)(15), electricity is exempt from the competitive sealed 
bidding rules.  This is relevant based on the fact that TEA only solicited pricing from REP’s that they 
deem to be reputable and competitive energy providers.   
 
 
 

 



06/01/17 
Item #4(P) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: The City is currently under a three year contract with Hudson Energy for the meter 
reads ending in May 2019 at a rate of $.04450 per kWh.  Based on the City’s annual energy usage of 
over 38 million kWh, the new contract with GLO will result in annual savings over the current contract 
with Hudson of approximately $468,000 per year.   
  
There is not a fiscal impact for FY 2017.  For informational purposes, the Adopted FY 2017 Operating 
Budget includes the following for electric utilities: 
 
  General Fund   $ 1,675,944 
  Hotel/Motel Tax Fund        125,100 
  Water & Wastewater Fund     1,825,000 
 

  Total FY 2017 Budget  $ 3,626,044 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
EMEX Custom Pricing Analysis – Pricing Summary 
Resolution  
  





1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8670-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, RATIFYING A RETAIL SALES INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
WITH THE TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
ELECTRICITY AT $0.034.10 PER KWH FOR A FIVE-YEAR TERM 
COMMENCING FOR METER READS AFTER APRIL 30, 2019; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, on May 4, 2017, Council authorized the Acting City Manager or the Director 

of Finance to act on behalf of the City to review pricing offers submitted for the supply of 
electricity, and if in the best interests of the City, enter into a contract with the lowest responsible 
bidder for a period of 24 to 60 months beginning for electrical meter reads on or after May 1, 
2019;    
 

Whereas, with the assistance of Texas Energy Aggregation (TEA), a subsidiary of 
EMEX Company, on May 17, 2017, the City utilized EMEX’s online reverse auction platform to 
obtain electricity rate bids for the time periods authorized by Council; 

 
Whereas, based on the historical low pricing currently available, and with TEA’s 

guidance, the Acting City Manager executed an agreement with Texas General Land Office at a 
rate of $0.03410 per kWh for a five-year period commencing for the first meter read on or after 
May 1, 2019, and ending on the first meter read date after April 30, 2024; 

 
Whereas, per Local Government Code 252.022(a)(15), electricity is exempt from the 

competitive sealed bidding rules - this is relevant based on the fact that TEA only solicited 
pricing from REP’s that they deem to be reputable and competitive energy providers;   
 

Whereas, the City is currently under a 3-year contract with Hudson Energy for the meter 
reads ending in May 2019 at a rate of $.04450 per kWh and based on the City’s annual energy 
usage of over 38 million kWh, the new contract with the Texas General Land Office will result 
in annual savings over the current contract with Hudson Energy, of approximately $468,000 per 
year; and   
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council ratifies a Retail Sales Interlocal Agreement with Texas General 
Land Office for the purchase of electricity at $0.03410 per kWh for a five-year term 
commencing for meter reads after April 30, 2019. 

 



2 
 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 

 
      THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
 

 _____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM  
 

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(Q)  
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
  
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Kevin Beavers, Director, Parks and Recreation 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider a resolution authorizing entering into to an Interlocal Agreement with 
the Belton Independent School District to provide school locations for after school latchkey 
programming. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: We are requesting City Council approval to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with 
the Belton Independent School District (B.I.S.D.). The agreement would allow the Parks and Recreation 
Department to continue to provide an after school program at four B.I.S.D. schools that are located in 
the Temple city limits.  
 
In 2009 Temple Parks and Recreation was awarded the contract to provide “Latch Key Program 
Management Services” at Tarver, Pirtle, and Lakewood Elementary Schools. In 2013 High Point 
Elementary was added to the latch key program. During the 2016-17 school year, Temple Parks and 
Recreation provided an after school program for two hundred and ninety-nine, five to thirteen year olds, 
Monday through Friday, from 3 pm to 6 pm.  
 
The term of this agreement will be from July 1, 2017 through the last day of the 2017-18 school year, 
at which time both parties may extend or renegotiate the agreement by mutual consent. 
 
This agreement with B.I.S.D. helps meet the City Council goal of jointly partnering with school districts 
to provide services and programs. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: B.I.S.D. has agreed to waive all facility usage fees during the time the program is 
being offered, thus allowing the program to be offered at an affordable rate for the participants.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 

 

 



1 
 

  
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8671-R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE 
BELTON INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT TO PROVIDE SCHOOL 
LOCATIONS FOR AFTER SCHOOL LATCH KEY PROGRAMMING; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Whereas, Temple Parks and Recreation Department provides After School Zone 

Programming at four Belton Independent School District (“BISD”) schools that are located 
within the Temple city limits; 

 
Whereas, in 2009, the Temple Parks and Recreation Department was awarded the 

contract to provide “Latch Key Program Management Services” at Tarver, Pirtle, and 
Lakewood Elementary Schools - in 2013, High Point Elementary was added to the program; 

 
Whereas, during the 2016-2017 school year, the Temple Parks and Recreation 

Department provided an after school program for two hundred and ninety-nine 5 to 13 year 
olds, Monday through Friday, from 3 pm to 6 pm; 

 
Whereas, the term of this agreement will run from July 1, 2017 through the last day of 

the 2017-2018 school year, at which time both parties may extend or renegotiate the agreement 
by mutual consent; 

 
Whereas, BISD has agreed to waive all facility usage fees during the time the program is 

being offered, allowing the program to be offered at an affordable rate to the participants; and 
 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 

to authorize this action. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 

TEXAS, THAT: 
 

 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.
  

 
Part 2: The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 

approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute an Interlocal Agreement with the Belton 
Independent School District to provide school locations for after school latchkey programming 
beginning July 1, 2017 through the last day of the 2017-2018 school year. 

 
Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
  
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(R) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 4 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING - Z-FY-17-25: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
a rezoning for: (1) 2.497 +/- acres from Agricultural district to General Retail district, (2) 67.455 +/- acres 
from Planned Development Multi-Family One, Multi-Family Two and Agricultural districts to Single-
Family Three district and (3) 6.606 +/- acres from Planned Development Multi-Family One district to 
Single-Family Attached Three, for a total rezoning of 76.558 +/- acres, situated in the Maximo Moreno 
Survey, Abstract No. 14, Bell County, Texas, generally located east of South Martin Luther King Jr 
Drive and generally south and west of Case Road. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval for a rezoning to Single Family Three (SF-
3), Single Family Attached Three (SFA-3) and General Retail (GR) districts for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed SFA-3, SF-3 and GR zoning is compatible with surrounding zoning, existing and 
anticipated uses as well as future growth trends in the area; 

2. The proposal is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
3. Public facilities are available to serve the subject property.   

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their April 17, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted six to zero for approval of the proposed rezoning to SF-3, SFA-
3 and GR zoning districts, per staff’s recommendation. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Kiella Development, on behalf of the owner, J&P Oil & Gas Inc., requests rezoning 
of a 76.558 +/- acre unplatted tract, from Planned Development-Multi-Family One (PD-MF-1), Multi-
Family-Two (MF-2) and, Agricultural (AG) districts. Per Ordinance 95-2314, the Planned Development 
has a base-zoning of Multi-Family One (MF-1), which was intended for a retirement center for elderly 
or disabled persons and was never developed.  
 
The developer is interested in subdividing the 67.455 +/- acres, which is intended for detached single-
family homes with a proposed zoning of Single Family Three (SF-3) and building townhomes on the 
remaining 6.606 +/- acres. A 2.497 +/- acre portion is being proposed for retail and service uses. Both 
the base-zoning of MF-1 & MF-2 as well as the proposed Single Family Attached Three (SFA-3) zoning 
districts allow townhomes but the existing PD-MF-1 does not. The retirement center is not proposed 
with the current proposal and Ordinance 95-2314 does not accommodate any other use. Therefore, 
adoption of a new ordinance will effectively repeal Ordinance 95-2314 and a separate amendment to 
the current ordinance is not necessary. This proposal will incorporate the 12.5 +/- acres of the current 
PD-MF-1, combined with the remaining 63.758 +/- acres for a total of 76.558 +/- acres.  



06/01/17 
Item #4(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
FUTURE EXPANSION (CITY-OWNED PROPERTY): The applicant is considering a neighboring 
unplatted tract of land of approx. 3.355 +/- acres. This 3.355 +/- acres is currently owned by the City of 
Temple and is separated from the subject property by Case Road. At this time no formal application 
process has been initiated by the applicant to acquire this property.  A formal application is required to 
convey the tract to private ownership before it can be rezoned and developed.   
 
It is noteworthy that per Resolution 2012-6849-R, this City-owned parcel received City Council 
authorization for conveyance to a private party with a fair market value of $2,531.00. The conveyance 
was never finalized and the case was closed by the City’s Legal Department. The property has 
remained under the ownership of the City of Temple.  
 
CASE ROAD: The applicant is also considering to request to abandon a portion of Case Road, a 
collector which is not built to City standards. Case Road is envisioned to be rerouted as a collector 
through the proposed development, terminating with a cul de sac. Preliminary analysis of the right-of-
way has identified utilities and easements which will need to be re-routed prior to abandonment. 
Discussion with City staff, in particular, Public Works, Engineering is on-going. 
 
Additionally, staff is in the process of evaluating the proposed access from Loop 363. The access may 
be impacted by the abandonment of Case Road and may impact direct access to Loop 363. Further, a 
gravel access road along the northern-section of Case Road provides direct access to the railroad lines. 
Burlington north-Santa Fe Railroad as well as Union Pacific railroad have been notified of the project.  
To date, no feedback has been received by staff.  
 
TXDOT REVIEW: 
TxDOT has been forwarded plans of the project which included the potential abandonment of Case 
Road as well as the potential development of the City-owned portion.  As such, TxDOT is requiring a 
Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA). The scope of the TIA needs to include recommendations for any turn 
lanes for LP 363.  
 
INITIAL SUBMITTAL:  While the proposed rezoning is not a Planned Development, it was initially 
submitted to staff as one.  The initial submittal included the 3.355 +/- acre tract, owned by the City of 
Temple and land area as a result of a potential abandonment of Case Road into the scope. The 
proposed scope included a layout for approximately 352 lots. At this time, the developer has chosen to 
first proceed to secure the zoning of the 76.558 +/- acre portion without the Case Road and City-owned 
portions.   
 
It is anticipated that the developer will enter into a Beautification Agreement with the City to address 
the watering needs of the private tracts. The Beautification Agreement is anticipated to be rolled-into 
the redevelopment and revitalization projects related to Temple’s east-side and will be reviewed by 
separate cover by City Council. 
 
SUBDIVISION PLAT:  A subdivision plat is anticipated, which will address lot layout, circulation, 
parkland, needed ROW as well as other subdivision-related concerns.  It is not known whether a plat 
will be submitted prior to Case Road abandonment and City-owned parcel acquisition processes. The 
Development Review Committee (DRC) discussion will also include discussion about any Beatification 
Agreement(s).  

 



06/01/17 
Item #4(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
While it is anticipated for the property to be developed with detached single-family uses, townhomes 
and general retail and service uses, there are a number of residential and non-residential uses that are 
permitted by right.  A comparison between the existing and proposed zoning districts, which include but 
are not limited to townhomes and single family residential uses are shown in the attached table. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive 
Plan Compliance table but further described below: 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is split by two Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designations, the Auto-Urban 
Commercial designation and the Auto-Urban Multi-Family designation. The south half of the property 
is within the Auto-Urban designation, which is established for majority of the areas identified for 
commercial use and is not consistent with the proposed Planned Development.  On the other hand, 
the north half of the property is within the Auto-Urban Multi-Family designation, which is intended to 
accommodate multi-family only development. It can, however be combined with Auto-Urban Residential 
which is what occurs on the north side of Case Road, but not on the subject property. This project 
proposes a mixture of townhomes and detached single family residential uses and while the single 
family housing portion is not consistent, the townhome portion is consistent, since townhomes by 
definition, similar to apartments and condominiums, lend themselves to a multi-family use. 
 
Per UDC Section 11.2, townhomes are one in a series of three or more dwelling units structurally 
connected or immediately adjacent to or abutting each other. Apartments and condominiums may be 
deemed a townhouse if no other dwelling unit or use exist above or below it.  
 
In conclusion, the general retail portion is within the Auto-Urban Commercial designation and is 
consistent. Therefore, the proposed rezoning overall is partially consistent with the Future Land Use 
Map designations. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from both South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, a minor arterial and 
Case Road, a collector.  As discussed earlier in this report, abandonment of a portion of Case Road is 
being considered which may affect an access point onto Loop 363. The anticipated subdivision plat will 
address any needed right-of-way dedication for both. To date, no dedication issues have been identified 
by staff but will be further evaluated with a forthcoming plat. Additionally impacts to TxDOT interests 
are on-going but will be addressed both during the subdivision plat review as well as with any future 
abandonment application request. No Transportation Capital Improvement Program (TCIP) 
improvements scheduled through FY 2024 have been identified. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available through an 8-inch and a 12-inch sewer line at several places in Case Road along 
the north and north east sides of the subject property. Sewer is also available through extension of an 
8-inch sewer line on the west side of South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive. Water is available through a 
8- inch waterline in South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, a 12-inch waterline in Case Road and an eight 
inch waterline along the southern boundary of the property.   
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(R) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
No trails are shown on the Trails Master Plan, however, as a minor arterial, a 6’ sidewalk is required 
along South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive. Additionally, Case Road, as a collector, requires a six foot 
sidewalk. Provisions for the sidewalk will be addressed during the plat review stage.  
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The attached tables compare and contrast, the current 
development standards with the proposed SFA-3, SF-3 and GR standards as provided for in UDC 
Sections 4.2, 4.5 and 4.5.1 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Twenty three notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were 
sent notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance.  As of Tuesday May 9, 
2017 at 9:00 AM, one notice without a response and three notices, in agreement have been received. 
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 6, 2017, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Boundary Map (Exhibit A) 
Ordinance 95-2314 
Photos 
Tables 
Maps 
Returned Property Notices 
P&Z Excerpts (April 17, 2017) 
Ordinance 
  



mbaker
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A













Site & Surrounding Property Photos 
 

 
 

Street Level View of Site (Looking South from Case Road): Undeveloped  
(PD-MF-1, MF-2 & AG) 

 

 
 

Elevated View of Site #1 (Looking West from LP 363 & BNSF RR Overpass): 
Undeveloped  

(PD-MF-1, MF-2 & AG) 



 
 

Elevated View of Site #2 (Looking West from LP 363 & BNSF RR Overpass): 
Undeveloped  

(PD-MF-1, MF-2 & AG) 
 

 
 

Elevated View of Site #3 (Looking West from LP 363 & BNSF RR Overpass): 
Undeveloped  

(PD-MF-1, MF-2 & AG) 



 
 

North: Exiting SF Residential Uses (Meadows at Creekside)  
(PD-MF-1) 

 

 
 

North: Exiting SF Residential Uses (Village at Meadowbend)  
(PD-MF-1) 



 

 
 

East: BNSF Service Road, City-Owned Tract, BNSF Railroad 
(LI)   

 

 
 

East: City-Owned tract, BNSF Railroad (Case Road in foreground) 
(LI)   



 

 
 

West: Existing Retail & Service Uses (Country Lane Commercial Subd.)  
(PD-O-2 & GR) 

 

 
 

South: Undeveloped & Scattered Existing Service & Retail Uses 
(AG & GR) 



Tables 
 

Permitted & Conditional Uses Table  
Comparison between AG, MF-1, MF-2 & the Proposed PD-SF3 & PD-SFA-3 

The PD-MF-1: Retirement Center (Elderly & Disabled Persons) only allowed use (Ord. 95-2314) 
(GR Uses provided by separate table on next page) 

 

Use Type Agricultural 
(AG) 

Multi-Family 
One (MF-1) 

Multi-Family 
Two (MF-2) 

 
PD- SF-3 

 
PD-SFA-3 

Agricultural Uses Farm, Ranch or 
Orchard 

Same as AG Same as AG Same as AG Same As AG 

Residential Uses 

Single Family 
Residence 
(Detached & 
Attached)                                                                                                                                           
Industrialized 
Housing                                                      
Family or Group 
Home           
Home for the 
Aged (CUP)                                                     

Same as AG 
Apartments 
Townhouse 
Triplex 
 Duplex 
Home for the 
aged (CUP)                                                                                                               

Same as MF-1   
Includes 
Townhomes 
No CUP for 
Home for the 
Aged                                                                                                                   

Single Family 
Residence 
(Detached 
only)                                                                                                                                         
Industrialized 
Housing 
Family or 
Group Home                                                       

 Single Family 
Residence 
(Detached & 
Attached)                                                                                                                                           
Industrialized 
Housing 
Townhomes 
Family or 
Group Home 
Apartments                                                       

Retail & Service 
Uses 

None Same as AG                                                Drug Store 
(CUP)                                                

Same as AG                                                Same as AG                                                

Commercial Uses None                             Same as AG                                                                                               Same as AG                                                                                               Same as AG                                                Same as AG                                                

Industrial Uses 

Temporary 
Asphalt & 
Concrete 
Batching Plat 
(CUP)                                                                                      

Same as AG                                                                                                                            Same as AG                                                                                                                            Same as AG                                                Same as AG                                                

Recreational Uses None Same as AG                                                 Same as AG                                                 Same as AG                                                Same as AG                                                

Educational  
& Institutional Uses 

Cemetery (CUP) 
Place of 
Worship 
Social Svc. 
Shelter (CUP) 
Child Care 
(CUP) 

Cemetery 
(CUP) 
Place of 
Worship 
Social Svc. 
Shelter 
(CUP) 
Halfway 
House (CUP) 

Same as MF-1 Same as MF-1 
No Halfway 
House 

Same as MF-1 
No Halfway 
House 

Vehicle Service 
Uses 

None Same as AG Same as AG Same as AG                                                Same as AG                                                

Restaurant Uses None Same as AG Same as AG Same as AG                                                Same as AG                                                
Overnight 

Accommodations 
RV Park (CUP) None Hotel / Motel None                                                None                                                

Transportation 
Uses 

Airport or 
landing field 
(CUP 
Heliport or 
Helistop (CUP) 
Railway Track                                              

Railway 
Track  
(ROW)                                           

Same as MF-1                                              Same as MF-1                                                Same as MF-1                                               

 



Permitted & Conditional Use Table - General Retail (GR) 

Agricultural Uses Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 

Single Family Residence (Detached & Attached)                                                                
Duplex                                                                                    
Townhouse                                                                            
Industrialized Housing                                                      
Family or Group Home                                                       
Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service Uses 
Most Retail & Service Uses                                               
Alcoholic Beverage Sales, off-premise   consumption, 
package Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 

Plumbing Shop                                                                               
Upholstery Shop                                                                   
Kennel without Veterinary Hospital (CUP)                     
Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 
Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching Plat (CUP)                                                                                     
Laboratory, medical, dental, scientific or research                                                                      
Recycling collection location  

Recreational Uses 
Park or Playground                                                             
Beer & Wine (On Premise Consumption) < 75% 

Vehicle Service Uses 

Auto Leasing, Rental                                                           
Auto Sales - New & Used (outside Lot)                         
Car Wash                                                                                                                                          
Vehicle Servicing  (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses With & Without Drive-In 
Overnight 
Accommodations 

Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses Emergency Vehicle Service                                              
Helistop  

 
Surrounding Property Uses 

 
 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Auto-Urban Multi-Family /  
Auto Urban Commercial 

PD-MF-1, 
MF-2 & 

AG 

Single Family Residence on 
Acreage 

North Auto Urban Multi-Family /  
Auto-Urban Residential 

MF-1 & 
AG 

Scattered SF Uses  

South Auto Urban Commercial C, GR & 
AG 

Scattered Non-Residential & 
SF Uses on Acreage 

East Auto Urban Commercial / 
Industrial 

LI Undeveloped & Scattered 
Industrial Uses 

West TMED PD-O-2 & 
GR 

Scattered Non-Residential, 
MF & SF Uses on Acreage 



 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance 

 
Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map PARTIAL 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 

Dimensional Standards 
 

 

Current  
(PD-MF-1) 

UDC Sec. 4.5 
MF Dwelling 
  

Proposed  
(SFA-3) 

UDC Sec. 4.5.2 
SF Attached 

“Townhome” 

Current 
(MF-2) 

UDC Sec. 4.5.1 
 

Proposed 
(SF-3) 

UDC Sec 4.5.1 
“SF Dwelling” 

Minimum Lot Size 3,000 SF 2,300 SF   5,000 SF 4,000 SF 

Minimum Lot 
Width 60 Feet 20 Feet 50 Feet 40 Feet 

Minimum Lot 
Depth 120 Feet 100 Feet 100 Feet 100 Feet 

Front Setback 25 Feet 15 Feet 25 Feet 15 Feet 

Side Setback 15 Feet                5/0 Feet 10% Lot Width  
5 Feet Min. 5 Feet 

Side Setback 
(corner) 15 Feet 15 Feet 15 Feet 15 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet 5 Feet 10 Feet 10 Feet 
Max Building 

Height 2 Stories 2 ½  Stories 4 Stories 2 ½  Stories 
 
 
 



Dimensional Standards (Cont) 
 

 

Current  (AG)  
Residential 

Proposed (GR) 
Non-Res 

Minimum Lot Size 1 Acre N/A 
Minimum Lot Width 100 Feet N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth 150 Feet N/A 

Front Setback 50 Feet 15 Feet  

Side Setback 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Rear Setback 10 Feet  10 Feet 
Max Building Height 3 Stories 3 Stories 

 
 
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or use -  UDC 

Section 4.4.4.F3 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to residential 
uses are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but not limited to: 
* Landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 
 



Maps 
 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 
 

 
 

Location Map 



 

 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Zoning Map (Current & Proposed PD-Base) 



 
 

Future Land Use Map 
 

 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 



 
 

Utility Map 
 

 
 

Notification Map 







mbaker
Typewritten Text
2X -  Represents Two Separate Properties



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 17, 2017 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
Item 2: Z-FY-17-25 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a request for 

rezoning for: (1) 2.497 +/- acres from Agricultural (AG) district to General Retail (GR) 
district, (2) 67.455 +/- acres from Planned Development Multi-Family One (PD-MF-1), 
Multi-Family Two (MF-2) and Agricultural (AG) districts to Single-Family Three (SF-3) 
district and (3) 6.606 +/- acres from Planned Development Multi-Family One (PD-MF-1) 
district to Single-Family Attached Three (SFA-3), for a total rezoning of 76.558 +/- acres, 
situated in the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract No. 14, Bell County, Texas, generally 
located east of South Martin Luther King JR Drive and generally south and west of Case 
Road.   

 
Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item was scheduled to go forward to City Council for 
first reading on May 18, 2017 and second reading on June 1, 2017. 

The total project is approximately 76 +/- acres and is bordered by Loop 363 on the east, South 
Martin Luther King Jr. Drive on the west, Case Road to the north and northeast, and Highway 36 
to the south. 

Aerial/location map shown. 

This is a three part request:  6.6 +/- acres proposed for townhomes of Single Family Attached-
Three (SFA-3) zoning; 67 +/- acres proposed for detached Single Family-Three (SF-3) zoning, 
and 2.49 +/- for General Retail (GR) zoning. 

There is a potential future expansion for a partial abandonment of Case Road and the potential 
acquisition of approximately 3.355 +/- City-owned property. 
 
Ordinance No. 95-2314 – Planned Development PD-MF-1 (portion) was originally intended for a 
Retirement Center for Elderly and Disabled Persons and approximately 12.5 +/- acres. This was 
the only permitted use within the Ordinance and was never built. The applicant is currently 
proposing to construct townhomes which does require a rezoning. 

The remaining portion of that PD, the MF-2 and the larger AG zoned land is desired for the Single 
Family Detached homes. 

Approximately 335 lots are being considered within the area, 50-feet by 120-feet average lot size, 
and around 6,000 square feet. This does exceed the minimum required lot square footage for SF-
3 which is 4,000 square feet. 

The GR is proposed for the smaller two acre portion and would provide a retail and service use 
opportunity along Loop 363. Those uses as GR are not permitted in AG zoning. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate the subject property as Auto Urban Multi-
Family which is intended for multi-family development and supports SFA-3 but does not support 
SF-3 zoning. 

The Auto Urban Commercial is intended for Commercial and supports the GR zoning but does not 
support the SF-3.  The request is only partially compliant. 



Both water and sewer are available to serve the property. During the platting process, the 
Development Review Committee (DRC) would look at existing facilities, drainage and other 
platted-related issues to proceed with development. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates South Martin Luther King Drive as a minor arterial. No 
anticipated Transportation Capital Improvements Programs (TCIP) are funded or scheduled. Case 
Road is designated as a collector. Any needed right-of-way would be addressed during the 
platting process and DRC. 

Sidewalks would be addressed during the platting process. 

No trails have been identified along these corridors. 

On-site photos shown. 

Surrounding properties include single family residential uses (Village at Meadowbend and 
Meadows at Creekside subdivisions), zoned PD-MF-1, to the north, undeveloped land with 
scattered retail and service uses, zoned AG and GR, to the south, existing retail and service uses 
(Country Lane Commercial Subdivision), zoned PD-O-2 and GR, to the west, and a city owned 
tract, BNSF Service Road, zoned LI, and Case Road to the east. 

Use comparison chart for existing and proposed zoning shown (residential only) (chart is not all 
inclusive). PD-MF-1 only allows the Retirement Center for Elderly and Disabled Persons which 
was never built. 

Allowed GR uses shown (not all inclusive). 

Current and proposed Development Standards given. 

Per UDC Section 7.7.4 – Buffering and Screening: may consist of evergreen hedges composed of 
five-gallon plants or larger, with a planted height of six-feet on 36-inch centers;  

May consist of a six-foot to eight-foot high fence or wall, constructed by any number of allowed 
materials per UDC Section 7.7.5, such as: 

Wood, 
Masonry, 
Stone or pre-cast concrete 

Twenty-three notices were mailed out in accordance with all state and local regulations with one 
notice returned in agreement and zero notices returned in disagreement. One notice returned with 
no response indicated. 

This request is in compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan, public facilities are available to serve 
the site, and it is compatible with surrounding uses and zoning. 

The request is in partial compliance with the Future Land Use and Character Map. 

Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from PD-MF-1, MF-2 and AG Districts to 
SF-3, SFA-3 and GR Districts. 

Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing. 

Mr. John Kiella, Kiella Development, 11122 Whiterock Drive, Temple, Texas stated he represents 
the developer. Mr. Kiella has been working with Temple Independent School District (TISD) 
Superintendent and Staff about multiple projects occurring within the TISD for new school sites. 

The possible abandonment of Case Road would only make the development better. 

Mr. Kiella has met with TxDOT regarding three new roads and everyone seems to be in 
agreement.   



There being no further speakers, Chair Rhoads closed the public hearing.   

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 2, Z-FY-17-25, as presented, and 
Commissioner Ward made a second. 

Motion passed:  (6:0) 
Vice-Chair Fettig and Commissioners Jones and Marshall absent 

 



1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4843 
(Z-FY-17-25) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 2.497 
ACRES; A REZONING FROM PLANNED DEVELOPMENT MULTI-FAMILY 
ONE, MULTI-FAMILY TWO, AND AGRICULTURAL ZONING DISTRICTS 
TO SINGLE FAMILY THREE ZONING DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 
67.455 ACRES; A REZONING FROM PLANNED DEVELOPMENT MULTI-
FAMILY ONE ZONING DISTRICT TO SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED THREE 
ZONING DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 6.606 ACRES, FOR A TOTAL 
REZONING OF APPROXIMATELY 76.558 ACRES, SITUATED IN THE 
MAXIMO MORENO SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 14, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
GENERALLY LOCATED EAST OF SOUTH MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. 
DRIVE, AND GENERALLY SOUTH AND WEST OF CASE ROAD; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 

General Retail zoning district on approximately 2.497 acres, a rezoning from Planned 
Development Multi-Family One, Multi-Family Two and Agricultural zoning districts to 
Single-Family Three zoning districts on approximately 67.455 acres,  and a rezoning from 
Planned Development Multi-Family One zoning district to Single-Family Attached-Three 
zoning district on approximately 6.606 acres, for a total rezoning of approximately 76.558  
acres, situated in the Maximo Moreno Survey, Abstract No. 14, Bell County, Texas, generally 
located east of South Martin Luther King Jr. Drive, and generally south and west of Case 
Road, as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all 
purposes. 

 
Part 2: Staff recommends approval of the rezoning from Agricultural zoning district 

to General Retail zoning district; from Planned Development Multi-Family One, Multi-Family 
Two, and Agricultural zoning districts to Single-Family Three zoning district; and from 
Planned Development Multi-Family-One zoning district to Single-Family Attached Three 
zoning district.  

 
Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if 
any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared 
invalid by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or 
sections of this ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council 
without the incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph 
or section. 



2 
 

 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 18th day of 

May, 2017. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 1st day of June, 2017. 

     
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(S) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 6 
 
DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Lynn Barrett, Assistant Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  SECOND READING - Z-FY-17-26: Consider adopting an ordinance authorizing 
a rezoning and Site Development Plan from Agricultural, Light Industrial, Single Family Three and Office 
Two zoning districts to Planned Development General Retail with a conditional use permit for the sale 
of alcoholic beverages for on-site consumption, where the sale of alcohol may be 75% or more of the 
total revenue, and Planned Development Single Family Three on 185.634 acres of Outblocks 2075-A, 
2050-D, 2050-A, 2068-A, 2067-A, 2074-A situated in the Baldwin Robertson Survey, Abstract No. 17, 
Bell County, Texas, located at Westfield Boulevard and State Highway 36. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval of the following uses, conditions, and 
exceptions within each proposed planned development district: 
 
PD-GR:  

1. Allowance of the following uses by right within the PD-GR district: 
• All uses identified in Sec. 5.1 Use Table that are permitted in the General Retail District 

(GR) 
• Vertical Mixed Use allowing for multifamily elements and general retail elements to be 

combined in a single multi-story building (UDC Section 5.1 waived) 
• Multiple Family Dwelling -3 (UDC Section 5.1 waived) 

 
2. On designated districts of the Site Development Plan, shown along the Airport Road frontage, 

approval of a Conditional Use Permit for alcoholic beverage sales where the sale of all alcoholic 
beverages for on premise consumption may be: 

• 75% or more of the total revenue; or 
• >50% & < 75% 
• up to 50% 

 
3. Provision of a continuous buffer, along the common boundary between nonresidential or 

multiple-family uses and an agricultural or residential district only (buffering from internal uses 
is waived) will be the responsibility of the non-residential developer at permitting - eliminating 
the required continuous buffering along the common boundary between nonresidential or 
multiple-family uses and agricultural or residential uses. (UDC Section 7.7.4 location waived 
above). 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 6 

 
Applicant will request that the City Council allow for a variance to the prohibition of the sale of 
alcoholic beverages within 300’ of a park or residentially zoned or developed lot (UDC Section 
5.3.15).  This item will be considered by City Council as a separate resolution per Section 109.33: 
Sales Near School, Church, or Hospital of Title 4 of the Texas Alcoholic Beverage Code. 
Distance requirements from schools, churches and hospitals will still be applicable.  
 
PD-SF-3:  

1. The following changes to the residential dimensional standards for the district identified in UDC 
Section 4.5.1 for Single Family Detached Dwellings in a SF-3 district. 

• Reduction in the minimum side corner yard setback standard from 15’ to 10’  
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their April 17, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted six to zero for approval of the PD, removing a staff requested 
condition related to requiring notification of potential homeowners of the airport’s proximity through a 
deed restriction process. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Ronald Mikeska of West Tanglefoot Development, on behalf of property owners 
John Kiella and Thomas Baird,  is seeking a rezoning of +/- 185 acres to a Planned Development 
modeled after the nearby Westfield Master Plan. The applicant is proposing a design concept that will 
involve the integration of a mix of zonings and uses to create a unique planned community where 
residents can live, shop and play accessing amenities and shopping by means of a connected 
trail/sidewalk system modeled on the successful Westfield development to the south. The applicant is 
proposing to introduce multiple elements once again into a large multi-zoned planned development. 
The proposed development will include: 
 

1. Professional and retail shops; 
2. Live/work mixed use dwelling/retail units;  
3. Mix of residential development integrating single family detached and multi-family uses into a 

single planned community; and 
4. Pocket parks/ green space dispersed throughout the development with interior sidewalk 

connectivity.  
 
The applicant has requested numerous changes to conventional zoning to achieve this unique design 
more completely summarized in the staff recommendation. These changes include: 
 

1. Additional uses integrated into the conventional General Retail District – such as vertical mixed 
use, multifamily uses, and restaurants and bars. 

2. Changes to dimensional standards for Single Family Dwelling-3 (SF-3) calling for a reduction in 
the minimum side corner yard setback standard  

 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT REVIEW CRITERIA 
The Unified Development Code states, that when considering a Planned Development, the approving 
body should consider the following: 
 

1. Conformance to the Design and Development Standards Manual; 
2. The environmental impact of the development to the site and surrounding neighborhood; 
3. The compatibility with the use, character and design of the surrounding neighborhood; 



06/01/17 
Item #4(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 6 

 
4. The provision of safe and effective vehicular and pedestrian circulation; 
5. The safety and convenience of off street parking and loading facilities; 
6. Compliance of streets with city codes and the Thoroughfare Plan; 
7. The design of open space ensuring that such design is suitable for recreation and conservation 

uses; 
8. The provision of adequate utilities, drainage, and refuse disposal. 

 
The subject property will address planned development review criteria as follows:  
 

1. The Planned Development rezoning is being considered with a plat to follow. Proposed streets 
and utility infrastructure will be constructed in conformance with the Design and Development 
Standards Manual. The applicant has requested no exceptions to street or utility provision 
standards.  

2. The applicant is proposing a mixed-use higher density development project designed to provide 
opportunities for residents to access amenities and entertainment opportunities close to where 
they live - conceptually eliminating the number of automobile trips to destination points around 
the city. Drainage and other environmental impacts will be reviewed as part of the platting 
process and the applicant will be required to address any concerns related to the impact of the 
project to the surrounding properties.   

3. This area is characterized by the placement of similar uses to what is proposed. The area 
provides a mix of uses to include residential (varying densities), retail, office, public institutional 
(schools) and recreation uses. The applicant is proposing similar uses with the introduction of 
vertical mixed use and multi-family uses which are similar to those allowed on nearby properties 
in the Westfield Master Plan.  

4. The applicant has proposed an interconnected network of sidewalks to allow safe pedestrian 
passage between retail, residential and recreational uses to include the nearby Crossroads 
Community Park under construction to the south east of the proposed development.  

5. Parking and circulation for emergency vehicle response access will be further reviewed in the 
final platting process. Parking and loading concerns will be addressed with the building permits 
and related site plans. 

6. All proposed streets will be constructed in compliance with city codes and reflect consistency 
with proposed alignments and classifications identified in the City Thoroughfare Plan.  

7. The proposed Planned Development integrates open space with retail and residential uses of 
varying intensities.   

8. The applicant has provided sidewalks to ensure pedestrian access to pocket parks, 
greenspaces and the nearby Crossroads Community Park. 

9. The subject site is served by multiple water and sewer lines. The proposed utility layout will be 
reviewed as part of the platting process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 4 of 6 

 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table provides the direction from the property, 
Future Land Use Plan (FLUP) designation, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

 
Direction 

 
FLUP 

 
Zoning 

 
Current Land Use 

Subject Property  Agricultural Rural  AG; O-2, SF-3, LI;  Undeveloped 

North  Public Institutional; 
Agricultural/Rural   

AG; O-2; SF-3, LI Undeveloped, Airport property 

South  Suburban Residential ;  AG, SF-3, PD-GR; PD-
SF-3;  

School, Residential, 
Undeveloped  

East  Agricultural Rural   LI; AG Undeveloped, Charter School 

West  Agricultural/Rural SF-2; AG Undeveloped; Residential  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 
 

Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and Character (FLUP) No 
CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  Yes 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development patterns should be consistent 
with the City’s infrastructure and public service capacities Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance Yes 
CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
Future Land Use and Character Plan (FLUP) (CP Map 3.1) 
Due to the size of the tract, the subject property resides within multiple future land use character areas 
to include: Suburban Residential, Suburban Commercial, and Agricultural/Rural, into which 
designation the entire tract falls. Suburban Residential is the dominant future land use, other than 
Agricultural, identified for this area. The Choices ’08 City of Temple Comprehensive Plan states that 
the Suburban Residential character district is suited for mid-sized single family lots, allowing for greater 
separation between dwellings and more emphasis on green spaces versus streets and driveways. The 
lot size may be reduced in developments that make corresponding increases in open space on the site 
to maintain the suburban character. The predominant density proposed by the developer is the most 
dense single family detached lot size identified in the Unified Development Code. Additionally, the 
applicant has asked for an adjustment in the dimensional standards for side corner setbacks which 
matches the request from the previous Master Plan development, Westfield.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



06/01/17 
Item #4(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 5 of 6 

 
Although this intensity is greater than what is prescribed for this character area, the unique design 
elements combined with pocket parks, an integrated trail system and proposed connections to the 
nearby Crossroad Community park (south east of the development) provide an opportunity to create a 
unique walkable setting where residents can enjoy opportunities to live, shop and play in one integrated 
community. While not compliant with the Future Land Use Map, this use is compatible with surrounding 
similar uses in the Westfield Master Plan and nearby.  
 
Staff recommends amending the Future land Use Map to accommodate these unique development 
opportunities in the area. The area identified as Suburban Commercial is compatible with the proposing 
rezoning which calls for retail uses in those respective areas.  
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) and Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalk Ordinance 
The subject property is bounded by the following streets: North Pea Ridge Road, Prairie View Road, 
Airport Road; and Westfield Boulevard, which will be extended to connect with Airport Road. 
Additionally a Collector connecting Westfield Boulevard to North Pea Ridge and proposed to extend 
further to the west to SH 317 is proposed. The following roads have been identified in the Future 
Thoroughfare Plan Map and will be identified on the corresponding plat where additional right-of way 
is needed.  
 

• North Pea Ridge Road- Proposed Collector 
• Prairie View Road-Proposed Minor Arterial 
• Westfield Boulevard- Extension of Minor Arterial 
• Airport Road- Major Arterial 
• Un named  Collector to connect Westfield Boulevard to North Pea Ridge 

 
Sidewalks have been proposed on both sides of Westfield Boulevard and on one side of the proposed 
new Collector as well as along several of the interior streets and North Drive which connects with 
Northgate Loop which is within the existing Northgate Subdivision. A sidewalk is installed along Prairie 
View Road where the GR use is proposed. A minimum 4’ sidewalk is required on collector streets and 
6’ sidewalks are required along arterials.  
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sanitary sewer and water are available to the subject property through potential connections from both 
the south and north of the subject property.    
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The development site plan will provide the development and 
dimensional standards for this development. Except where otherwise provided the dimensional 
standards identified for the base zoning district shall be followed. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: 102 notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent out 
to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City Ordinance.  
As of noon Tuesday May 9, 2017, 71 notices have been returned in favor of the proposed rezoning (39 
from the developers) and one notice has been returned in opposition to the proposed rezoning. The 
newspaper printed the notice of the public hearing on April 6, 2017, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(S) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 6 of 6 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning & Location Map 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Development Site Plan  
Future Land Use and Character Map    
Localized area of the Thoroughfare & Trails Plan (combined) 
Utility Map 
Notification Map 
Zoning Summary Table  
Returned Property Owner Notices 
Ordinance  
  



 

Northgate 

Master 

Plan Area 

Zoning 

Map 
Legend 

 
Light Industrial 

 Single Famly-3 

 AG 

 Office Two 

Single Family-2 

 General Retail 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SITE PHOTOS 
Prairie View/Westfield Boulevard  

 

VIEW TO NORTH 

Westfield Blvd to be extended 



 

VIEW TO EAST 

Prairie View Rd 

VIEW TO WEST 

Westfield Blvd 



 
North Pea Ridge Rd 

 

VIEW TO 

SOUTH 

Prairie View  

SITE AND VIEW 

TO EAST 



 

 
 

VIEW TO 

SOUTH 

N Pea Ridge Rd  

VIEW TO 

NORTH 

N Pea Ridge Rd  



Airport Rd 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N Pea Ridge Rd  

VIEW TO WEST 

SITE AND VIEW TO SOUTH 
 

Northgate  



 

 

 

 

VIEW TO WEST 

Airport Rd  

VIEW TO EAST 

Airport Rd  

Airport Rd  

VIEW TO NORTH 





Date: 4/6/2017

D
EW

B
ER

R
Y
 L
N

PRAIRIEVIEWRD W
ES

TF
IE
LD

 B
LV

D

A
IRPO

RT RD
(H
W
Y 36)

LAKE POINTE DR

G
A
R
D
EN

G
R
EE

N
D
R

PHEASANTTRAILDR

FA
W
N

LI
LY

D
R

K
IS
K
A
D
EE

B
R
A
N
C
H
 D

R
LI
LA

C
LE

D
G
E 
D
R

JU
N
EB

ER
R
Y
P
A
R
K
D
R

AIRPORTTRL

A
IR
P
O
R
T 
TR

L

LI
G
H
TN

ER
 L
N

NORTHGATELOOP

H
O
N
EY

H
IL
L
D
R

HILLSIDEDR

IR
O
N
 G
LE

N
 D

R

OLDGATERD

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-02

Address :
Northgate Master Plan

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/6/2017
 lrbarrett

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea

6



Date: 4/6/2017

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

D
EW

B
ER

R
Y
 L
N

PRAIRIE VIEWRD

PRAIRIEVIEWRD

W
ES

TF
IE
LD

B
LV

D

A
IRPO

RT RD
(H
W
Y 36)

LAKE POINTE DR

G
A
R
D
EN

G
R
EE

N
D
R

PHEASANTTRAILDR

FA
W
N

LI
LY

D
R

K
IS
K
A
D
EE

B
R
A
N
C
H
 D

R
LI
LA

C
LE

D
G
E 
D
R

JU
N
EB

ER
R
Y
P
A
R
K
D
R

AIRPORTTRL

A
IR
P
O
R
T 
TR

L

LI
G
H
TN

ER
 L
N

NORTHGATELOOP

H
O
N
EY

H
IL
L
D
R

HILLSIDEDR

IR
O
N
 G
LE

N
 D

R

OLDGATERD

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

Ü

Address :
Northgate Master Plan

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/6/2017
 lrbarrett

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-26



GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF GF

GF

GFGF GFGF

GF
GF

GF

8 24

12

2

1
8

6

1

8

6

24

2

8

8 8

2

2

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

HILLSIDEDR

LI
G
H
TN

ER
 L
N

A
IR
PO

R
T 
TR

L

IR
O
N
 G
LE

N
 D
R

PHEASANTTRAILDR

NORTHGATELOOP

LI
LA

C
LE

D
G
E 
D
R

JU
N
EB

ER
R
Y
P
A
R
K
D
R

OLDGATERD

K
IS
K
A
D
EE

B
R
A
N
C
H
 D
R

N
O
R
TH

D
R

AIRPO
RT

RD
(H
W
Y
36)

PRAIRIEVIEWRD

W
ES

TF
IE
LD

 B
LV

D

Ü AG, LI, O-2
TO PD-GR, PD-SF-3

Address :
Northgate Master Plan

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 4/6/2017

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-26



W
ES

TF
IE
LD

 B
LV

D

PRAIRIEVIEWRD

PRAIRIEVIEWRD

A
IRPO

RT RD
 (H

W
Y 36)

K
IS
K
A
D
EE

 B
R
A
N
C
H
 D

R

LAKE POINTE DR

JU
N
EB

ER
R
Y 
P
A
R
K
 D

R

LI
G
H
TN

ER
 L
N

N
O
R
TH

 D
R

IR
O
N
 G
LE

N
 D

R

PHEASANTTRAILDR

LI
LA

C
 L
ED

G
E 
D
R

NORTHGATELOOP

H
O
N
EY

H
IL
L
D
R

HILLSIDE
D
R

OLDGATERD

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

N
 P
EA

 R
ID

G
E 
R
D

Ü

Date: 4/6/2017
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-26

AG, LI, O2 TO
 PD-SF-3, PD-GR

Address :
Northgate Master Plan

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

CaseArea

Buffer



Northgate Master Development 
 

Planned 

Development  

Allowed Uses  UDC Limitations/Conditions to be 

waived  

Prohibited 

Uses  
Specific Standards/ Conditions 

P
D

-G
R

 

All uses permitted in 

General Retail  

Section 7.7.4  

Eliminating the required continuous 

buffering along the common boundary 

between nonresidential or multiple-

family uses and agricultural or 

residential uses within PD-GR. 

Asphalt or 

Concrete 

Batching Plant 

(temporary) 

Section 7.7.4  

Continuous buffering is required along 

the common boundary between 

nonresidential or multiple-family uses and 

an agricultural or residential zoning 

district within PD-GR. APPLICABLE  

Alcoholic Beverage 

Sales for on premise 

consumption: beer 

and wine only less 

than 75% revenue 

from alcohol  

 

 

 

Section 5.3.1 B  

Distance requirements from church, 

school or public hospital APPLICABLE 

Requires a CUP in GR 

Alcoholic Beverage 

Sales for on premise 

consumption: all 

alcoholic beverages 

75% or more revenue   

Section 5.3.15C: 

Distance requirements from residential 

and will require a separate City 

Council Variance. 

 
Section 5.3.1 C  

Distance requirements from church, 

school or public hospital APPLICABLE 

Requires a CUP in GR 

Alcoholic Beverage 

Sales for on premise 

consumption: all 

alcoholic beverages 

more than 50% and 

less than 75% revenue 

 

  

 
Section 5.3.1 B  

Distance requirements from school or 

public hospital APPLICABLE 

Requires a CUP in GR 

 

Vertical Mixed Use 

(Multi-family) and 

Multi-Family 

See Multi-family 

Section 5.1: Use not allowed in GR - 

allowed by right in PD-GR  

  

 

Section 5.3.3 

Yard Requirements APPLICABLE 

P
D - S
F 3
 Single Family 

Detached Dwelling 

Section 4.5.1 –  

 Reduce Min Side (Corner) yard 

setback from 15’ to 10’ 

 

 



 

















































































 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
06/01/17 

Item #4(T) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution appointing election judge(s) and setting their 
compensation for the City’s Special election to be held on Saturday, June 24, 2017.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This proposed resolution recommends the appointment of election judge(s) and sets 
their compensation for the City’s Special election to be held on Saturday, June 24, 2017.    
 
On February 2, 2017, the City Council ordered an Election for May 6, 2017, for both the District 2 
Councilmember and the District 3 Councilmember positions. Since there was only one candidate for 
these seats, Bryant Ward (District 2 candidate) and Susan Long (District 3 candidate), the Council 
declared the unopposed candidates elected to office and canceled the May 6, 2017 election, as 
ordered. 
 
On April 6, 2017, Mr. Ward (officer-elect for District 2) submitted his Letter of Declination for 
councilmember. The vacancy for District 2 Councilmember becomes effective immediately; and as a 
result, the City will need to conduct a special election to fill this vacancy. The Council then ordered the 
Special Election for June, on April 20, 2017. 
 
Attached is a resolution for election judges being recommended for appointment at the Election Day 
polling place and for the Early Voting Ballot Board. The compensation for election judge and clerks is 
recommended to be set at $10.00 per hour in accordance with provisions in §32.091 of the Election 
Code. The election judge or clerk who delivers the precinct election records, keys to ballot boxes or 
other election equipment, and unused election supplies after an election is entitled to compensation for 
that service in an amount not to exceed $25. 
 
The Election Judge(s) and members of the Early Voting Ballot Board are entitled to the same 
compensation as presiding election judges, in accordance with provisions in §87.005 of the Election 
Code, however, the minimum compensation to each member of the Early Voting Ballot Board is 
recommended to be $50. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The anticipated expenditures related to the City’s Special election to be held on 
Saturday, June 24, 2017 are estimated at $1,780. Funds are appropriated in the FY2017 Operating 
Budget in account 110-1400-511-2517, election expense, in an amount of $11,439.   
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8672-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPOINTING ELECTION JUDGES AND SETTING THEIR 
COMPENSATION FOR THE CITY OF TEMPLE’S SPECIAL ELECTION 
TO BE HELD ON SATURDAY, JUNE 24, 2017; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
  
 Whereas, on February 2, 2017 the City Council ordered an Election for May 6, 2017, 
for the election of District 2 and District 3 Councilmember positions; 
 
 Whereas, since there was only one candidate for these seats, Bryant Ward (District 2 
candidate) and Susan Long (District 3 candidate), the City Council declared the unopposed 
candidates elected to office and canceled the May 6, 2017 election, as ordered; 
 
 Whereas, on April 6, 2017, Mr. Ward (officer-elect for District 2) submitted his 
Letter of Declination for Councilmember and that vacancy for District 2 Councilmember 
became effective immediately - as a result, the City of Temple will need to conduct a Special 
Election to fill this vacancy; 
 

Whereas, on April 20, 2017, the City Council ordered the Special Election for June, 
2017;  
 

Whereas, compensation for election judges and clerks is recommended to be set at 
$10 per hour in accordance with the provisions of §32.091 of the Election Code;  

 
Whereas, funding for the June 24, 2017 Special Election is appropriated in the fiscal 

year 2017 budget Account No. 110-1400-511-2517; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2:  The following persons are hereby appointed Presiding Judges and alternate 
Presiding Judges, respectively, for the June 24, 2017, election: 
 
 Election Day Polling Location Fred Poteet Building 
      120 West Central Avenue 
 
 Presiding Judge   Roosevelt Ellis, Jr. 
 Alternate Presiding Judge  Genevieve Stolleis  
 
 



2 
 

 
 
 
 Early Voting Location  Municipal Building, 
      2 North Main Street 
      (between Central and Adams) 
 
 Presiding Judge   Patricia Sims  
 Alternate Presiding Judge  Marian Bergmann  
      
 Part 3:  In the case of death, inability or refusal of any person appointed as a 
presiding judge to act, the Mayor shall have the authority and he is hereby directed to appoint 
some suitable person or persons to act instead.  The presiding judges for each city council 
election district are authorized to appoint not less than two or more than three election clerks 
to assist the judge in the conduct of the election at the polling place served by the judge.  The 
Early Voting Ballot Board shall count the ballots cast during early voting for the election in 
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 87 of the Texas Election Code.  Early voting 
ballots will in every case be treated as a separate precinct and a separate set of returns will be 
made for early voting ballots. 
 
 Part 4:  As compensation for services rendered at the precinct polling place, election 
judges and clerks shall receive $10.00 per hour in accordance with provisions in §32.091 of 
the Election Code. The election judge or clerk who delivers the precinct election records, 
keys to ballot boxes or other election equipment, and unused election supplies after an 
election is entitled to compensation for that service in an amount not to exceed $25. 

 
Part 5:  The election judge and members of the early voting ballot board are entitled 

to the same compensation as presiding election judges, in accordance with provisions in 
§87.005 of the Election Code, however, the minimum compensation to each member of the 
early voting ballot board shall be $50. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 

Item #4(U) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing continued utilization of the JP Morgan 
Chase Bank N.A. commercial card program through August 31, 2019, as procured by the City of Fort 
Worth.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The City has utilized the JP Morgan Chase commercial card program, commonly 
referred to within the City of Temple as a Purchasing Card or P-Card Program, under a Participation 
Agreement with JP Morgan Chase executed in February, 2011. The JP Morgan Chase contract was 
procured by the City of Fort Worth, and as such, the City has a cooperative purchasing agreement with 
the City of Fort Worth which allows the City of Temple to utilize the JP Morgan Chase contract.   
 
The City of Fort Worth originally entered into a contract with JP Morgan Chase in 2010, and through 
amendments to the agreement extended the contract until August 31, 2017, with the option to renew 
the agreement for up to two, two-year periods.  On March 27, 2017, the City of Ft. Worth exercised its 
option to renew the JP Morgan Chase contract for an additional two-year period, which has extended 
the JP Morgan Chase contract until August 31, 2019. One additional two-year renewal remains on the 
contract.   
 
All City of Temple departments utilize the use of P-Cards to supplement and enhance the procurement 
of maintenance, repairs, travel, and miscellaneous operational expenses.  P-Cards are not intended to 
replace effective procurement planning or void any purchasing polices or procedures, but are used to 
improve purchasing efficiency. The City currently has 376 P-Cards with an average of 157 being used 
monthly. For FY 2016, $4,040,706 of City purchases were procured using P-Cards.  
 
Under the program, the City earns an annual rebate. The annual rebate received in November 2016 
was $63,538.   
 
The City has been pleased with the operation of the JP Morgan Chase commercial card program and 
the service received from JP Morgan Chase.  In addition, an interface is already in place that allows for 
efficient weekly processing of P-Card transactions through the JP Morgan Chase system into the City’s 
Naviline business operating system.  Accordingly, it is staff’s recommendation to continue utilizing of 
the JP Morgan Chase contract procured by the City of Fort Worth.   

 
 



06/01/17 
Item #4(U) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: There is no annual fee or transaction fees for P-Cards.  Annual rebates are paid to 
the City. The rebate is a variable percentage based on total annual dollars spent through the program.  
The P-Card rebate received for FY 2016 was $63,538.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  
 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8673-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING CONTINUED UTILIZATION OF THE JP 
MORGAN CHASE BANK N.A. COMMERCIAL CARD PROGRAM 
THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2019, AS PROCURED BY THE CITY OF 
FORT WORTH; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, the City has utilized the JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. commercial card 
program, commonly referred to within the City of Temple as a “Purchasing Card” or “P-
Card” program, under a Participation Agreement with JP Morgan Chase executed in 
February, 2011; 
 

Whereas, the JP Morgan Chase contract was procured by the City of Fort Worth, 
and as such, the City has a cooperative purchasing agreement with the City of Fort Worth 
which allows the City of Temple to utilize the JP Morgan Chase contract;   
 

Whereas, the City of Fort Worth originally entered into a contract with JP 
Morgan Chase in 2010, and through amendments to the agreement, extended the contract 
until August 31, 2017, with the option to renew the agreement for up to two, two-year 
periods; 

 
Whereas, on March 27, 2017, the City of Fort Worth exercised its option to 

renew the JP Morgan Chase contract for an additional two-year period, which has 
extended the JP Morgan Chase contract until August 31, 2019 – there is one additional 
two-year renewal remaining on the contract; 
 

Whereas, all City of Temple departments utilize the P-Cards to supplement and 
enhance the procurement of maintenance, repairs, travel, and miscellaneous operational 
expenses – these P-Cards are not intended to replace effective procurement planning or 
void any purchasing polices or procedures, but are used to improve purchasing 
efficiency; 

 
Whereas, under the program, the City earns an annual rebate - the annual rebate 

received in November 2016 was $63,538;   
 

Whereas, the City has been pleased with the operation of the JP Morgan Chase 
commercial card program and the service received from JP Morgan Chase; 

 
Whereas, besides the operation and services provided by JP Morgan Chase, an 

interface is already in place within the City of Temple that allows for efficient weekly 
processing of P-Card transactions through the JP Morgan Chase system into the City’s 
Naviline business operating system; 

 
 
 



2 
 

 
 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council authorize the continued utilization of the JP 

Morgan Chase Bank N.A. commercial card program contract procured by the City of Fort 
Worth; 

 
Whereas, there is no annual fee or transaction fee for P-Cards and annual rebates, 

which are a variable percentage based on total annual dollars spend, are paid directly to 
the City; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and 
correct legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, 
and they are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if 
copied in their entirety. 
  
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the continued utilization of the JP Morgan 
Chase Bank N.A. commercial card program through August 31, 2019, as procured by the 
City of Fort Worth. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

   
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

06/01/17 
Item #4(V) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2016-2017. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2016-2017 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The total amount of budget amendments is $124,488. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 
  



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

June 1, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

240-0000-358-1110 Hotel/Motel - Unallocated Fund Balance 50,000$         
240-0000-352-1345 Hotel/Motel - Designated Capital Project / Main Street Arts Project 50,000$         

To undesignate funding for City's 50% required match for the FY 2017 Our Town grant
program.  The City was not awarded the grant.

110-0000-352-1345 Designated Capital Project / Unallocated 25,000$         
110-0000-352-1345 Designated Capital Project / Art Walk Plan 25,000$         

To undesignate funding for City's 50% required match for the FY 2017 Partners for Places
grant program.  The City was not awarded the grant.

110-0000-352-1345 Designated Capital Project / Unallocated 46,363$         
110-0000-352-1345 Designated Capital Project / Fire Fighting Props 46,363$         

To undesignate funding for City's 10% required match for the FY 2015 Assistance to
Firefighters grant program.  The City was not awarded the grant.

110-2033-521-2120 Supplies / Education/Recreation 3,125$           
110-0000-442-0722 Police Revenue / Police Donations/Gifts 1,625$           
110-0000-442-0723 Police Revenue / Dare Donations-Unrestricted 1,500$           

To appropriate donations received from Burgers with the Badge Event, as well as, the
yearly Booster Calendar sales.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 124,488$       124,488$       
Reconciliation

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 5,257$           
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -                    
Taken From Judgments & Damages -                    
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 5,257$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 560,000$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 560,000$       

Net Balance Council Contingency 565,257$       

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$                  
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -                    
Taken From Budget Sweep -                    
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                  

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$         
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Taken From Contingency (41,558)         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 8,442$           

Beginning Compensation Contingency 112,500$       
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 112,500$       

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 120,942$       

1



CITY OF TEMPLE
BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2017 BUDGET

June 1, 2017

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 28,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 28,300$         

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 28,300$         

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -                    
Taken From Contingency -                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                  

Beginning Compensation Contingency 24,300$         
Added to Compensation Contingency -                
Taken From Compensation Contingency -                
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 24,300$         

Net Balance Drainage Fund Contingency 24,300$         

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                  
Carry forward from Prior Year 14,947           
Added to Contingency Sweep Account 22,397           
Taken From Contingency -                    

Net Balance Fed/State Grant Fund Contingency 37,344$         

2



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8674-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2016-2017 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on the 26th day of August, 2016, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2016-2017 fiscal year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2016-2017 City Budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and 
correct legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, 
Texas, and they are hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution 
as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2: The City Council approves amending the 2016-2017 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit ‘A,’ 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
06/01/17 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2  

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 
2206.053 finding that one property situated in the Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 64, and one 
property in the J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract No. 259 and H. Millard Survey, Abstract No. 552, Bell 
County, Texas, are necessary for the proposed expansion of Old Howard Road from Central Pointe 
Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to 
IH-35 and authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn the property.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Old Howard 
Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of Moores Mill Road 
from Old Howard Road to IH-35, including a realigned intersection at Pegasus Drive. The design 
requires the acquisition of right-of-way from 21 different property owners, under Chapter 251, Local 
Government Code § 251.001. The City has acquired ten rights of way and has reached an agreement 
with four property owners.  On March 2, 2017, Council authorized the use of eminent domain for one 
property.   
 
Staff is actively negotiating with each of the remaining property owners and hopes to reach agreements 
with each of them this fiscal year. However, despite negotiations, the City and two property owners 
have not reached an agreement, nor is an agreement anticipated. One property is situated in the 
Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 64, Bell County, Texas and the second property is situated in the 
J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract No. 259, and the H. Millard Survey, Abstract #552, Bell County, Texas. 
The legal description of the real property needed is included with the Resolution attached to this 
memorandum.  The property needed is as follows:  
Property 1:  

• Being 0.520 acre of land, more or less, situated in the Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 64, 
Bell County, Texas, located at 111 Hart Road, Temple, Texas. 
 

o An appraisal was performed on the property and the City made an offer to purchase, 
based on the appraisal, to the owner of record on October 13, 2016, via Lone Star Right-
of-Way Services (Lone Star). 

 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
o The property owner submitted a counteroffer to the City via Lone Star on April 6, 2017.  

The City made a formal counter-response on April 25, 2017 and was refused by the 
owner.   
 

o A final offer was sent on May 8, 2017, and was rejected after 14 days. Staff is asking 
Council to authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the property. 

 
Property 2: 
 

• Being 0.886 acre, more or less, situated in the J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract No. 259 and H. 
Millard Survey, Abstract No. 552, Bell County, Texas, located at the west corner of Old Howard 
Road and Cedar Creek Road, Temple, Texas. 
 

o An appraisal was performed on the property and the City made an offer to purchase, 
based on the appraisal, to the owner of record on September 21, 2016, via Lone Star 
Right-of-Way Services (Lone Star). 
 

o Lone Star, as well as Staff, have tried to contact owner to discuss the needed right of 
way.  Property owner has refused to discuss.   

 
o A final offer letter was sent on April 4, 2017, and was rejected after 14 days. Staff is asking 

Council to authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the property. 
 

Staff is asking pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053, for the City Council to 
authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the property described above, if the parties 
are ultimately unable to reach agreements. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of property 1 is appropriated in account 795-9800-531-
6863, project #101000.  Funding for the purchase of property 2 is appropriated in account 795-9800-
531-6864, project #101001.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Legal Descriptions  
Resolution 
  















1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8675-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, FINDING THAT ONE PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE 
VINCENT BARROW SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 64, AND ONE 
PROPERTY IN THE J.B. DANIEL SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 259 AND 
H. MILLARD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 552, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
ARE NECESSARY FOR THE PROPOSED EXPANSION OF OLD 
HOWARD ROAD FROM CENTRAL POINTE PARKWAY TO MOORES 
MILL ROAD, AS WELL AS AN EXPANSION OF MOORES MILL ROAD 
FROM OLD HOWARD ROAD TO IH-35; AUTHORIZING THE USE OF 
EMINENT DOMAIN TO CONDEMN THE PROPERTY; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the design phase for the proposed expansion of Old 
Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of 
Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35, including a realigned intersection at 
Pegasus Drive - the design requires the acquisition of right-of-way from 21 different property 
owners, under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 251.001; 
 
 Whereas, the City has acquired ten rights of way and has reached an agreement with 
four property owners; 
 
 Whereas, on March 2, 2017, Council authorized the use of eminent domain for one 
property and Staff is actively negotiating with each of the remaining property owners and 
hopes to reach agreements with each of them this fiscal year, however, despite negotiations, 
the City and two property owners have not reached an agreement, nor is an agreement 
anticipated; 
 
 Whereas, one property is situated in the Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 64, 
Bell County, Texas and the second property is situated in the J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract 
No. 259, and the H. Millard Survey, Abstract No. 552, Bell County, Texas; 
 
 Whereas, Staff is asking, pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053, 
for the City Council to authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the 
necessary properties; 
 
 Whereas, the legal descriptions of the properties needed are as follows:  
 

 being 0.520 acre of land, more or less, situated in the Vincent Barrow Survey, 
Abstract No. 64, Bell County, Texas, located at 111 Hart Road, Temple, Texas; 

 
 being 0.886 acre, more or less, situated in the J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract No. 259 

and H. Millard Survey, Abstract No. 552, Bell County, Texas, located at the west 
corner of Old Howard Road and Cedar Creek Road, Temple, Texas; 
 

 Whereas, Staff recommends, pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code 
§2206.053, that Council authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the 
property described above, if the parties are ultimately unable to reach agreements; 



2 
 

 
 

Whereas, funding for the purchase of the above properties is appropriated in Account 
No. 795-9800-531-6863, Project No. 101001; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 
 

Part 2: The City Council hereby finds and determines that the necessity exists for 
acquiring, by eminent domain, one property situated in the Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract 
No. 64, and one property in the J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract No. 259 and H. Millard Survey, 
Abstract No. 552, Bell County, Texas, and that the properties are necessary for the proposed 
expansion of Old Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well 
as an expansion of Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35. 
 

Part 3: The City Council hereby finds and determines that the expansion of Old 
Howard Road from Central Pointe Parkway to Moores Mill Road, as well as an expansion of 
Moores Mill Road from Old Howard Road to IH-35 is a public use under Chapter 251, Local 
Government Code § 251.001(a)(1). 
 

Part 4: The City Council authorizes the use of the City’s eminent domain authority 
under Article 3, Section 3.6, of the Charter of the City of Temple and the initiation of 
condemnation proceedings of said property interests. 
 
 Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act and the 
Truth in Condemnation Act, Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
06/01/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Christina Demirs, Deputy City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 
2206.053 finding that 0.517 acre in fee simple and 0.494-acre and 0.938-acre permanent easements 
situated in the Stephen Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bell County, Texas are necessary for the 
construction of the Shallow Ford Lift Station and Birdcreek Interceptor Phase 5 wastewater line and 
authorizing the use of eminent domain to condemn the property. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City is in the design phase for the proposed construction of the Birdcreek 
Interceptor Phase 5 wastewater line and Shallow Ford Lift Station. The design requires the acquisition 
of 0.517 acre in fee simple for the lift station and 0.494-acre and 0.938-acre permanent easements for 
the wastewater line on land situated in the Stephen Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bell County, 
Texas, for the construction of the lift station and wastewater line with its necessary appurtenances 
under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 251.001. A survey and legal description of the property 
needed are included with the Resolution attached to this memorandum. 

An appraisal was performed on the property and the City made an offer to purchase the necessary 
easements, based on the appraisal, in March 2017, via Lone Star Right of Way Services, Inc. The 
property owner made a counter offer to the City in more than double the appraised value. In response, 
the City made a bona fide final offer to the property owner on May 16, 2017. 

Staff has continued to negotiate with the property owner, but the parties have been unable to come to 
an agreement, and a settlement appears unlikely at this time.  Accordingly, Staff is asking pursuant to 
Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053, for the City Council to authorize the use of the power of 
eminent domain to acquire the property. 

Property in Fee Simple—Being 0.517 acre of land, more or less, situated in the Stephen Frazier Survey, 
Abstract No. 311, Bell County, Texas, located at Shallowford Road, Temple, Texas, Bell County 
Appraisal District ID Number 24787. 

 

 

 



06/01/17 
Item #6 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
Easements—Being 0.938 acre of land, more or less, and being 0.494 acre of land, more or less, 
situated in the situated in the Stephen Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bell County, Texas, located at 
Shallowford Road, Temple, Texas, Bell County Appraisal District ID Number 24787. 
 
Staff is asking pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053, for the City Council to 
authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the property described above, if the parties 
are ultimately unable to reach agreements. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding for the purchase of property located at Shallowford Road, Bell CAD ID 
24787, is appropriated in account 520-5900-535-6110, project #101213. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Legal Descriptions  
Resolution 
  

















1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8676-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, FINDING THAT APPROXIMATELY 0.517 ACRES IN FEE 
SIMPLE AND APPROXIMATELY 0.494 ACRES AND 0.938 ACRES OF 
PERMANENT EASEMENTS SITUATED IN THE STEPHEN FRAZIER 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 311, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, ARE 
NECESSARY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE SHALLOW FORD 
LIFT STATION AND BIRDCREEK INTERCEPTOR PHASE 5 
WASTEWATER LINE; AUTHORIZING THE USE OF EMINENT 
DOMAIN TO CONDEMN THE PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City is currently in the design phase for the proposed construction of 
the Birdcreek Interceptor Phase 5 wastewater line and Shallow Ford Lift Station and the 
design requires the acquisition of approximately 0.517 acre in fee simple for the lift station 
and approximately 0.494-acre and 0.938-acre permanent easements for the wastewater line 
on land situated in the Stephen Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bell County, Texas, with 
its necessary appurtenances under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 251.001; 
 
 Whereas, an appraisal was performed on the property and based on the appraisal in 
March 2017, the City made an offer to purchase the property and necessary easements, via 
Lone Star Right of Way Services, Inc.; 
 
 Whereas, the property owner made a counter offer to the City in more than double 
the appraised value and in response to the property owner’s counter offer, the City made a 
bona fide final offer to the property owner on May 16, 2017 - Staff has continued to 
negotiate with the property owner, but the parties have been unable to come to an agreement, 
and a settlement appears unlikely at this time; 
 
 Whereas, Staff is asking, pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053, 
for the City Council to authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the 
property; 
 
 Whereas, the legal descriptions of the property needed are as follows:  
 

 Property in Fee Simple - being 0.517 acre of land, more or less, situated in the 
Stephen Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bell County, Texas, located at Shallowford 
Road, Temple, Texas, Bell County Appraisal District ID Number 24787; 

 
 Easements - being 0.938 acre of land, more or less, and being 0.494 acre of land, 

more or less, situated in the Stephen Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bell County, 
Texas, located at Shallowford Road, Temple, Texas, Bell County Appraisal District 
ID Number 24787; 

 
 Whereas, Staff recommends, pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 
2206.053, that Council authorize the use of the power of eminent domain to acquire the 
property described above, if the parties are ultimately unable to reach agreements; 
 



2 
 

 
 
Whereas, funding for the purchase of the above property interests is appropriated in 

Account No. 520-5900-535-6110, Project No. 101213; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings.  All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety. 

 
Part 2: The City Council hereby finds and determines that the necessity exists for 

acquiring, by eminent domain, approximately 0.517 acres in fee simple and approximately 
0.494 acres and 0.938 acres of permanent easements on property situated in the Stephen 
Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bell County, Texas, which are needed for the construction 
of the Shallow Ford Lift Station and Birdcreek Interceptor Phase 5 wastewater line. 

 
Part 3: The City Council hereby finds and determines that the construction of the 

proposed Shallow Ford Lift Station and Birdcreek Interceptor Phase 5 wastewater line is a 
public use under Chapter 251, Local Government Code § 251.001(a)(1). 
 

Part 4: The City Council authorizes the use of the City’s eminent domain authority 
under Article 3, Section 3.6, of the Charter of the City of Temple and the initiation of 
condemnation proceedings of said property interests. 
 
 Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act and the 
Truth in Condemnation Act, Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Dessie Redmon, Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing approval of a dual street name of 
South 6th Street/Little Joe Drive on a section of South 6th Street between East Central Avenue and East 
Avenue E in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas and more particularly shown as Exhibit A. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Based on the following, staff recommends approval for the dual naming 
of South 6th Street/Little Joe Drive on a section of South 6th Street between East Central Avenue and 
East Avenue E: 

1. Resolution 2015-2889-R states that public streets may be named to honor or recognize an 
individual that has made a significant impact to the advancement of their profession or 
industry.  

2. Joe Hernandez, renowned as Little Joe y La Familia is internationally known as helping 
pioneer Tejano music with over 50 years of performing, more than 70 albums, and five 
Grammy awards including Best Tejano Album and Best Mexican American Performances. 

 
ITEM SUMMARY: The City Manager received in writing a formal request to dual name South 6th Street 
with “Little Joe Drive” by the League of United Latin American Citizens (LULAC) Council 4971 
(attachment Request Letter) in honor of Joe Hernandez, also renowned as Little Joe y La Familia who 
was born and raised in Temple. Little Joe is internationally known as helping pioneer Tejano music with 
over 50 years of performing, more than 70 albums, and five Grammy awards including Best Tejano 
Album and Best Mexican American Performances.    
 
If this request is approved by City Council, South 6th Street addresses (between East Central Avenue 
and East Avenue E) will remain effective and therefore, should not impact mail delivery or 911 
emergency services.   
 
Based on the fact that “Avenue” is defined as an east/west roadway, combined with input from City 
Council at their May 4, 2017 workshop, staff is recommending “Drive.” 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: If approved, there will be five property owners affected by this change in addition to 
properties owned by the City. Notification letters were sent out to the property owners on May 23, 2017 
(attachment Notification Letter).  
 

 
 



06/01/17 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda  
Page 2 of 2 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Exhibit A 
Resolution 2015-2889-R 
Request Letter 
Notification Letter (example) 
Resolution 

 
  



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

 A request for a portion of S. 6th Street (between E. Central Avenue and E. Avenue E) to include a dual 
name of “Little Joe Drive” as shown in red above.

E. Central Avenue

N

S. 
6t

h 
St

re
et

/L
itt

le 
Jo

e D
riv

e

Map
“Little Joe Drive” Dual Street Naming Request

E. Avenue B

S. 
2n

d 
St

re
et

S. 
M

LK
 Jr

. D
riv

e

E. Avenue E



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Resolution 2015-7889-R



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Resolution 2015-7889-R continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Resolution 2015-7889-R continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Resolution 2015-7889-R continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Resolution 2015-7889-R continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Request Letter continued



06/01/17
Regular Agenda

Notification Letter (example)

Brian Chandler, Director of Planning          City Hall          2 North Main St. Ste. 102         Temple, Texas 76501 

May 23, 2017 

CITY OF TEMPLE 
307 S 6TH ST 
TEMPLE, TX  76501‐7659 

RE:   307 S 6TH ST./ Little Joe Drive Readdressing Proposal  

As a property owner on S. 6th Street between E. Central Avenue and E. Avenue E, the purpose of this 
letter is to notify you that a request has been made to the City Manager to add this portion of S. 6th 
Street as “Little Joe Drive” for a dual name street (see enclosed map). If this proposal is approved by City 
Council, your new address would be: 

307 S 6TH ST./Little Joe Drive, Temple, Texas 76501 

You have the opportunity to speak on this request at the June 1, 2017 City Council meeting, which will 
take place on the 2nd floor of City Hall (2 North Main Street) at 5:00 p.m. If the proposal is approved, 
your S. 6th Street address will remain effective and therefore, it should not impact mail delivery or 911 
emergency services.   

This request was made by The League of United Latin American Citizens (LULAC) Council 4971 in honor 
of Little Joe Hernandez, also renowned as Little Joe y La Familia who was born and raised in Temple. 
Little Joe is internationally known as helping pioneer Tejano music with over 50 years of performing, 
more than 70 albums, and five Grammy awards including Best Tejano Album and Best Mexican 
American Performances (see enclosed letter). If you have comments or questions regarding this request, 
please contact Dessie Redmond, City Planner, at 254‐298‐5270 or dredmond@templetx.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Brian L. Chandler 
City of Temple 
Director of Planning 
254‐298‐5272 
bchandler@templetx.gov 
2 North Main Street 
www.templetx.gov 



1 
 

  
RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8677-R 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING APPROVAL OF A DUAL STREET NAME OF 
SOUTH 6TH STREET/LITTLE JOE DRIVE ON A SECTION OF SOUTH 6TH 
STREET BETWEEN EAST CENTRAL AVENUE AND EAST AVENUE E IN 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City Manager received, in writing, a formal request to dual name a portion of 
South 6th Street with “Little Joe Drive” by the League of United Latin American Citizens (LULAC) 
Council 4971 in honor of Joe Hernandez, also renowned as Little Joe y La Familia who was born 
and raised in Temple; 
 

Whereas, Little Joe is internationally known as helping pioneer Tejano music with over 50 
years of performing, more than 70 albums, and five Grammy awards including Best Tejano Album 
and Best Mexican American Performances;    
 

Whereas, South 6th Street addresses (between East Central Avenue and East Avenue E) will 
remain effective and therefore, approval of a dual street name should not impact mail delivery or 911 
emergency services;   
 
 Whereas, Staff recommends approval of a dual street naming of South 6th Street/Little 
Joe Drive on a section of South 6th Street between East Central Avenue and East Avenue E based 
on the following information: 
 

1. Resolution 2015-2889-R states that public streets may be named to honor or 
recognize an individual that has made a significant impact to the advancement of their 
profession or industry;  

2. Joe Hernandez, renowned as Little Joe y La Familia, is internationally known as 
helping pioneer Tejano music with over 50 years of performing, more than 70 
albums, and five Grammy awards including Best Tejano Album and Best Mexican 
American Performances; and 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 

authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby 
approved and incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 
 Part 2:  The City Council dually names South 6th Street/Little Joe Drive on a section of 
South 6th Street between East Central Avenue and East Avenue E in the City of Temple, Bell 
County, Texas. 



2 
 

 
 
 Part 3:  The City Council authorizes the Acting City Manager, or her designee, after 
approval as to form by the City Attorney, to execute any documents that may be necessary for 
the dual naming of this street. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

06/01/17 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution to accept the 2017 Bend Of The River Botanic 
Garden Master Plan prepared by SWA of Houston. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: In 2015, the City received a grant to develop a master plan for Bend Of The River.  
SWA from Houston, Texas was chosen to prepare the master plan. A nineteen citizen committee was 
assembled to help SWA and the City of Temple create the master plan.  Each Councilmember selected 
a district representative, and then the Department tried to choose a wide array of interested individuals.  
The areas of interest came from the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, Parks Foundation, Keep 
Temple Beautiful, Temple and Belton Independent School Districts, Temple Economic Development 
Corporation, Temple College, Baylor Scott & White, the Talasek family, etc.   

 
Some of the highlights of SWA’s scope of work included: engaging and building community support, 
addressing community concerns through outreach and education, facilitating four workshops, 
developing capital and maintenance and operational budgets, helping with the cleanup costs, etc.  
   
At the May 18, 2017, Council workshop, Council was presented a brief overview of the Master Plan. 
Volume 1 (Technical) and Volume 2 (Fundraising) was given to each Councilmember after the 
presentation.  The second and last step remaining is for Council to consider the 2017 Bend Of The 
River Botanic Garden Master Plan for adoption on June 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: In 2015, the City received a grant in the amount of $150,000 from the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention for the Community Health Projects related to contamination at 
Brownfield/Land reuse sites. This funding was to develop a master plan for the Bend Of The River 
property.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2017-8678-R 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
ACCEPTING THE 2017 BEND OF THE RIVER BOTANIC GARDEN MASTER PLAN 
PREPARED BY SWA OF HOUSTON, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, in 2015, the City received a grant to develop a master plan for Bend Of The River 
and SWA from Houston, Texas was chosen to prepare the master plan; 
 

Whereas, a nineteen citizen committee was assembled to help SWA and the City create the 
master plan which included areas of interest from the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board, Parks 
Foundation, Keep Temple Beautiful, Temple and Belton Independent School Districts, Temple 
Economic Development Corporation, Temple College, Baylor Scott & White, and the Talasek family;  
 

Whereas, at the May 18, 2017, Council workshop, Council was presented an overview of the 
Master Plan which includes Volume 1 (Technical) and Volume 2 (Fundraising); 
 

Whereas, Staff recommends Council accept the 2017 Bend Of The River Botanic Garden 
Master Plan which has been prepared by SWA of Houston, Texas; 
 

Whereas, in 2015, the City received a grant from the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention for the Community Health Projects related to contamination at Brownfield/Land reuse sites 
and this funding was used to develop the Bend Of The River Botanic Garden Master Plan; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct legislative and 
factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are hereby approved and 
incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their entirety.  
 

Part 2: The City Council accepts the 2017 Bend Of The River Botanic Garden Master Plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and made a part hereof for all purposes as presented. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of June, 2017. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

              
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING. Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 37, “Traffic,” to include a general update of the Chapter 
and changes to the two-hour parking regulations.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing, and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: In a continuing effort to review and update the City’s Code of Ordinances, Staff is 
proposing certain amendments to Chapter 37, “Traffic.” The amendments include changes to outdated 
State law references and city staff positions. For example, the Chapter gives the “traffic management 
administrator” the authority to exercise the powers and duties with respect to traffic, as set forth in the 
Chapter. There is currently no staff position with this title. The amendments propose to change that 
reference to “transportation director” which is an existing position within the Public Works Department.  
 
The amendments also include changes to the City’s two-hour parking regulations. The amendments 
delete the current language which includes a lengthy description of where two-hour parking zones are 
located and references to an outdated map.  
 
The most significant amendment is a proposed change to the enforcement process for parking violations. 
No person may stand or park a vehicle in, on, or upon any street in the City, in violation of any of the 
regulations regarding stopping, standing, or parking vehicles. Currently, violations of parking regulations 
are a criminal offense under Chapter 37. However, State law allows the City to enforce parking violations 
through a civil process. The proposed amendments designate parking violations as a civil offense and set 
forth the civil enforcement process.  
 
A hearing officer would be appointed within the City to hear and determine contests of parking violations. 
The hearing officer will have the authority to administer oaths, issue orders compelling the attendance of 
witnesses and the production of documents, accept admissions, hear and determine contests of parking 
violations, and assess civil fines, penalties, and costs of a parking violation. The civil adjudication process 
for parking violations will begin with a citation issued by a peace officer or by a parking enforcement official 
designated to perform this duty by the Police Department. The citation will provide a time a place for an 
administrative hearing. The person issued a citation must answer the citation no later than the date 
provided for the administrative hearing.  



06/01/17 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
An answer may be made in the following ways: 

• A person may admit liability and pay the applicable civil fines, costs, and fees; or 
• A person may appear before the hearing officer on the appearance date for his or her scheduled 

administrative hearing or at an instanter hearing before the appearance date.  
 
A person does have a right to an instanter hearing which may be held before the appearance date on a 
day of the week established by the hearing officer.  
 
At the conclusion of a hearing, the hearing officer will issue an order either (1) finding the person liable for 
the parking violation and assessing the applicable civil fines, costs, and fees, or (2) finding the person is 
not liable for the parking violation. A person found liable may appeal the determination to the Municipal 
Court.  
 
The amendments propose a range for fine amounts from $1.00 to $500.00. Currently, the fine for parking 
violations is $5.00.  
 
The proposed amendments allow for enforcement of a hearing officer’s order in the following ways: 

• Impounding the vehicle if the owner or operator of the vehicle has committed three or more parking 
violations in a calendar year; 

• Placing a device on the vehicle that prohibits movement of the vehicle if the owner or operator of 
the vehicle has committed three or more such violation in a calendar year or has three or more 
outstanding or unresolved citations; 

• Imposing an additional fine if the original fine is not paid within a specified time; 
• Denying issuance of or revoking a parking or operating permit, as applicable; or 
• Filing an action to collect the fines, costs, or fees in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 
The listed enforcement actions are allowed by State law.   
 
The remaining amendments include a general cleanup of the language and formatting of the Chapter. 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Parking Fine violation fees are deposited into the General Fund account 110-0000-
452-0361.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Redlined draft of Chapter 37 
Ordinance 
  



 

Page 1 of 39 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 37 

 

TRAFFIC 

 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 

 

Sec. 37-1. Definitions. 

 

Wherever in this chapter the following terms are used, they shall will have the meanings 

respectively ascribed to them in this section, unless clearly indicated to the contrary:  

 

Authorized emergency vehicle. Vehicles of the fire department, police vehicles, and such ambulances 

and emergency vehicles of municipal departments or public service corporations as are designated or 

authorized by the chief of policeCity.  

 

Crosswalk. That portion of a roadway ordinarily included within the connectionprolongation of curb 

and property lines at intersections, or any other portion of a roadway clearly indicated for pedestrian 

crossing by lines or other markings on the surface.  

 

Curvilinear.  A road, driveway or approach formed, bound, or characterized by curved lines.  

 

Hand signals. All signals made by the operator by use of the hand and forearm for the purpose of 

indicating his intention of turning, stopping, or changing the course of the vehicle.  

 

Intersection. The area embraced within the prolongationconnection of the lateral curb lines or, if none, 

then the lateral boundary lines of two (2) or more streets or highways which join one another at an 

angle, whether or not one such street or highway crosses the other.  

 

Intersection visibility triangle. That area enclosed by drawing an imaginary line connecting two points 

located within 15 feet of the curb line of any street intersection, street/driveway intersection or 

street/alley intersection. It includes that portion of public street right-of-way and any corner lot in the 

triangular area formed by extending the curb lines of the intersecting streets to their imaginary point 

of intersection for the first point of the triangle, then proceeding back from this imaginary point of 

intersection 15 feet along the curb lines of the intersecting streets to establish the two remaining points 

of the triangle. These points must then be connected with imaginary lines, thereby forming a triangle. 

If there are no curbs existing, the triangular area are formed by extending the pavement edges to the 

imaginary point of intersection of the streets and then proceeding in the same manner described above.  

 

Motor vehicle. Every vehicle, which is self-propelled. A self-propelled vehicle. 

 

Non-motor Vehicle. Any vehicle or device without motive power and which is not self-propelled and is 



 

Page 2 of 39 

 

designed or used to carry property or passengers on its own structure and is drawn by a motor 

vehicle. Such Nnon-motor vehicles shall include boat trailers, utility trailers, trailer-mounted 

equipment or wheel-mounted machinery.  

 

Official traffic signs. All signals, not inconsistent with this chapter, placed or erected by authority of a 

public body or official having jurisdiction for the purpose of directing, warning, or regulating traffic.  

 

Operator. Any person who is in actual physical control of a vehicle.  

 

Park or parking. To stand an occupied or unoccupied vehicle, other than temporarily while loading or 

unloading merchandise or passengers. 

 

Pedestrian. Any person afoot.  

 

Police officer. Every officer of the city police department or any officer authorized to direct or 

regulate traffic or to make arrests for violations of traffic regulations.  

 

Private road or driveway.  A privately owned way or place used for vehicular travel and used only by 

the owner and persons who have the owner’s express or implied permission.  

 

Recreational vehicle.  A motor vehicle primarily designed or used as temporary living quarters for 

recreational camping or travel use. Recreational vehicle includes a travel trailer, camping trailer, tent 

trailers, motor homes, and converted buses, but shall does not include truck camper which do not 

exceed one ton in capacity and are not longer than twenty-two (22) feet in length.  

 

Right-of-way. The privilege of the immediate use of the street or highway.  

 

Roadway. That portion of a street or highway between the regularly established curb lines or that part 

devoted to vehicular travel.  

 

Safety zone. That area or space officially set apart within a roadway for the exclusive use of 

pedestrians and which is protected or is so marked or indicated by adequate signs as to be plainly 

visible at all times while set apart as a safety zone.  

 

Sidewalk.  The portion of a municipal  street that is: 

 

(a) Bbetween a curb or lateral line of a roadway and the adjacent property lines; and 

 

 (b) Improved and designed for or is ordinarily used for pedestrian travelIintended for 

pedestrian use. 

 

Street or highway. Every way set apart for public travel, except foot paths.a sidewalk. 

 



 

Page 3 of 39 

 

Traffic. Pedestrians, ridden or herded animals, vehicles, and other conveyances, either singly or 

together, while using any street for purposes of travel.  

 

Vehicle. A device that can be used to transport or draw persons or property on a highwayroadway. 

The term does not include: 

 

(a) Aa device exclusively used on stationary rails or tracks; or 

 

 (b) Mmanufactured housing as that terms is defined by Chapter 1201, Occupations Code. 

 

(Ordinance No. 2010-4361, 06-03-10) 

 

Sec. 37-2. Duty of police to enforce chapter. 

 

 It shall beis the duty of the police department of the city tto enforce the provisions of this chapter, 

except as otherwise indicated in this chapter..  The police department may designate enforcement of this 

chapter to parking enforcement officials.  

 

Sec. 37-3. Authority of police and firemen to direct traffic.  

 

 Officers of the police department are hereby authorized to direct all traffic, either in person or by 

means of visible or audible signal, in conformance with the provisions of this chapter. In the event of a 

fire or other emergency, or to expedite traffic or safeguard pedestrians, officers of the police or fire 

department may direct traffic, as conditions may require, notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter. 

 

Sec. 37-4. City traffic management administratortransportation director; position established; 

dduties. 

 

 (a) There is hereby established the position of traffic management administrator. transportation 

director. The holder of this position shall will exercise the powers and duties with respect to traffic as 

provided in this chapter. 

 

 (b) It shall beis the general duty of the traffic management administratortransportation director, in 

conjunction with the police department, to determine the installation and proper timing and maintenance 

of traffic-control devices, to conduct engineering analyses of traffic accidents and to devise remedial 

measures, to conduct engineering investigations of traffic conditions, to plan the operation of traffic on 

the streets and highways of this city, and to cooperate with other city officials in the development of 

ways and means to improve traffic conditions, and to carry out the additional powers and duties imposed 

by ordinances of this city. 

 

Sec. 37-5. Emergency and experimental regulations. 

 

 (a) The chief of police, by and with the approval of the traffic management 



 

Page 4 of 39 

 

administratortransportation director, is hereby empowered to make regulations necessary to make 

effective the provisions of the traffic ordinances of this city and to make and enforce temporary or 

experimental regulations to cover emergencies or special conditions. No such temporary or experimental 

regulation shall will remain in effect for more than ninety (90) days. 

 

 (b) The traffic management administratortransportation director may test traffic-control devices under 

actual conditions of traffic. 

 

 (c) The chief of police may authorize the temporary placing of official traffic-control devices when 

required by an emergency. The chief of police shall will notify the traffic management 

administratortransportation director of his or her action as soon thereafter as is practicable. 

 

Sec. 37-6. Obedience to traffic officers. 

 

 It shall beis unlawful for any person to refuse or fail to comply with any lawful order, signal or 

direction of a police officer or fire department official given, as authorized by this chapter, to direct, 

control, or regulate traffic. 

 

Sec. 37-7, 37-8. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-9. Clinging to moving vehicles. 

 

 It shall beis unlawful for the rider of a bicycle, motorcycle or other vehicle to catch on to or hold to 

the side or rear of any other moving vehicle in the city.  

 

Sec. 37-10.  Riding on sSidewalks.  

  

(a) (a)  Definitions.   

 

(1)  As used in this section, “central business zone,”, shown on the drawing attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A,” a copy of which is kept on file in the City Secretary’s 

Office, is most particularly described as the rectangle bounded on the west by 

5th Street, the north by Calhoun Street, the east by 6th Street, and the South by 

Avenue B. Both sides of the perimeter streets (5th, Calhoun, 6th and Avenue B) 

lying within the boundaries of the rectangle are included within the area of the 

central business zone. 

 

(2) As used in this section, “parking facility” shall mean any commercial parking 

lot, parking garage, or a parking area serving or adjacent to a business, church, 

school, home, apartment complex, property governed by a property owners’ 

association, or government-owned property leased to a private person.  

 

 



 

Page 5 of 39 

 

(b) (b) It shall be unlawful for any person to ride or propel any bicycle upon any sidewalk in 

the city. This section shall not apply to a bicycle being operated by a law enforcement 

officer for a law enforcement purpose.  

(c)  
(d) (c) It shall be unlawful for any person to go, travel, or skate upon a skateboard on or along 

a sidewalk, roadway, or  parking facility within the central business zone.  

(e)  
(f)   (d) Any person skating on a skateboard upon a sidewalk not in  the central 

business zone, shall yield the right-of-way to any pedestrian on the sidewalk. 

 

(a) It is unlawful for any person to ride or propel a bicycle or skate upon a skateboard upon 

any sidewalk in any area of the City zoned Central Area.  

 

(b) Subsection (a) does not apply to a sidewalk that is 8 feet or larger in width.  

 

(c) Any person riding or propelling a bicycle or skating upon a skateboard on any sidewalk in 

the City, must yield the right-of-way to any pedestrian on the sidewalk.  

 

Sec. 37-11. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-12. Application of chapter to operators of government vehicles. 

 

 The provisions of this chapter shall apply to the operator of any vehicle owned by or used in the 

service of the government of the United States or this state, county or city, and it shall beis unlawful for 

any such operator to violate any of the provisions of this chapter, except as otherwise permitted in this 

chapter. 

 

Sec. 37-13. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-14. Authority to regulate classes and kinds of traffic on certain highways.  

 

 (a) Gross weight limits. The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby 

authorized, on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation, to erect and maintain official traffic-

control devices on any streets or parts of streets to impose gross weight limits.  

 

 (b) Trucks exceeding ten thousand pounds.  The traffic management administratortransportation 

director is hereby authorized, on the basis of engineering and traffic investigation, to erect and maintain 

official traffic-control devices on the streets or parts of streets to prohibit the operation of trucks 

exceeding ten thousand (10,000) pounds gross weight; provided that such devices shall do not prohibit 

necessary local operation on such streets for the purpose of making a pickup or delivery.  

 

 (c) Vehicle size restrictions. The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby 

authorized, on the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation, to erect and maintain official traffic-



 

Page 6 of 39 

 

control devices on any streets or parts of streets to impose vehicle size restrictions.  

 

 (d) Incompatible traffic. The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby 

authorized, upon the basis of an engineering and traffic investigation, to determine and designate those 

heavily traveled streets upon which shall beit is prohibited any class or kind of traffic which is found to 

be incompatible with the normal and safe movement of traffic and shall the transportation director will 

erect appropriate official traffic-control devices giving notice thereof. 

 

Secs. 37-15--37-22. Reserved. 

 

 ARTICLE II. OPERATION OF VEHICLES GENERALLY 

 

Secs. 37-23--37-27. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-28. Speed limits. 

 

 Except as otherwise posted, Except as otherwise provided by ordinance, it shall beis unlawful for any 

person to drive or operate a motor vehicle within a City urban districtthe city  on a street other than an 

alley at a rate of speed in excess of thirty (30) miles per hour. 

 

 “Urban district” in this section means the territory adjacent to and including a street or highway, if 

the territory is improved with structures that are used for business, industry, or dwelling houses and are 

located at intervals of less than 100 feet for a distance of at least one-quarter mile on either side of the 

street or highway.  .  

Notwithstanding the provisions of this section or any other ordinance of the city, every operator of a 

vehicle on a roadway shall operate the same at a careful and prudent speed not greater than is reasonable 

and prudent under the circumstances then existingreasonable and proper, having due regard to the traffic, 

surface, and width of the roadway and of any other conditions then existing, and no operator shall drive 

any vehicle upon a roadway at such speed as to endanger the life, limb, or property of any person.  

 

Sec. 37-29. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-30. Authority to place devices altering normal course for turns. 

 

 The traffic management administratortransportation director is authorized to place official traffic-

control devices within or adjacent to intersections indicating the course to be traveled by vehicles turning 

at such intersections, and such course to be traveled as so indicated may conform to or be other than as 

prescribed by law. 

 

Sec. 37-31. Authority to place restricted turn signs. 

 

 The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized to determine those 

intersections at which drivers of vehicles shall may not make a right, left, or "U" turn , and shall will 



 

Page 7 of 39 

 

place proper signs at such intersections. The making of such turns may be prohibited between certain 

hours of any day and permitted at other hours, in which event the same shall will be plainly indicated on 

the signs or they may be removed when such turns are permitted.   

 

Sec. 37-32. Turning around in middle of block prohibited. 

 

 No vehicle shall may be turned around in the middle of the block, nor between the corners thereof, 

but shall alwaysmust go on to the intersection of a street or avenue before turning or attempting to turn.  

 

Sec. 37-33, 37-34. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-35. Authority to sign one-way streets and alleys. 

 

 The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized to determine and 

designate one-way streets or alleys and shall will place and maintain official traffic-control devices giving 

notice thereof. No such designation shall will be effective unless such devices are in place. 

 

Sec. 37-36. Authority for stop signs and yield signs. 

 

 The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized to erect and 

maintain stop signs, yield signs, or other official traffic-control devices to designate through streets or to 

designate intersections or other roadway junctions at which vehicular traffic on one or more of the 

roadways should yield or stop and yield before entering the intersection or junction.  

 

Sec. 37-37. Authority to place historical commission signs. 

 

 The Bell County Historical Commission is hereby authorized to place signs advertising their tape 

tour program on the various sites shown on Exhibit "A,", which is made a part of this section for all 

purposes, and on such other sites located on the public right-of-way and on other public property as the 

Bell County Historical Commission and the city manager may hereinafter agree upon. Provided, 

however, that such signs shall be placed and located in strict compliance with applicable provisions of 

the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple and with all applicable state and federal laws and 

regulations. All such signs shall be located and placed under the supervision of the city manager and the 

traffic management administrator. These signs shall be maintained in good condition at the sole cost and 

expense of the Bell County Historical Commission and in accordance with the requirements of the City 

code and the instructions of the city manager and the traffic management administration. 

 

Secs. 37-38--37-42. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-43. Driving between vehicles of authorized procession. 

 

 It shall beis unlawful for the operator of any vehicle to drive between the vehicles comprising a 

funeral or other authorized procession while they are in motion. This provision shall will not apply at 



 

Page 8 of 39 

 

intersections where traffic is controlled by traffic-control signals or by police officers. 

 

Sec. 37-44. Operation in parks. 

 

 It shall beis unlawful for any person to drive, park, or place any vehicle through, in, along, upon, or 

across any public park belonging to the city except upon designated streets, alleys, or driveways, or 

parking areas located in such park. 

 

Sec. 37-45. Motor vehicles prohibited on school grounds; exceptions. 

 

 (a) It shall beis unlawful for any person to drive, park or place any motor vehicle through, in, along, 

upon, or across any public school grounds within the City of Temple except: 

 

  (1) Upon designated streets, alleys, driveways, or parking areas located on said school grounds; 

 

  (2) At the direction of a police officer of the City of Temple or a duly designated official of the 

Temple Independent School Districtschool district; 

 

  (3) When the vVehicle iss owned and operated by an employee or agent of the City of Temple or 

the Temple Independent sSchool dDistrict. 

 

 (b) "Motor vehicle", when used in this section, means every vehicle which is self-propelled, and is 

intended to include motorcycles, trucks, passenger cars, motor-driven cycles, buses and tractors as 

defined in V.C.S. 6701d, Uniform Act Regulating Traffic on Highways.  

 

Secs. 37-46--37-49. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-50. Restrictions on towing. 

 

 No vehicle shall may tow more than one other vehicle at a time, and no tow connection thereon shall 

may be more than fifteen (15) feet in length. 

 

Sec. 37-51. Improper start or acceleration of motor vehicle. Reserved. 

 

 (a) The methods described in subsection (b) of starting or accelerating a motor vehicle are prohibited 

and shall hereafter be unlawful. 

 

 (b) Any person who shall start a motor vehicle from a stopped position or accelerate a motor vehicle, 

whether originally stopped or moving, in such a fashion as to cause the driving wheels to spin, or to 

cause the driving wheels to spin and create a loud noise calculated to disturb the residents living in the 

vicinity or other motorists and/or pedestrians in the vicinity, whether motorists and/or pedestrians are 

actually present or not, or to cause the rear portion of the motor vehicle to sway or swing from side to 

side, shall, upon conviction, be held guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be fined not less than one dollar 



 

Page 9 of 39 

 

($1.00) and not more than two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

 

Sec. 37-52.  Reserved.Trucks prohibited from using Midway Drive without a permit; 

ddefinitions; pplacements of ssigns. 

 

 

 Definitions. Whenever used in this section, the following terms shall be defined as follows:The 

following words and phrases when used in this section shall, for the purpose of this 

section, have the meanings respectively ascribed to them in this section. 

 

  

  (1)  Truck means any motor vehicle designed, used, or maintained primarily for the 

transportation of property with a manufacturer' s rateds carrying capacity exceeding 

two thousand (2,000) pounds,, and is not intended to include those trucks commonly 

known as pickup trucks, panel delivery trucks and carry-all trucks. 

 

  (2)  Through traffic means operating a truck: 

 

   a. Entering Midway Drive at its intersection with Interstate Highway 35 and exiting Midway 

Drive at its intersection with Hickory Road;, or 

 

   b. Entering Midway Drive at its intersection with Hickory Road and exiting Midway Drive 

at its intersection with Interstate Highway 35;, or 

 

   c. Upon any part of Midway Drive, which does not have as its destination for the delivery 

of property a residence, business, or construction site fronting upon Midway Drive or 

fronting upon a street intersecting Midway Drive. 

 

 (a) The through traffic of trucks on Midway Drive, in the City of Temple, Bell County, Texas, is 

prohibited and unlawful. 

 

The operating or movement of a truck on Midway Drive, without first obtaining a permit from the chief 

of police, shall be prima facie evidence of the violation of this section and that such 

operation or movement is unlawful. 

 

 (b) The operating or movement of a truck on Midway Drive, without first obtaining a permit from 

the chief of police, shall be prima facie evidence of the violation of this section and 

that such operation or movement is unlawful. 

 

 (c) The director of public works and the chief of police of the City of Temple, Texas,  shall obtain 

and install the proper signs upon the right-of-way of Midway Drive. 

 

 



 

Page 10 of 39 

 

 

 

Sec. 37-53. Truck routes established. 

 

(a) Definitions. Whenever used in this section, the following terms shall be defined as follows: 

 

(1)   Truck means any motor vehicle designed, used, or maintained primarily for the 

transportation of property, with a manufacturer' s rated carrying capacity exceeding two 

thousand (2,000) pounds, and is not intended to include those trucks commonly known as 

pickup trucks, panel delivery trucks, and carryall trucks. 

 

  (2) Motor vehicle means every device in or by which any person or property may be transported 

or drawn upon a public highway and which device is self-propelled. 

 

(2)   Semitrailer means vehicles of the trailer type so designed or used in conjunction with 

a motor vehicle that some part of its own weight and that of its load rests upon or is carried 

by another vehicle. 

 

(3)   Road tractor means any motor vehicle designed or used for drawing other vehicles or 

loads, and not so constructed as to carry a load independently or any part of the weight of the 

drawn load or vehicle. 

 

  (4)   Truck tractor means every motor vehicle designed or used for drawing other vehicles, 

and not so constructed as to carry a load other than a part of the weight of the vehicle and load as drawn.  

 

(b) Established. There are hereby established and created certain truck routes in, through, and 

around the City of Temple for all trucks, semitrailers, road tractors, and truck tractors entering 

or exiting the Ccity, as follows: 

 

(1)   Interstate Highway No. 35. 

 

  (2)  State Highway No. 53. 

 

  (3)  State Highway No. 36. 

 

  (4)  Loop 363--State Highway No. 190. 

 

  (5)  F.M. Road No. 2305. 

 

  (6)  South First Street from where it intersects with Loop 363 and Highway 36 north to the 

point where South First becomes South Third Street and from that point north to where North Third 

Street intersects with Interstate Highway No. 35. 

 



 

Page 11 of 39 

 

(7)  F.M. Road No. 438. 

 

(c) Through traffic prohibited. Through traffic of any truck, semitrailer, road tractor, or truck tractor 

on any street within the City of Temple other than those streets or highways specifically 

designated in subsection (b) hereof is expressly prohibited and declared to be unlawful.  

 

(d) Exceptions.  The terms, provisions and regulations set forth in this section do not and are not 

intended to apply to trucks, semitrailers, road tractors, and truck tractors entering the City of 

Temple and traveling on streets other than those designated herein for the purposes of pickup 

and delivery to a specific location, or to obtain service, repairs, commercial lodging, fuel, or 

other legitimate purposes requiring a stop within the city. For purposes of this section, a 

person commuting to and from a residence for purposes other than making a delivery or pickup 

within the City is not a “legitimate purpose.”  

 

(e) Signs. The Director of Public Works of the City of Temple or the transportation director is 

hereby directed to place appropriate signs upon the streets indicated herein and may, at his or her 

discretion, place signs upon other local streets notifying the public that no truck traffic is allowed 

thereon. 

 

Sec. 37-54. Residential laneAlleys -- Speed limit established.; ppenalty for vviolation. 

 

(a)  (a) The reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum speed limit for any vehicular traffic 

upon residential lanesalleys within the City of Temple is hereby established as ten (10)15 miles 

per hour. 

 

(b)  (b) It shall beis unlawful for any person to drive or operate a motor vehicle, bicycle, or other 

vehicle of any kind, whether or not motor-powered, at a speed greater than is reasonable and 

prudent under the circumstances then existing along, or upon, or over any residential lanealley 

within said city, but any speed in excess of the reasonable and prudent prima facie maximum 

speed limit as set forth in paragraph (a) hereof shall beis prima facie evidence that such speed is 

not reasonable and prudent and that it is unlawful. 

 

 (c) Any person violating any provision of this section shall upon conviction be fined in a sum not 

exceeding two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

 

Sec. 37-55. Use of engine break or retarder prohibited. 

 

(a) This section applies to a roadway or street within the corporate limits of the City, including a 

state maintained roadway. 

 

(b) A person may not use an engine brake or engine retarder to assist in slowing or braking a 

motor vehicle, except for a fire truck engaged in emergency duties.  

 



 

Page 12 of 39 

 

Secs. 37-56--37-64. Reserved. 

 

 ARTICLE III. TRAFFIC-CONTROL DEVICES GENERALLY 

 

Sec. 37-65. Authority to install traffic-control devices. 

 

 The traffic management administratortransportation director shall will place and maintain official 

traffic-control devices when and as required under the traffic under the traffic ordinances of this city to 

make effective the provisions of said ordinances, and may place and maintain such additional official 

traffic-control devices as he may deem necessary to regulate, warn, or guide traffic under the traffic 

ordinances of this city or the Texas Transportation Codestate vehicle code. 

 

Sec. 37-66. Manual and specifications for traffic-control devices. 

 

 All traffic-control signs, signals, and devices shall will conform to the manual and specifications 

approved by the State Department of Highways and Public TransportationTexas Department of 

Transportation. All signs and signals required hereunder for a particular purpose shall will so far as 

practicable be uniform as to type and location throughout the city. All traffic-control devices so erected 

and not inconsistent with the provisions of state law or this chapter shall will be official traffic-control 

devices. 

 

Secs. 37-67--37-70. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-71. Marking of traffic lanes. 

 

 The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized to mark traffic 

lanes upon the roadway of any street or highway where a regular alignment of traffic is necessary.  

 

Sec. 37-72. Designation and marking of crosswalks. 

 

 The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized to designate and 

maintain, by appropriate devices, marks, or lines upon the surface of the roadway, crosswalks at 

intersections where, in the transportation director’shis opinion, there is particular danger to pedestrians 

crossing the roadway, and at such other places as the transportation directorhe may deem necessary. 

 

Sec. 37-73. Establishment and marking of safety zones. 

 

 The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized to establish safety 

zones of such kind and character and at such places as he or she may deem necessary for the protection 

of pedestrians. 

 

Secs. 37-74--37-76. Reserved. 

 



 

Page 13 of 39 

 

Secs. 37-77--37-85. Reserved. 

 

 ARTICLE IV. STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING 

 

Sec. 37-86. Parking of vVehicles with cCapacity of mMore tThan oOne and oOne-hHalf tTons in 

cCertain dDistricts.  

 

 (a) A person commits an offense if he stops, parks, or stands a truck-tractor, road tractor, 

semitrailer, bus, trailer, or a truck with more than two axles, rated capacity in excess of one and one-

half tons, or with a height of more than nine feet, according to the manufacturer’s classification, in 

front of, or forward of the building setback line (as shown by the property’s plat or the zoning 

ordinance, whichever is a greater distance from the property line adjacent to the street) upon property 

within a residential area. This subsection shall will not apply to the parking or standing of a vehicle 

for the purpose of expeditiously loading or unloading passengers, freight, or merchandise, or to 

recreational vehicles, as defined by Section 37-1 of the Code of Ordinances.  

 

 (b) In this section, Residential Area means any block face zoned SF-1, SF-2, SF-3, SFA, SFA-2, 

SFA-3, MH, MF, 2F, TH or UE.   

 

Sec. 37-87. Stopping, standing, or parking prohibited in specified places. 

 

 Except when necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic, or in compliance with law or the 

directions of a police officer or official traffic-control device, no person shallmay: 

 

 (1) Stop, stand, or park a vehicle: 

 

  (a)  On the roadway side of any vehicle stopped or parked at the edge or curb of a street; 

  (b)  On a sidewalk; 

  (c)  In Within an intersection; 

  (d)  On a crosswalk; 

  (e)  Between a safety zone and the adjacent curb or within thirty (30) feet of a place points on 

the curb immediately opposite the ends of a safety zone, unless a different length is 

indicated by signs or markings; 

  (f)  Alongside or opposite any street excavation or obstruction when stopping, standing, or 

parking would obstruct traffic; 

  (g)  On a Upon any bridge or other elevated structure onupon a highway or inwithin a 

highway tunnel; 

  (h)  On a any railroad tracks; 

  (i)  On any controlled-access highway; 

  (j)  In the area between roadways of a divided highway, including crossovers; or 

  (k)  At any place where official traffic-control devices prohibit stopping. 

 

 (2)  Stand or park a vehicle an occupied or unoccupied vehicle , whether occupied or not, except 



 

Page 14 of 39 

 

momentarily to pick up or discharge a passenger or passengers: 

 

   (a)  In front of a public or private driveway; 

   (b)  Within fifteen (15) feet of a fire hydrant; 

   (c)  Within twenty (20) feet of a crosswalk at an intersection; 

   (d)  Within thirty (30) feet upon the approach to any flashing signal, stop sign, yield sign, 

or traffic-control signal located at the side of a roadway; 

   (e)  Within twenty (20) feet of a driveway entrance to any fire station and on the side of a 

street opposite the entrance to any fire station within seventy-five (75) feet of the said 

entrance when the entrance is properly marked with a sign properly signposted; or 

   (f)  At any place where where an official traffic-control devices prohibits standing. 

 

 (3)  Park an occupied or unoccupied vehicle  vehicle, whether occupied or not, except temporarily 

to  for the purpose of and while actually engaged in loading or unload ing merchandise 

property or passengers: 

 

   (a)  Within fifty (50) feet of the nearest rail of a railroad crossing; or 

   (b)  At any place where an official traffic-control devices prohibits parking. 

 

 (4)  A person may not move a vehicle that is not lawfully under the person' s control  into an area 

where a vehicle is prohibited under Section 37-87.545.302 

 

   (c)  No person shall move a vehicle not lawfully under his control into any such prohibited 

area or away from a curb such a distance as is unlawful.  

 

Sec. 37-88. Parking prohibited in alleys located in the central business district.  

 

 (a) Definition. As used in this section, "central business district" shall means all partsthat part of the 

city which areis within the area bounded on the south by Avenue "B", on the east by Eighth Street, on 

the north by French Avenue, and on the west by Ninth Street. 

 

 (b) Parking in alleys within the central business district is prohibited. It shall beis unlawful to park, 

abandon, or leave a motor vehicle in an alley within the central business district, except as hereinafter 

provided. 

 

 (c) Exception and duty. 

 

  (1) Vans and trucks used for delivery of merchandise, and actually loading or unloading 

merchandise, and vans and trucks of utility companies, plumbers, electricians, air 

conditioning and heating firms, etc., utilized at the time in providing services to buildings 

abutting the alley are excepted from the provision of subsection paragraph (b); provided, 

however, that this exception applies only to vans and trucks during the time actually being 

loaded or unloaded, or being utilized in providing service, and parked in such a manner to 



 

Page 15 of 39 

 

leave a ten-foot clearance for other vehicles traveling the alley. 

 

  (2) The operator of any vehicle, described in subsection (c)(1) above, shall must remain in such 

close proximity to said vehicle that, if another vehicle does not have sufficient clearance to 

pass said vehicle in the alley, the operatorhe may be promptly summoned to move said 

vehicle  to temporarily move same at any time such movement is necessary to allow passage 

of another vehicle in thean alley. 

 

Sec. 37-89. Prohibited for certain purposes. 

 

 It shall beis unlawful for any person to stop, stand, or park any vehicle upon any public street,  or 

alley, city-owned parking lot, park, playground, golf course, or athletic field of the City of Temple for 

any of the following purposes: 

 

(1) For the primary purpose of offering such vehicle for sale or selling the same; . 

 

(2) For the purpose of repairing such vehicle or accessories thereon or attached thereto; provided that 

part (23) of this section shall will not apply to emergency tire repair nor to any other emergency 

repairs for the purpose of removing the vehicle from the streets, avenues, and alleys; or . 

 

 (3) For the primary purpose of washing a vehicle.  

 

Sec. 37-90. Leaving less than ten feet of roadway open for traffic.  

 

 (a) It shall beis unlawful for the operator of any vehicle to stop, stand, or park such vehicle upon a 

street, except as otherwise authorized in this chapterother than an alley, in such manner or under such 

conditions as to leave available less than ten (10) feet of the width of the roadway free for movement of 

vehicular traffic, except during actual unloading or loading of passengers or when necessary in 

obedience to traffic regulations, an official traffic control device, or traffic signs or signals orr a police 

officer. 

 

 (b) It shall beis unlawful for the operator of any vehicle to park such vehicle within an alley in such 

manner or under such conditions as to leave available less than ten (10) feet of the width of the roadway 

alley for the free movement of vehicular traffic. 

 

Sec. 37-91. Intersection vVisibility tTriangle.  

 

(a) A vehicle, fence, wall, screen, view obstruction, or foliage is not allowed within the 

intersection visibility triangle at elevations between three feet and eight feet above the average street 

grade. Obstructions of this nature are declared to be a public traffic nuisance. A person may not park 

or allow parking of a vehicle or boat in the intersection visibility triangle at elevations between three 

feet and eight feet above the average street grade. 

 



 

Page 16 of 39 

 

(b) Obstruction of an intersection visibility triangle must be abated within 10 days after written 

notice. 

 

(Ordinance No. 2010-4361, 06-03-10) 

 

Sec. 37-92. Designation and marking of parking spaces and areas where parking is                     

prohibited or limited. 

 

 (a) The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized, on the basis of 

an engineering and traffic investigation, to prohibit, regulate, or limit stopping, standing, or parking 

vehicles at all times or during specified hours. 

 

 (b) No prohibition, regulation, or limitation relating to stopping, standing, or parking imposed under 

this chapter or any other ordinance of this city shall will be effective unless official traffic-control devices 

are erected and in place at the time of any alleged offense.   andI it shall beis the duty of the traffic 

management administratortransportation director to erect and maintain such devices. 

 

(c) The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized to 

designate parking spaces and parking areas for the exclusive use of persons with disabilities.  

 

Sec. 37-93. Two-hour parking zone. 

 

(a) The City Manager or his/her designee is hereby authorized to determine and designate in and on 

such streets and portions thereof spaces in which parking is limited to two-hour periods of time.  

In an areas designated as a two-hour parking zones, signs or other clearly distinguished markings 

will be posted or made at both ends of the two-hour parking zones and at reasonable intervals 

between the beginning and ending of the zone.  If the signs or other markings for the two-hour 

parking zone indicate the days or times allowed for parking therein, such prohibition will only 

apply on such days and between such hours as prescribed by the  signs or markings.  

 

(b) It is unlawful for any person to leave standing or parked any vehicle for a period of more than two 

hours in a two-hour parking zone, and each successive two hours that a vehicle should be left 

continuously parked in such zone shall will constitute a separate offense.  

 

  (c) The city manager is authorized to suspend this section by decree during public events or when the 

municipal parking lot adjacent to City Hall is closed. 

 

(d) The city manager is authorized to grant permits to persons involved in construction in or near two-

hour parking zones to park construction related vehicles in these zones longer than designated by 

signage.  It is unlawful for any permittee or other person to violate any of the special terms or 

conditions of any such permit.Persons who fail to abide by the terms of a permit may receive a 

parking citation for each successive two (2) hours that a vehicle is left continuously parked in a 

two-hour parking zone in violation of the permit.  



 

Page 17 of 39 

 

 

In  

The area in the City of Temple, Texas, shown on the drawing attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” a 

copy of which is kept on file in the City Secretary’s Office, and is most particularly described as 

the north side of Barton Avenue (between Main and 2nd Streets), south side of Barton Avenue 

(between 3rd & 1st Streets), south side of Adams Avenue (between 1st & Main), north side of 

Central Avenue (between 1st & 4th Streets), south side of Central Avenue (between 3rd & 4th 

Streets), north side of Avenue A (between 1st & 4th Streets), south side of Avenue A (Between 1st 

& 2nd Streets), west half of south side of Avenue A (between 2nd & 4th Streets), south side of 

Avenue B (between Main & 2nd Streets), east & west side of 1st Street (between Calhoun & Adams 

Avenue), west side of 1st Street (between Central & Avenue A), north half of the east side of 1st 

Street (between Central & Avenue A), south half of the east side of 1st Street (between Avenue A 

& B), east and west side of Main Street (between Calhoun and Avenue B), east and west side of 

2nd Street (between Barton & Avenue B), is hereby designated a two-hour parking zone, except as 

otherwise posted, and appropriate signs shall be erected giving notice of such two-hour limitation, 

and, except as provided at Subsection (b), it shall be unlawful for any person to leave standing or 

parked any vehicle for a period of more than two (2) hours, and each successive two (2) hours that 

a vehicle shall be left continuously parked in such zone shall constitute a separate offense. 

 

 (b) The city manager is authorized to suspend this Section by decree during public events or 

when the municipal parking lot adjacent to City Hall is closed. 

 

(Ordinance No. 2009-4303, August 20, 2009) 

 

Sec. 37-94. Parking aAreas dDesignated for pPersons with dDisabilities.Privileged parking; persons 

with disabilities. 

 

(a) Except as provided in subsection (b), a person may not stop, stand, or park a vehicle in a parking 

space or area on public or private property that is designated for use by a person with a disability 

in accordance with applicable law.  Parking spaces or areas designated for persons with 

disabilities on private property do not have to be in compliance with the identification 

requirements referred to in Chapter 681 (Privileged Parking) of the Texas Transportation Code.  

 

(b) This prohibition does not apply if the vehicle is operated by or for a person with a temporary or 

permanent disability, and the vehicle displays:  

 

(1) License plates for the vehicle issued in accordance with the Texas Transportation Code for 

use by a persons with disabilities; or  

 

(2) A disabled parking placard issued in accordance with Chapter 681 of the Texas 

Transportation Code.  

 

(c) A person may not stop, stand, or park a vehicle on public or private property in a manner that 



 

Page 18 of 39 

 

blocks an access or curb ramp, accessible pedestrian space between or adjacent to a parking 

space, or other architectural feature designed to aid a person with a disability.  

 

(d) A peace officer or a person designated by the city under Sec. 681.0101 of the Texas 

Transportation Code may enforce this section. 

 Definitions for this Section: 

 

(1) DISABLED PARKING PLACARD means the placard issued by the state under Section 

681.002 of the Texas Transportation Code, as amended. 

 

(2) DISABLED PERSON means a person who has a permanent or temporary disability within 

the meaning of Section 681.001 of the Texas Transportation Code, as amended, and who has applied for 

and received: 

 

(A) a disabled person or disabled veteran license plate from the state; 

 

(B) a disabled parking placard from the state; or 

 

(C) a license plate or placard bearing the international symbol of access issued by a U.S. 

state or by a state or province of a foreign country. 

 

(3) DISABLED PERSON LICENSE PLATE means the specially designed license plate of a 

vehicle, issued by the state to a permanently disabled person under Section 504.201 of the Texas 

Transportation Code, as amended. 

 

(4) DISABLED VETERAN LICENSE PLATE means the specially designed license plate of a 

vehicle, issued by the state to a disabled veteran under Section 504.202 of the Texas Transportation 

Code, as amended. 

 

(5) INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL OF ACCESS has the meaning assigned in Section 681.001 of 

the Texas Transportation Code, as amended.  

 

 DESIGNATION OF PARKING SPACES OR AREAS FOR DISABLED PERSONS ON 

PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PROPERTY. 

 

 (1) The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby granted the 

authority to designate and mark certain parking spaces on the public streets and in the 

public parking lots of the city for the use of disabled persons in accordance with Section 

681.009 of the Texas Transportation Code, as amended.  

 

 (2) A person who owns or controls property used for parking may designate one or more 

parking spaces or a parking area for the exclusive use of vehicles transporting disabled 

persons in accordance with Section 681.009 of the Texas Transportation Code, as amended. 



 

Page 19 of 39 

 

 

 (A) The entirety of this Section applies to a parking space or area for disabled persons on 

private property that is designated in compliance with Section 681.009(b) of the Texas 

Transportation Code, as amended.   

The city may appoint parking enforcement officials to have the authority to file charges against persons 

who commit offenses under Chapter 681, Texas Transportation Code, as amended.  

 OFFENSES. 

 

Violations of disabled parking regulations on public or private property are governed by, and 

may be enforced pursuant to, Chapter 681 of the Texas Transportation Code, as amended.  

 

 The city may appoint a parking enforcement official to have authority to file a charge against a 

person who commits an offense under this Section, pursuant to Section 681.0101 of the Texas 

Transportation Code. 

  

(a) Definitions. The provisions and terminologies of Chapter 681 of the Texas Transportation 

Code are hereby adopted by reference and shall apply to this section.  

 

(b) Private property.  A person who owns or controls private property used for parking may 

designate one or more parking spaces or a parking area for the exclusive use of vehicles transporting 

persons with disabilities.  

 

(c) Political subdivisions.  A political subdivision that designates a parking space or area for the 

exclusive use of vehicles transporting persons with disabilities must conform to the standards and 

specifications adopted by the Commissioner of licensing and regulation under Section 5(c), Article 

9102, Texas Revised Statutes, relating to the identification and dimensions of parking spaces for 

persons with disabilities. Copies of these standards and specifications are on file in the Offices of the 

City Secretary and Construction and Safety Services.  

 

(d) Offenses.  A person commits an offense if the person: 

 

(1) parks a vehicle not displaying disabled person identification in a parking space 

designated specifically for persons with disabilities.  

 

 (2) is not a person with a disability and is not transporting a person with a disability 

and parks a vehicle with disabled person identification in a parking space 

designated specifically for the disabled. 

 

  (3) parks a vehicle so that the vehicle blocks or obstructs an architectural 

improvement designed to aid persons with disabilities, including an access or 

curb ramp. 

 

(4) lends a disabled parking placard issued to the person to another person who uses 



 

Page 20 of 39 

 

the placard in violation of this section.  

 

 (e) Applicability. The offenses defined in this section apply to a parking space or area on public 

or private property that is designated exclusively for persons with disabilities in compliance with the 

identification requirements referred to in subsection (c) of this section.  

 

(e)  Penalty. 

 

  (1) An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.  Except as provided by 

subdivisions (2)-(6) of this subsection, an offense under this section is 

punishable by a fine of no less than $100 or more than $200.  

 

  (2) If it is shown on the trial of an offense under this section that the person has 

been previously convicted one time of an offense under this section, the offense 

is punishable by a fine of not less than $200 or more than $300.  

 

  (3) If it is shown on the trial of an offense under this section that the person has 

been previously convicted two times of an offense under this section, the offense 

is punishable by a fine of not less than $300 or more than $400.  

 

  (4) If it is shown on the trial of an offense under this section that the person has 

been previously convicted three times of an offense under this section, the 

offense is punishable by a fine of not less than $400 or more than $500.  

 

  (5)  If it is shown on the trial of an offense under this section that the person has 

been previously convicted four times of an offense under this section, the 

offense is punishable by a fine of $500.   

 

Sec. 37-95. Direction of pParked or sStopped vVehicles. 

 

 (a) Every vehicle parked or stopped on any street in the city must be parked or stopped parallel 

with the edge of the roadway, headed in the direction of traffic, and with curb-side wheels of 

the vehicle within eighteen (18) inches of the curb or edge of the roadway except where 

streets are appropriately marked for perpendicular or for angle parking. 

 

 (b) Every vehicle parked or stopped on any street in the city in a parking space appropriately 

marked for perpendicular or angle parking must be parked with the front of such vehicle 

adjacent to the curb or sidewalk. 

 

Sec. 37-96. Compliance with parking space markings.  

 

(a) If a parking space limit line is delineated on a street or parking lot owned or maintained by 

the city,  a person:  



 

Page 21 of 39 

 

 

(1) May not park a vehicle on or across the line; and  

 

(2) Must park a vehicle entirely within the delineated area.   

 

(b) A person may not park a vehicle in a driveway of a parking lot owned or maintained by the 

city.   

.  

 All vehicles parked or stopped on any street in the city must be parked or stopped entirely within the 

lines designating the parking space with the front of the vehicle headed in the direction of the 

curb. 

(a) Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-976. Permits for loading Loading or unloading at an angle to the curb. 

 

 Backing of a vehicle to the curb is permitted for the limited purpose of loading or unloading 

merchandise or other property. In no case shall the stop for loading and unloading merchandise or other 

property exceed 30 minutes.  

(a)  (a) The traffic management administrator is authorized to issue special permits to authorize 

the backing of a vehicle to the curb for the purpose of loading or unloading property subject to 

the terms and conditions of such permit. Such permits may be issued either to the owner or lessee 

of real property alongside the curb or to the owner of the vehicle and shall grant to such person 

the privilege as therein stated and herein authorized. 

 

(b)  (b) It shall be unlawful for any permittee or other person to violate any of the special terms or 

conditions of any such permit. 

 

Sec. 37-987. Parking of trucks with more than two axles. 

 

 The parking of trucks with more than two (2) axles on any street or alley within the corporate limits 

of the City of Temple, Texas, is hereby prohibited; provided, however, that the prohibition set out in 

this section shall will not apply to such trucks parked for the purpose of loading or unloading or for the 

purpose of making emergency repairs. 

 

Sec. 37-998.  Parking of Boats, Non-Motor Vehicles and Recreational Vehicles.  

 

(a) Definitions. Whenever used in this section, the following terms shall beare defined as follows: 

 

(1)  Bboat means any watercraft, vessel, or outboard motor.  

 

(2) motor vehicle means any vehicle that is self-propelled. 

 



 

Page 22 of 39 

 

(3) non-motor vehicle means any vehicle or device without motive power and which is 

not self-propelled and is designed for use with a self-propelled vehicle and is used to 

carry property or passengers on its own structure.   Non-motor vehicle shall include 

trailers, utility trailers, trailer-mounted equipment or wheel-mounted machinery. 

 

(4) recreational vehicle means any motor vehicle primarily designed, equipped or used 

as temporary dwelling or sleeping quarters for recreational camping or travel use. 

Recreational vehicle shall include travel trailers, camping trailers, tent trailers, house 

trailers, motor homes and converted buses, but shall not include truck campers which 

do not exceed one ton capacity and are not longer than twenty-two (22) feet in length. 

 

(2) Ppublic roadway means any public street, alley, road, right-of-way, or other public way, 

including paved and unpaved portions of the right-of-way. 

 

(b) It shall beis unlawful for any person to park or place any boat, non-motor vehicle or 

recreational vehicle on any public roadway within the city limits of Temple, Texas, unless the 

boat, non-motor vehicle or recreational vehicle is connected or otherwise secured to a motor 

vehicle.  

 

(c) It shall beis unlawful for any person to park or place any boat, non-motor vehicle or 

recreational vehicle which is connected or secured to a motor vehicle on any public roadway 

within the city limits of Temple, Texas for a period of more than more than forty-eight (48) 

hours at any one place.  

 

 (d) For prosecution under subsection (b) or (c) of this section, it is presumed that the registered 

owner or the owner or occupant of the property adjacent to the location of the offense, if the 

identity of the registered owner cannot be determined,  is the person who parked or placed the 

boat, non-motor vehicle, or recreational vehicle in violation of subsection (b) or (c) of this 

section, at the time and place of the offense charged.  

 

Sec. 37-99. Parking in city-owned parking lots. 

 

 (a) Parking spaces in city-owned parking lots shall be marked in accordance with section 37-92 of the 

Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, Texas.  

 

 (b) In areas of city-owned parking lots where parking spaces have been properly marked all vehicles 

parked in such lots shall be parked within a marked parking space, and it shall be unlawful to park or 

leave standing a vehicle in such a manner as to take up or obstruct more than one such parking space or 

in any manner that would obstruct the movement of traffic in said lot. 

 

 (c) It shall be unlawful for any person to stop, stand, or park any vehicle upon any city-owned 

parking lot for any of the following purposes: 

 



 

Page 23 of 39 

 

  (1) For the primary purpose of offering such vehicle for sale or selling the same.  

 

  (2) For the primary purpose of displaying advertising; provided that parts (1) and (2) of this 

section shall not apply to vehicles displaying signs or advertisements which are incidental, 

and in addition to the primary and regular use of said vehicle as a means of transportation. 

 

  (3) For the purpose of repairing such vehicle or accessories thereon or attached thereto; provided 

that part (3) of this section shall not apply to emergency tire repair nor to any other 

emergency repairs for the purpose of removing the vehicle from said city owned parking lot. 

 

Sec. 37-100. Parking for more than two days prohibited. 

 

 It shall beis unlawful for any person to park or permit to remain parked or standing any vehicle , as 

defined in Tex.Rev.Civ.Stat.Ann.Art. 6675a-1(Vernon 1988), upon any street, alley, or city-owned 

parking lot within the city for longer than two (2) days at any one place. The term "street" as used in this 

section shall include the parkway thereof. 

 

Sec. 37-101. Parking of vehicles used for transporting liquefied petroleum gases. 

 

E (a) Except in an emergency, no tank vehicle containing liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) shall 

may be left unattended on any street, highway, avenue or alley, provided that this shall does not 

prevent a driver from the necessary absence from the truck in connection with the delivery of his or 

her load, except that during actual discharge of the liquid some responsible person shall must be 

present at the vehicle, nor shall does it prevent stops for meals during the day or night if the street is 

lighted at point of parking.; 

 

Ta (b) Tank vehicles used to transport or deliver LPG shall may not be parked out of doors at any 

one point longer than 1 hour, except on a premises of a facility approved for storing or servicing LPG 

tank vehicles. The location shall must be off any street, and at least 50 feet from any building, and 25 

feet from any property line.  

 

  (c) LPG tank vehicles used to transport shall may not be parked or garaged in any building or 

near any building other than those specificallyed approved for such use by the fire official.  

 

Sec. 37-102. Parking near scene of fire. 

 

 It shall beis unlawful for any operator to park any vehicle within three hundred (300) feet of any 

burning building or other thing where fire-fighting apparatus is being used for the purpose of 

extinguishing the same, except under the direction of the chief,  or other officer of the fire department, , 

or a police officer of the city. 

 



 

Page 24 of 39 

 

Sec. 37-103. Parking in fire lanes. 

 

 (a) The marking of fire lanes on private property, devoted to public use, shall will be approved by 

the fire chief and the police chief of the City of Temple, Texasor his or her designee(s). 

 

 (b) The fire chief shall havehas the authority, by and with the consent of the city council expressed 

by resolution, to determine where such fire lanes shall will be required and shall havehas the authority to 

require that such fire lanes be marked and maintained. Such fire lanes shall will be marked by painting 

the curb red with the words "Fire Lane" stenciled thereon at appropriate intervals together with signs, 

placed at appropriate distances, which indicate the existence of the fire land lane and that parking in or 

blocking the fire lane is prohibited. 

 

 (c) It shall beis unlawful for any person to park or to allow to be parked any vehicle in a properly 

marked fire lane or to otherwise obstruct such fire lane. 

 

Sec. 37-104. Parking of vehicles at Draughon-Miller Airport. 

 

 (a) It shall beis unlawful for any person to park any motor or non-motor vehicle automobile or other 

vehicle at Draughon-Miller Airport outside the limits of the designated parking area for the particular 

kind or type of automobile or vehicle.  

 

 (b) No aircraft or vehicle shall may be parked within twenty-five (25) feet of a fire hydrant at 

Draughon-Miller Airport. 

 

Sec. 37-105. Parking of nNon-mMotor vVehicles and rRecreational vVehicles pProhibited.  

 

(a) Definitions. Whenever used in this section, the following terms shall beare defined as 

follows: 

 

(1) Corner lot means any triangular portion of a plot of ground defined by measuring thirty 

(30) feet along the curb line or adjacent streets and whose hypotenuse shall beis the 

connection of the two (2) points as measured along the curb line.  

 

(2)  Pprivate property means any privately owned real property, lot, tract or parcel of land, 

or portion thereof, including a private driveway, roadway or alley, within the city 

limits of Temple, Texas.  

 

(1) Residential lot means any private lot, tract, or parcel of land or portion thereof that is 

located within a residential area or territory primarily improved with residences or 

buildings used for business purposes and residences.   

(2)  
(3) (5) sidewalk means any paved portion of a street between the curb lines and the adjacent 

property lines which is continuous along the street.  



 

Page 25 of 39 

 

(4)  
(36) residential lot means any private lot, tract or parcel of land or portion thereof that is 

located within a residential area or territory primarily improved with residences or 

buildings used for business purposes and residences.  

 

(b) It shall beis unlawful for any person to park, place or locate on any private property any 

non-motor vehicle or recreational vehicle that: 

 

(1)  Iis within six (6) feet from the back of any curb or edge of the pavement if no curb 

exists; 

 

(2) Iis in, blocks, or otherwise obstructs any paved sidewalk; 

 

(3) Is within a corner lot; or 

 

(4) Is not secured with wheel stops on the wheels on each side or otherwise secured to 

adequately hold the vehicle on any grade on which the vehicle is parked.  

(1)  
 

(3) is within a corner lot. 

 

(4) is not secured with wheel stops on the wheels on each side or otherwise secured to adequately hold 

the vehicle on any grade on which the vehicle is parked.  

 

(a) (c) It is unlawful for any person to use a non-motor vehicle or recreational vehicle for 

housekeeping, dwelling, or sleeping quarters for any period exceeding two (2) weeks 

during any six (6) month period.  

 

(d)  For prosecution under subsection (b) or (c) of this section, it is presumed that the 

registered owner or the owner or occupant of the property which is the location of the 

offense , if the identity of the registered owner cannot be determined, is the person who 

parked, placed, or used the non-motor vehicle or recreational vehicle in violation of this 

section. 

 

Sec. 37-106. Passenger and loading zones generally. 

 

(a)  The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized to 

determine the location of loading zones and passenger loading zones and shall will place 

and maintain appropriate signs indicating the same and stating the hours during which the 

provisions of this Code are applicable. In lieu of such signs, such zones may be laid out 

and designated by yellow-colored lines or marks on the surface of the street or curb, with 

the words "Loading Zone" painted thereon. 

 



 

Page 26 of 39 

 

  (b)  No person shall may stop, stand, or park a vehicle for any purpose or length of time other 

than for the expeditious unloading and delivery or pickup and loading of property in any 

place marked as a loading zone during hours when the provisions applicable to such zones 

are in effect. In no case shall may the stop for the expeditious loading and unloading of 

property exceed thirty (30) minutes. 

 

(c)  The driver of a vehicle may stop temporarily at a loading zone for the purpose of and 

while actually engaged in loading or unloading passengers when such stopping does not 

interfere with any vehicle which is waiting to enter or about to enter such zone to load or 

unload property.  In no case may such a stop exceed thirty (30) minutes. 

 

(d)  The city manager is authorized to grant permits to persons involved in construction in or near 

passenger and loading zones to park construction related vehicles in these zones longer than 

designated by signage or colored markings or lines.  Persons who fail to abide by the terms and 

conditions of the permit may receive a citation for each successive thirty (30) minutes that a 

vehicle is left continuously parked in these zones in violation of the permit. 

 

Sec. 37-107. Bus stop and taxicab stands. 

 

 (a) The traffic management administratortransportation director is hereby authorized and required to 

establish bus stops, bus stands, taxicab stands, and stands for other passenger common-carrier motor 

vehicles on such public streets in such places and in such number as he or shell shall determines to be of 

the greatest benefit and convenience to the public, and every such bus stop, bus stand, taxicab stand, or 

other stand shall will be designated by appropriate signs. 

 

 (b) The operator of a bus shall may not stand or park such vehicle upon any street at any place other 

than a bus stand, bus stop, or passenger loading zone so designated as provided herein, except in case of 

an emergency..  

 

 (c) The operator of a bus shall may not stop such vehicle upon any street at any place for the purpose 

of loading or unloading passengers or their baggage other than at a bus stop, bus stand, or passenger 

loading zone so designated as provided herein, except in case of an emergency. 

 

 (d) The operator of a bus shall must enter a bus stop, bus stand, or passenger loading zone on a 

public street in such a manner that the bus, when stopped to load or unload passengers or baggage, shall 

will be in a position with the right front wheel of such vehicle not farther than eighteen (18) inches from 

the curb and the bus approximately parallel to the curb so as not to unduly impede the movement of 

other vehicular traffic. 

 

 (e) The operator of a taxicab shall may not stand or park such vehicle upon any street at any place 

other than in a taxicab stand so designated as provided herein. This provision shall does not prevent the 

operator of a taxicab from temporarily stopping in accordance with other stopping or parking regulations 

at any place for the purpose of and while actually engaged in the expeditious loading or unloading of 



 

Page 27 of 39 

 

passengers. 

 

 (f) No person shall may stop, stand, or park a vehicle other than a bus in a bus stop, bus stand, or 

passenger loading zone or other than a taxicab in a taxicab stand when any such stop or stand has been 

officially designated and appropriately signed, except that the driver of a passenger vehicle may 

temporarily stop therein for the purpose of and while actually engaged in loading or unloading 

passengers when such stopping does not interfere with any bus or taxicab waiting to enter or about to 

enter such zone. 

 

Sec. 37-108. Reserved. 

 

Sec. 37-109. Vehicle parked in violation of city ordinance. 

 

 No person shall may allow, suffer, or permit any vehicle registered in his name to stand or be parked 

in, on or upon any street in the City of Temple in violation of any of the ordinances of this city 

regulating the stopping, standing, or parking of vehicles. 

 

Sec. 37-110. Parking violations made  civil offenses. 

 

 A violation of a provision of this article governing the stopping, standing, and parking of a vehicle is 

a civil offense.  

 

Sec. 37-111. Hearing officer powers, duties, and functions.  

 

(a) The city manager, or the city manager’s designee, will appoint one or more hearing officers to 

administratively adjudicate stopping, standing, and parking violations under the Code of Ordinances.  

 

(b) A hearing officer has the authority to:  

 

(1) Administer oaths;   

 

(2) Issue orders compelling the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents, which may 

be enforced by the municipal court; 

 

(3) Accept admissions and hear and determine contests of parking violations under this article; 

 

(4) Assess civil fines, penalties, and costs for a parking violation in accordance with this 

articlechapter; 

 

(5) Issue orders of immobilization or impoundment of vehicles;  

 

(6) Set conditions for the release of vehicles immobilized or impounded under this article; 



 

Page 28 of 39 

 

 

(7) Administratively terminate citations or dismiss cases arising from possible violations of this 

article that the hearing officer determines to be uncollectable,  unenforceable,  or erroneously 

issued; and 

 

(8) Preside over,  hear evidence, and make findings at immobilization and impoundment hearings 

under this article.   

 

Sec. 37-112. Citations. 

 

(a) The administrative adjudication process for violations under this article will be initiated by the 

issuance of a citation which may be issued by a peace officer or by a parking enforcement official 

designated to perform this duty by the Temple Police Department.  

 

(b) A citation serves as the summons and provides the time and place of an administrative 

adjudication hearing. 

 

(c) A citation will contain the following information:  

 

(1) The nature, date, time, and location of the alleged violation;  

 

(2) The state license plate number of the vehicle, or if the license plate number is not visible or 

legible, other observable identification information, including but not limited to vehicle 

identification number or the state inspection tag number;  

 

(3) The make of the vehicle, if known, or a vehicle description;  

 

(4) The appearance date for the citation, including information as to the time and place of the 

administrative adjudication hearing for the alleged offense committed under this article 

scheduled on the appearance date; 

 

(5) A notification that the person charged with the violation has the right to an instanter 

hearing on or before the appearance date on a day of the week established by the municipal 

court for the routine operation of the court;  

 

(6) A notification that failure to answer the citation or to appear for a hearing on or before the 

appearance date is considered an admission of liability for the violation and will result in 

the assessment of civil fines, costs, and fees; and  

 

(7) The identification number and/or the initials of the individual issuing the citation.  

 

(d) The original or a copy of the citation is a governmental record kept in the ordinary course of 



 

Page 29 of 39 

 

city business and is rebuttable proof of the facts it contains. 

 

Sec. 37-113. Service of a citation; presumption of service. 

 

(a) A citation must be served on the operator of the vehicle or the registered owner of the vehicle 

by either personal service of the citation or by affixing the citation to the vehicle in a 

conspicuous place.  

 

(b) The operator of a vehicle who is not the registered owner but has the express or implied 

permission to operate the vehicle is considered the registered owner' s agent and is authorized 

to receive a citation.  

 

(c) The original and all copies, including electronic copies, of a citation are prima facie evidence 

that the citation was issued and that an attempt at service was made in accordance with this 

section.  

 

Sec. 37-114. Answering a citation.  

 

 (a) A person issued a citation must answer the citation not later than the appearance date provided on 

the citation. 

 

(b) An answer may be made in any of the following ways:  

 

(1) A person may admit liability and pay the applicable civil fines, costs, and fees. A person may 

pay in person, by mail, by electronic means, or by other method of payment as determined by 

the municipal court clerk; or 

 

  (2) A person may appear before a hearing officer on the appearance date for his or her scheduled 

administrative hearing or at an instanter hearing before the appearance date.. 

 

 (c) Payment of civil fines, costs, and fees assessed under this article operates as an admission of 

liability for the parking violation and is the final disposition of the parking violation charge.  

 

Sec. 37-115. Presumptions. 

 

 In an administrative adjudication hearing for a citation:  

 

(a) It is presumed that the registered owner of the motor vehicle is the person who parked or 

stopped the vehicle at the time and place of the offense charged; and 

 

(b) The Texas Department of Motor Vehicles’ computer-generated record of the registered vehicle 

owner is prima facie evidence of the contents of the record.  

 



 

Page 30 of 39 

 

Sec. 37-116. Hearings for disposition of a citation.  

 

(a) A hearing to adjudicate a parking violation charge under this article will be conducted by a 

hearing officer.  

 

(b) The Texas Rules of Evidence do not apply to a hearing under this article.  

 

(c) No formal or sworn complaint or any other charging instrument is required.  

 

(d) The hearing officer will hear and consider:  

 

(1) Evidence presented by the person charged;  

 

(2) Presumptions and prima facie evidence established by this article or other applicable law; and 

 

(3)  Evidence presented by the issuing officer, if he or she attends the hearing.  

 

 (e) The hearing officer will make a decision based on a preponderance of the evidence after 

considering the presumptions.  

 

 (f) All hearings will be recorded by an electronic recording device.  

 

 (g) The acceptance of documents or real evidence shall be noted on the record. The recorded 

testimony, documents, and other evidence shall constitute the record for appeal. The Municipal Court 

will maintain all exhibits admitted during the proceeding and the official record of the proceeding. 

 

 (h) The person who issued the citation is not required to attend an instanter hearing, unless ordered 

to do so by the hearing officer. 

 

 (i) It is not required that the prosecuting attorney attend the hearing. If the person is represented by 

legal counsel at the hearing, the hearing officer must notify the prosecuting attorney who will have the 

right to appear on behalf of the city at the hearing. 

 

 (j) At the conclusion of the hearing, a hearing officer will issue an order either:   

 

(1) Finding the person is liable for the parking violation and assessing the applicable civil 

fines, costs, and fees; or 

 

(2) Finding the person is not liable for the parking violation.  

 

 (k) A person charged with a civil offense who fails to answer a citation on or before the appearance 

date is considered to admit liability for the offense charged, and an order will be issued on that basis.  

 



 

Page 31 of 39 

 

 (l) Any orders issued under this article will be filed with the municipal court clerk.  Orders will be 

kept in a separate index and file. The order may be recorded using microfilm, microfiche, or data 

processing techniques. 

 

Sec. 37-117. Appeals. 

 

(a) A person found liable by the hearing officer for a parking or stopping ordinance may appeal 

the determination to municipal court.  

 

(b) The appeal must be instituted by filing, not later than the 30th day after the date on which the 

hearing officer’s order is filed, a petition with the clerk of the municipal court and paying a 

non-refundable filing fee.  

 

(c) A person who accepts liability or fails to contest liability by the appearance date is not entitled 

to an appeal hearing.  

 

(d) Service of notice of appeal under this section does not stay the enforcement and collection of 

any order of a hearing officer, unless the person found liable, before appealing, posts a cash 

appeal bond with the municipal court clerk in an amount equal to all civil fines, costs, and 

fees assessed by hearing officer. 

 

(e) When an appeal petition is filed, the municipal court clerk will schedule an appeal hearing and 

notify each party of the date, time, and location of the appeal hearing.  

 

(f) An appeal hearing is conducted by the municipal court judge.  

 

(g) The judge will review the record and hear oral arguments of the parties at the appeal hearing.  

 

(h) The judge may receive evidence of procedural irregularities alleged to have occurred at the 

hearing that are not reflected in the record.  

 

(i) The judge may not reverse the hearing officer' s decision unless it is determined to be:  

 

(1) In violation of law;  

 

(2) Not reasonably supported by substantial evidence, based upon a review of the reliable and 

probative evidence in the record as a whole; or  

 

(3) Arbitrary and capricious or characterized by an abuse of discretion.  

 

(j) If the findings of the hearing officer are affirmed, the civil fines, costs, or fees may not be 

modified except that additional penalties and other costs or fees may be added according to 

this article.  



 

Page 32 of 39 

 

 

(k) The municipal court judge’s ruling is final and may not be appealed.  

 

Sec. 37-118.  Fine Amounts. 

 

(a) Upon a finding of liability, a hearing officer may assess the person a fine ranging from one 

dollar ($1.00) to five hundred dollars ($500.00) in addition to applicable costs and fees. 

 

(b) A late fee will be assessed if: 

 

(1) The person does not answer the citation on or before the appearance date; or 

 

(2) The person fails to pay in full within a specified time period. 

 

(c) A ten dollar ($10.00) late fee may be assessed every thirty days up to a maximum of sixty 

dollars ($60.00) until all applicable fines, costs, and fees are paid in full.  

 

(d) A hearing officer may reduce fine amounts based on an inability to pay or allow liable 

persons to make payment plans based on ability to pay.  

 

Sec. 37-119.  Enforcement of oOrder. 

 

 When a person is found liable for violations under this article and has not paid the fines, costs, and 

fees assessed when due, the fines, costs, and fees assessed for the violations may be enforced by:  

 

(a) Impounding the vehicle if the owner or operator of the vehicle has committed three or more 

such violations in a calendar year;  

 

(b) Placing a device on the vehicle that prohibits movement of the motor vehicle if the owner or 

operator of the vehicle has committed three or more such violations in a calendar year or has 

three or more outstanding or unresolved citations issued under this article;  

 

(c) Imposing an additional fine if the original fine is not paid within a specified time;  

 

(d) Denying issuance of or revoking a parking or operating permit, as applicable; or  

 

(e) Filing an action to collect the fines, costs, or fees in a court of competent jurisdiction.  

 

Sec. 37-120. Impoundment or immobilization of motor vehicles.  

 

(a) A hearing officer will determine if a vehicle is subject to impoundment or immobilization under 

this article.  

 



 

Page 33 of 39 

 

(b) If a hearing officer determines that a vehicle is subject to impoundment or immobilization, the 

hearing officer will send a written notice of the opportunity for a hearing before a written order 

to impound or immobilize the vehicle is issued. The written notice will be mailed to the last 

address of the registered owner on record with the Texas Department of Motor Vehicles or to the 

address of the registered owner or operator last known to the hearing officer.  

 

(c) The written notice will contain the following information:  

 

(1) The vehicle license plate number;  

 

(2) The name of the last registered owner of the vehicle;  

 

(3) The date issued, fine amounts, costs, and fees for all outstanding or unresolved citations 

issued under this article;  

 

(4) A statement that a request for a hearing to determine whether or not the motor vehicle will 

be immobilized or impounded must be made to the municipal court clerk in writing, 

without requirement of bond, within twenty (20) days after the date the notice was mailed;  

 

(5) A statement that failure to request a hearing before the expiration of the twenty-day period, 

or failure to appear at a requested hearing will constitute a waiver of the opportunity to 

oppose the proposed impoundment or immobilization; and  

 

(6) A statement indicating that the registered owner of the vehicle, in addition to being 

responsible for all outstanding citations issued under this article, will be responsible for all 

fees and costs incurred in immobilizing and impounding the vehicle, including storage fees.  

 

Sec. 37-121. Hearing before hearing officer regarding impoundment or immobilization of vehicle; 

issuance of order.  

 

(a) A person may request a hearing before a hearing officer to contest impoundment or 

immobilization of a vehicle.   

 

(b) A request for a hearing under this section must be submitted in writing to the municipal 

court clerk not later than the twentieth (20th) business day after the date the notice of 

impoundment or immobilization was mailed.   

 

(c) A failure to timely request or appear at a hearing under this section waives any objection to 

the proposed impoundment or immobilization of the vehicle.   

 

(d) The only issue at a hearing under this section is whether the vehicle may be impounded or 

immobilized under Sec. 37-119. 

 



 

Page 34 of 39 

 

(e) The hearing officer will issue an order of impoundment or immobilization if:  

 

(1) A person does not timely request a hearing under this section;  

 

(2) A person does not appear at a scheduled impoundment or immobilization hearing; or  

 

(3) A hearing officer determines at the hearing that the vehicle is subject to impoundment or 

immobilization.  

 

(f) An impoundment order and an immobilization order must include the information described in 

Sec. 37-120 regarding notice requirements. 

 

(g) If a hearing is requested and held,  the hearing officer will provide the signed order of 

immobilization or impoundment at the hearing.  

 

(h) If a hearing is not requested, a signed order of immobilization or impoundment will be 

provided upon request and at no cost to a party to the case.   

 

Sec. 37-122. Interference with impoundment or immobilization prohibited.  

 

(a) A person may not knowingly, intentionally,  or recklessly obstruct,  prevent,  hinder,  or 

interfere with a person executing an order of impoundment or immobilization.  

 

(b) A person may not tamper with,  deface,  damage, or attempt to remove an immobilization 

device when it has been installed.  

 

(c) An offense under this Section is a Class C misdemeanor and is punishable by a fine up to 

five hundred dollars ($500.00).   

 

Sec. 37-123. Execution of impoundment order.  

 

(a) An impoundment order is executed when the vehicle identified in the order is seized, 

removed to,  and stored at an authorized vehicle depository.   

 

(b) An impoundment order may be executed by:  

 

(1) A certified peace officer;  

 

(2) A city parking enforcement officer;  

 



 

Page 35 of 39 

 

(3) An authorized city employee; or  

 

(4) An authorized city agent.   

 

(c) If it is necessary for a person executing an order of impoundment to enter a motor vehicle 

to effectuate its impoundment,  entry into the vehicle will be made by or in the presence of 

a certified peace officer.  An inventory of the vehicle will be conducted by or in the 

presence of certified peace officer who will sign the inventory.  

 

(d) The person executing an order of impoundment will promptly notify the municipal court 

clerk or designee of the date and time of the impoundment.  

 

(e) Nothing under this article will be construed to restrict or limit the authority of police officers 

to tow and impound vehicles under other applicable law.  

 

Sec. 37-124. Execution of immobilization order.  

 

(a) An immobilization order is executed when a device designed to restrict the normal 

movement of the vehicle has been installed or attached.  

 

(b) An immobilization order may be executed by:  

 

(1) A certified peace officer;  

 

(2) A city parking enforcement officer;  

 

(3) An authorized city employee; or  

 

(4) An authorized city agent.   

 

(c) At the time of immobilization, the person executing the order of immobilization must 

attach to the vehicle a conspicuous written notice,  on a form provided by the city,  that 

includes the following information:  

 

(1) Notice that the vehicle has been immobilized under a court order and that attempted 

movement may cause damage to the vehicle;  

 

(2) Notice that it is unlawful for any person to tamper with,  deface,  damage, or attempt to 

remove an immobilization device when it has been installed;  



 

Page 36 of 39 

 

 

(3) Instructions to obtain a release of the vehicle;  

 

(4) Notice that the vehicle may be towed and impounded if the owner or a person 

authorized to act on behalf of the owner does not obtain a release of the vehicle from 

the municipal court,  or the Temple Police Department when the municipal court is 

closed, by 4:00 p.m.  on the day the vehicle has been immobilized; and  

 

(5) Notice that if the vehicle is towed and impounded, the owner shall be responsible for 

payment of applicable fees for towing, impoundment,  and storage in addition to the 

civil fines,  costs,  and fees under this article.   

 

Sec. 37-125. Reclamation of an impounded or immobilized vehicle.   

 

(a) The owner or other person with legal right of possession of a vehicle that has been 

impounded or immobilized under an order may reclaim the vehicle by:  

 

(1) Presenting evidence satisfactory to the municipal court clerk during its hours of 

operation, or the Temple Ppolice Department when the municipal court is closed, that 

establishes ownership or right of possession; and  

 

(2) Paying in full all accumulated civil fines,  costs,  and fees,  including costs and fees of 

immobilization or impoundment and storage.   

 

(b) If the owner or other person with legal right of possession cannot provide payment in full,  

the person may appear before a hearing officer during the municipal court’s hours of 

operation to arrange to pay:  

 

(1) All accumulated civil fines,  costs,  and fees at a later specified date; or  

 

(2) A specified portion of all accumulated civil fines,  costs,  and fees at designated intervals.   

 

(c) If the owner or other person with legal right of possession has paid,  or arranged to pay, the 

accumulated civil fines,  costs and fees,  the owner or other person may reclaim the 

impounded vehicle or have the immobilization device removed. Upon making such payment 

or payment arrangements,  the owner or other person with legal right of possession of the 

vehicle will receive a signed release order for the vehicle.  

 



 

Page 37 of 39 

 

(d) A hearing officer may reissue an impoundment or immobilization order  under Sec. 37-121 

without additional notice if the owner or other person with legal right of possession of the 

vehicle fails to comply with a condition imposed under this section.  

 

Sec. 37-126. Release of impounded vehicle.   

 

(a) A person in actual possession of the impounded vehicle will release the vehicle to a person 

named in the release order if the person named in the order presents the signed release 

order and proof of identity.   

 

(b) A person releasing the vehicle will indicate the date and time that a vehicle was released 

on the release order,  or on a paper attached to it.   

 

(c) A release order must be signed by the person reclaiming the vehicle and the person 

releasing the vehicle.   

 

(d) After the release order is signed, the person releasing the vehicle must return the order to 

the municipal court.   

 

(e) A person in possession of an impounded vehicle may not request or require the person 

reclaiming the vehicle to sign a release from liability for damages or loss until the person 

authorized to reclaim the vehicle has been provided a meaningful opportunity to inspect 

the vehicle and its contents.   

 

(f) A release from liability must:  

 

(1) Indicate whether the person reclaiming the vehicle has made an inspection of the 

vehicle;  

 

(2) Include an enumeration of the damages,  if any, allegedly the result of impounding the 

vehicle; and  

 

(3) Include a list of the items, if any, allegedly missing from vehicle.   

 

 (g) A copy or duplicate of the original release must be provided to the person that reclaims an 

impounded vehicle.   

 

Secs. 37-127112--37-14920. Reserved. 

 



 

Page 38 of 39 

 

 ARTICLE V. RESERVED. 

 

ARTICLE V. HAZARDOUS CARGO ROUTES 

 

Section 37-150. Definitions. 

 

For the purposes of this article, the following words and terms shall have the meanings ascribed to 

them: 

 

 (a) Hazardous Materials means any quantity, group, form or class of material designated 

as hazardous material in any official publication of the Secretary of Transportation of 

the United States under the authority of 49 C.F.R. U.S.C.A. Section 171, et seq., as 

amended, including any such publication issued after the effective date of this 

ordinance. 

 

 (b) Requiring Placards means that the materials to be transported is hazardous and is in 

sufficient quantity to require placarding in accordance with the Department of 

Transportation Hazardous Materials Regulations (49 C.F.R. U.S.C.A. Section 171, et 

seq., as amended), or in accordance with stateTexas law.the Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Art. 

6701D, Section 139, as amended, or regulations promulgated under the authority of 

said Section 139, as amended. 

 

 (c) Transport shall mean to move any vehicle requiring placards upon any public 

thoroughfare or highway. 

 

Section 37-151. Hazardous cCargo rRoute.   

 

No person shall may knowingly transport materials or knowingly cause hazardous materials to 

be transported upon any public street and highway within the corporate limits of the City of Temple, 

Texas, except upon those portions of Interstate Highway 35 and H.K. Dodgen Loop, as more fully 

shown on a map, attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes as Exhibit "A," and on file 

in the Office of the Director of Public Works of the City of Temple. Provided, however, this section 

shall does not apply to those persons who leave the hazardous cargo route by the most direct route to 

make a delivery or pickup of hazardous cargo within the corporate limits of the City of Temple.  

 

Section 37-152. Vehicle oOperation.  

 

The operator of a vehicle used to transport hazardous materials requiring placards shallmust: 

 

 (a) Apply and display appropriate placards meeting U.S. Department of Transportation 

specifications; and 

 

 (b) Keep immediately accessible, complete, and adequate shipping papers for the hazardous 



 

Page 39 of 39 

 

materials being shipped, which papers must specify: 

 

(1) Oorigin of the shipment; 

 

(2) destinationDestination or delivery point of the shipment; 

 

(3) properProper shipping name; 

 

(4) hazardHazard class; 

 

(5) properProper identification number; 

 

(6) totalTotal quantity of material being shipped; and 

 

 (c) Before operation, inspect the vehicle and determine that: 

 

(1) The brakes are in good working condition; 

 

(2) The steering mechanism is in good working condition; 

 

(3) The electrical wiring is well insulated and firmly secured; 

 

(4) The required lights are operative; 

 

(5) The vehicle is in a safe condition to transport hazardous materials; 

 

(6) The fire extinguisher is fully charged and operational; and 

 

(7) All emergency features on bulk transport carriers are installed and operative as 

outlined in U.S. Department of Transportation specifications and requirements.  

 

Section 37-153. Presumptions; dDefenses.  

 

It shall beis presumed for purposes of prosecution under this ordinance that a transporting 

vehicle contains hazardous materials if it bears a placard. It shall beis a defense to prosecution under 

this ordinance that the transporting vehicle was empty.  

 

Section 37-154. Enforcement. 

 

The Police Department of the City of Temple is expressly authorized to enforce the provisions 

of this ordinance. 

 

Revised by Ordinance No. 2015-4738 (12/3/15) 



 1

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4845 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 37, 
“TRAFFIC,” TO INCLUDE A GENERAL UPDATE OF THE CHAPTER AND 
CHANGES TO THE TWO-HOUR PARKING REGULATIONS; PROVIDING 
A REPEALER; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, in a continuing effort to review and update the City’s Code of Ordinances, 
Staff is proposing certain amendments to Chapter 37, “Traffic;”  
 

Whereas, the amendments include changes to outdated State law references and City 
Staff positions and include changes to the City’s two-hour parking regulations which deletes a 
lengthy description of where two-hour parking zones are located and references to an outdated 
map;  
 

Whereas, the most significant amendment is a proposed change to the enforcement 
process for parking violations which states that no person may stand or park a vehicle in, on, or 
upon any street in the City, or violate any of the regulations regarding stopping, standing, or 
parking vehicles; 

 
Whereas, violations of parking regulations are a criminal offense under Chapter 37, 

however, State law allows the City to enforce parking violations through a civil process and the 
proposed amendments designate parking violations as a civil offense and set forth the civil 
enforcement process; 
 

Whereas, a hearing officer will be appointed within the City to hear and determine 
contests of parking violations - the hearing officer will have the authority to administer oaths, 
issue orders compelling the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents, accept 
admissions, hear and determine contests of parking violations, and assess civil fines, penalties, 
and costs of a parking violation; 

 
Whereas, the civil adjudication process for parking violations will begin with a citation 

issued by a peace officer or by a parking enforcement official designated to perform this duty by 
the Police Department - the citation will provide a time and place for an administrative hearing; 

 
Whereas, the person issued a citation must answer the citation no later than the date 

provided for the administrative hearing and the answer must be made in the following ways: 
 

 A person may admit liability and pay the applicable civil fines, costs, and fees; or 
 A person may appear before the hearing officer on the appearance date for his or her 

scheduled administrative hearing or at an instanter hearing before the appearance date;  



 2

 
 

Whereas, a person has the right to an instanter hearing which may be held before the 
appearance date on a day of the week established by the hearing officer and at the conclusion of 
the hearing, the hearing officer will issue an order either (1) finding the person liable for the 
parking violation and assessing the applicable civil fines, costs, and fees, or (2) finding the 
person is not liable for the parking violation;  
 

Whereas, the current fine for parking violations is $5.00 and the amendments propose a 
range for fine amounts from $1.00 to $500.00; 
 

Whereas, the proposed amendments allow for enforcement of a hearing officer’s order 
in the following ways: 

 
 Impounding the vehicle if the owner or operator of the vehicle has 
 committed three or more parking violations in a calendar year; 
 Placing a device on the vehicle that prohibits movement of the vehicle if the 
 owner or operator of the vehicle has committed three or more such 
 violations in a calendar year or has three or more outstanding or unresolved
 citations; 
 Imposing an additional fine if the original fine is not paid within a specified 
 time; 
 Denying issuance of or revoking a parking or operating permit, as  applicable;  
 Filing an action to collect the fines, costs, or fees in a court of competent 
 jurisdiction; 

 
Whereas, the listed enforcement actions are allowed by State law; 

 
Whereas, the remaining amendments include a general cleanup of the language and 

formatting of the Chapter;  
 
Whereas, Staff recommends Council amend the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 37, 

“Traffic,” to include a general update of the Chapter and changes to the two-hour parking 
regulations;  

 
Whereas, parking fine violation fees are deposited into the General Fund Account 

No. 110-0000-452-0361; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety.  



 3

 
 
 Part 2: The City Council amends the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 37, “Traffic,” as 
attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 3: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the 
final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not 
affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or 
section. 
 

Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 

June, 2017. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Kayla Landeros, City Attorney 
Belinda Mattke, Purchasing Director  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING. Consider adopting an ordinance 
amending Chapter 39 of the Code of Ordinances, “Wreckers.” 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing, and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, with second and final reading on June 15th.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: City of Temple Code of Ordinances, Chapter 39, “Wreckers,” currently requires the 
City to advertise for bids and contract for wrecker services with the “lowest acceptable bidder.” In 
addition, Chapter 39 states that the term of any contract for wrecker services may only be two years. 
The City has been following this process for several years, however Staff is proposing to amend the 
language of Section 39-1 to allow the City to award the contract to one or more companies providing 
the best value to the City, instead of being required to award the contract to the lowest acceptable 
bidder. Additionally, Staff would prefer to have flexibility on the term of any contract entered into for 
wrecker services.  
 
The City has a need for reliable and efficient wrecker services to assist with clearing traffic accidents 
and removing disabled vehicles. The contracted company is required to provide non-consent tows and 
towing of disabled vehicles within the City limits. The City requires towing services on request of City 
personnel on a 24 hours/day, seven days/week basis when the vehicle’s owner is unavailable, unable 
or unwilling to arrange for their vehicle to be towed. Some examples of those circumstances include: 
when city officials identify abandoned motor vehicles or junked vehicles which cannot lawfully be driven 
on a public roadway; when police seize vehicles as evidence in criminal cases or for safekeeping in 
connection with an arrest; when a vehicle has been damaged in a traffic accident or becomes disabled 
and is disrupting traffic on a public roadway. The City does not pay for wrecker services. All costs for 
the services are passed along to vehicle owners. 
 
The City currently contracts with the Towman’s Association for wrecker services. That contract will 
expire on August 31, 2017. Staff is preparing to bid these services and would prefer that Chapter 39 be 
amended to provide more flexibility in the bidding process. 
 
Attached to this Memorandum is a redlined draft of the proposed amendments to Chapter 39. Staff is 
also asking that Section 39-6 be deleted as it references outdated State law.  
 



06/01/17 
Item #10 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Redlined Draft of Chapter 39 
Ordinance 
 
  



 Chapter 39 

 

 WRECKERS 
 

Sec. 39-1. City wrecker service to be by bid. 

 

 The City of Temple shall will advertise for bids proposals and contract for wrecker 

service with the lowest acceptable bidder. The contract shall be for a term of two (2) 

years and shallwill require the successful bidder contractor to provide motor vehicle 

wrecker service within the City of Temple, as needed and required by the police 

department, and to operate and maintain a storage facility for impounded vehicles. 

Specifications for bids proposals shall will be prepared by the purchasing agent of the 

City of TemplePurchasing Department. The contract will be awarded to one or more 

contractors determined to provide the best value to the City. 

 

Sec. 39-2. City service bid not a restriction on choice. 

 

 Nothing contained in the bid or contract shall will prohibit any citizen from utilizing 

any other wrecker service. 

 

Sec. 39-3. Call to accident scene. 

 

 No person shall drive a wrecker to or near the site of a motor vehicle accident on the 

streets of the city, unless such person has been summoned by the police department or the 

owner of a vehicle involved in the accident; provided, however, when necessary to 

prevent death or bodily injury the prohibition of this section shall be inapplicable. 

 

Sec. 39-4. Soliciting business. 

 

 No person shall solicit on the public streets, directly or indirectly, the business of 

towing, repair or acquisition of any vehicle which is wrecked or disabled on a public 

street. 

 

Sec. 39-5. Intercepting radio messages. 

 

 It shall beis unlawful for any person to intercept, receive or assist the interception or 

reception of any message emanating through the medium of the city police radio station 

and to divulge or publish the existence, contents or substance of such communication for 

the purpose of allowing or aiding a wrecker service to respond to the site of a motor 

vehicle accident when not otherwise summoned to the scene under the provisions of 

section 39-3. 

 

Sec. 39-6. Local option. 

 

 The City of Temple exercises the option provided in Article 6687-9a, Revised Civil 

Statutes of Texas, Section 13(a), to exempt vehicle storage facilities located in and 

operating within the territorial limits of the City of Temple from the requirements of 



Article 6687-9a, and all regulations adopted under the authority of Article 6687-9a. 



 1

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4846 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 39, 
“WRECKERS;” PROVIDING A REPEALER; PROVIDING A SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple Code of Ordinances, Chapter 39, “Wreckers” currently 
requires the City to advertise for bids and contract for wrecker services with the “lowest 
acceptable bidder;” 
 

Whereas, Chapter 39 states that the term of any contract for wrecker services may only 
be 2 years - the City has been following this process for several years; 

 
Whereas, Staff is proposing to amend the language of Section 39-1 to allow the City to 

award the contract for wrecker services to one or more companies providing the best value to 
the City, instead of being required to award the contract to the lowest acceptable bidder - Staff 
also desires to have flexibility on the term of any contract entered into for wrecker services;  

 
Whereas, the City has a need for reliable and efficient wrecker services to assist with 

clearing traffic accidents, removing disabled vehicles, and the contracted company is required 
to provide non-consent tows and towing of disabled vehicles within the City limits; 

 
Whereas, the City also requires towing services on request of City personnel on a 24 

hours/day, 7 days/week basis when the vehicle’s owner is unavailable, unable or unwilling to 
arrange for their vehicle to be towed - the City does not pay for wrecker services and all costs 
for the services are passed along to vehicle owners; 
 

Whereas, the City currently contracts with the Towman’s Association for wrecker 
services and that contract expires August 31, 2017; 

 
Whereas, Staff is preparing to bid these services and would prefer that Chapter 39 be 

amended to provide more flexibility in the bidding process; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1: Findings. All of the above premises are hereby found to be true and correct 
legislative and factual findings of the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, and they are 
hereby approved and incorporated into the body of this Ordinance as if copied in their 
entirety.  
 
 



 2

 
 
 Part 2: The City Council amends Chapter 39 of the Code of Ordinances, “Wreckers” 
as attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

Part 3: All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 

 
Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of this ordinance, since 
the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this 
ordinance of any such invalid phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 

June, 2017. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of June, 2017. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

06/01/17 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Mark Baker, Senior Planner 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-27: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to General Retail zoning district on 
2.485 +/- acres, situated in the George W. Lindsey, Abstract No. 513, located at 40 Morgan's Point 
Road.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from Agricultural (AG) district 
to Planned Development-General Retail (PD-GR) district based on the following compatibility factors: 
 

4. Compliance with the provisions of the Planned Development Criteria as required by UDC Section 
3.4.5; 

5. Compliance with the FM 2271 Corridor Plan and with Planned Developments approved within 
the corridor; 

6. Compatibility with the Future Land Use Map’s Suburban Commercial District; 
7. Compatibility with surrounding zoning, existing and anticipated uses; 
8. Compliance with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 
9. Availability of public and on-site facilities to serve the subject property; and 

 
Staff recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. A 10-foot tree preservation buffer is provided along the north property line;  
2. A 15-foot tree preservation buffer for the preservation of existing canopy trees with a minimum 

diameter of eight inches at breast height, is provided along the street frontage of Morgan’s Point 
Road, excluding ingress and egress points; 

3. Existing trees and other landscape material shall be counted as credit toward meeting the overall 
landscape requirements of UDC Section 7.4.4, subject to review of a Landscape Plan at the 
building permit review stage;   

4. Maximum building height of 25 feet; 
5. Residential appearance to buildings with pitched roofs, windows, foundation plantings and brick 

/ masonry facades; 
6. Driveway openings no closer than 150 feet apart; and 
7. Freestanding signs: maximum 30 feet height. 

 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their May 1, 2017 meeting, The 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted seven to zero to recommend approval of the proposed rezoning 
per staff’s recommendation. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The owner Alexander Peshkov, being represented by Aldrich-Thomas Group, 
requests rezoning of a 2.485 +/- acre tract, from Agricultural (AG) zoning district to General Retail (GR) 
zoning district.  Although the rezoning is not being driven by a specific user, the owner intends to market 
the property for retail and service uses. 
 
Select trees have been recently removed on the site leaving mature hardwood trees. Significant tree 
preservation is noted as well as other vegetation and landscaping. Per UDC Section 7.4.4, a minimum 
5% of the subject property is to be landscaped. It is further noted that per UDC sections 7.4.7 and 
7.4.11, existing landscaping requirements may be adjusted using existing healthy plant material that 
exists prior to development. This is an opportunity to use the existing trees and vegetation to meet code 
requirements. 
 
FM 2271 CORRIDOR PLAN: The City of Temple City Council adopted the FM 2271 Corridor Plan per 
Ordinance 98-2589. The Corridor Plan was intended to be a general guide for development within the 
study area over the course of 10 to 20 years. While it was adopted in 1998, it is still a relevant guideline 
for the defined corridor.  
 
The study area for the Corridor Plan spans one-quarter mile on either side of FM 2271 (Morgan’s Point 
Road), within the corporate boundaries of the City of Temple, bounded by Belton Dam on the south 
and Bonnie Lane on the north, consisting of approximately 438 acres of land. The subject property is 
within those boundaries and is subject to the guidelines of the Corridor Plan.  Further, the plan identifies 
General Retail (GR) as the appropriate zoning district to provide the retail and service uses. The Plan 
also identifies the Planned Development concept to codify the guidelines of the Corridor Plan. 
 
The proposed, previously-mentioned, conditions in the staff recommendation are consistent with the 
intent of the Corridor Plan and existing vegetative conditions. 

 
Early in the application process, staff met and discussed with the applicant options for the request.  
Options discussed with the applicant included: 
 

1. Proceed as discussed with a Planned Development, which would codify relevant standards of 
the FM 2271 Corridor Plan; or 

2. Develop Deed Restrictions for the property that provide for the guidelines in the FM 2271 
Corridor Plan. Deed restrictions would require creation of an enforcement mechanism such as 
a property owner’s association. 

 
It is noteworthy, that both the FM 2271 Corridor Plan’s Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map (attached 
with Maps) identify the subject property as within the target area for not only a Planned Development 
Concept but with an underlying zoning district of General Retail.  Therefore, proceeding as a PD-GR, 
the request is consistent with the intent of the FM 2271 Corridor Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 
In conclusion, while the tree preservation buffers and the Planned Development concept were 
discussed early in the process with the applicant, in order to retain marketability without the restrictions 
from a Planned Development, the property owner desires to proceed with the rezoning request for 
straight GR. While staff is supportive of the base zoning of GR, in order to implement the provisions of 
the FM 2271 Corridor Plan, without deed restrictions, a Planned Development concept with binding 
conditions of approval is necessary. 
 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (UDC SEC. 3.4): A Planned Development is a flexible overlay zoning 
district designed to respond to unique development proposals, special design considerations and land 
use transitions by allowing evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding areas through 
development / site plan approval. 
 
As a Planned Development, per UDC Sec.3.4, a Development / Site Plan is binding and subject to 
review and approval by City Council as part of the rezoning. As opposed to a standard rezoning, 
conditions of approval can be included into the rezoning Ordinance.  
 
Further, this Planned Development (PD) concept, will have a base zoning of General Retail (GR) with 
no changes to the allowed uses of the GR district.  Building height however, will be restricted to two-
stories rather than three allowed in GR. At the same time, the PD concept codifies the intent of the FM 
2271 Corridor Plan and utilizes the natural resources to add buffer and screening for the subject 
property. As such, the Development / Site Plan is included as the Exhibit with the Rezoning Ordinance 
and identifies the location and size of the tree preservation buffers.  
 
In determining whether to approve, approve with conditions or deny a Planned Development 
application, the Planning & Zoning Commission and City Council must consider criteria as set forth in 
UDC Section 3.4.5 A-J. The Planned Development Criteria and Compliance Summary is attached. 
 
A formal subdivision plat is anticipated to be submitted in the future and will be reviewed by the 
Development Review Committee (DRC). If utility extension is required for sewer service, the plat will 
be scheduled for the Planning & Zoning Commission when it is deemed administratively complete.  It 
is not known at this time whether the Planning & Zoning Commission will be the final plat authority.    
 
While it is anticipated for the property to be developed with non-residential uses, there are a number of 
residential and non-residential uses that are permitted by right in the GR zoning district.  It should be 
noted that the Planned Development will be reflective of the underlying GR district. The uses include 
but are not limited to those shown in the attached table. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive 
Plan Compliance table but further described below: 
 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is entirely within the Suburban Commercial land use district. The Suburban 
Commercial district is appropriate for office, retail and services uses adjacent to and abutting residential 
neighborhoods and in other areas where the community’s image and aesthetic value is to be promoted, 
such as “Gateways” and high-profile corridor locations. The recommended base-zoning of General 
Retail (GR) is consistent with the Suburban Commercial Future Land Use Map designation. 
 
 



06/01/17 
Item #11 

Regular Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from FM 2271 is shown on the Thoroughfare Plan as a minor arterial. 
A minor arterial requires a minimum 70 feet of right-of-way (ROW) and 49 feet of pavement. The right-
of-way (ROW) width along the property frontage appears to range from an estimated 75 feet to 85 feet, 
which would be confirmed during the platting process. To date, no dedication issues have been 
identified. No Transportation Capital Improvement Program (TCIP) improvements scheduled through 
FY 2024 have been identified. 

 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Sewer is available from a 12-inch sewer line within FM 2305 (West Adams Avenue) but will need to be 
extended in order to serve the subject property. Water is available through three inch and eight inch 
water lines in FM 2271. Utility extension will be addressed during the review of the subdivision plat.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
On FM 2271, a proposed Local Connector Trail is shown on the Trails Master Plan. In addition, as a 
major arterial, a six foot sidewalk is required along FM 2271. The City may agree to upsize the six foot 
sidewalk. Provisions for the sidewalk will be addressed during the plat review stage.  
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: The attached table compare and contrast, the current Agricultural 
development standards with the proposed General Retail standards. 
 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE (DRC): The DRC reviewed the Development / Site Plan on May 1, 
2017 meeting.  No issues were identified. 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Fifteen notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent 
notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Tuesday May 23, 2017 
at 9:00 AM, six notices in agreement, four representing two separate property owners, have been 
received. Additionally, a seventh notice has been received as undeliverable.  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 20, 2017, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Development / Site Plan (Exhibit A) 
Field Notes (Exhibit B) 
Planned Development Criteria Compliance Summary (UDC Sec. 3.4.5) 
Photos 
Maps 
Tables 
Returned Property Notices 
PZ Excepts (May 1, 2017) 
Ordinance 
  



Outblock 
2773-A

Exhibit A

1. A 10-foot tree preservation buffer is provided along the north property
line;

2. A 15-foot tree preservation buffer for the preservation of existing
canopy trees with a minimum diameter of 8-inches at breast height, is
provided along the street frontage of Morgan’s Point Road, excluding
ingress and egress points;

3. Existing trees and other landscape material shall be counted as credit
toward meeting the overall landscape requirements of UDC Section
7.4.4, subject to review of a Landscape Plan at the building permit
review stage;

4. Maximum building height of 25 feet;
5. Residential appearance to buildings with pitched roofs, windows;

foundation plantings and brick / masonry facades;
6. Driveway openings no closer than 150 feet apart; and
7. Freestanding signs: maximum 30 feet height.

Conditions of Approval



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B



mbaker
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B



Planned Development Criteria and Compliance Summary

UDC Code Section 3.4.5 (A-J) Yes/No Discussion / Synopsis

I. Open space areas are designed to ensure that such 
areas are suitable for intended recreation and 
conservation uses.

YES Parkland dedication is not required for non-residential development.

J. Water, drainage, wastewater facilities, garbage disposal
and other utilities necessary for essential services to 
residents and occupants are provided.

A. The Plan Complies with all provisions of the Design and
Development Standards Manual, this UDC and other
Ordinances of the City. 

B. The environmental impact of the development relating 
to the preservation of existing natural resources on the
site and the impact on natural resources of the
surrounding impacts and neighborhood is mitigated.

D. Safe and efficient vehicular and pedestrian circulation
systems are provided.

C. The development is in harmony with the character, 
use and design of the surrounding area.

E. Off-street parking and loading facilities are designed
to ensure that all such spaces are usable and are safely
and conveniently arranged.

F. Streets are designed with sufficient width and suitable
grade and location to accommodate prospective traffic 
and to provide access for firefighting and emergency 
equipment to buildings.

G. Streets are coordinated so as to compose a convenient
system consistent with the Thoroughfare Plan of the 

City.

H. Landscaping and screening are integrated into the 
overall site design: 
1. To provide adequate buffers to shield lights, noise, 

movement or activities from adjacent properties 
when necessary. 

2. To complement the design and location of buildings.

YES

YES

YES

YES Vehicular circulation will be formally addressed during the building plan review stage.  No circulation issues have been identified with the 
companion development / site plan.

The project site is located within the FM2271 Corridor, addressed as 40 Morgan's Point Road.  Corridor Plan standards which have been 
adopted by ordinance for surrounding Planned Developments have required conditions that promote development standards that are in 
harmony with the surrounding area.   

Drainage and other related engineering will be addressed at the platting stage.  No issues have been identified related to the preservation 
of existing natural resources on the property.  See Item #H for additional discussion related to preservation of existing trees and other 
landscaping.

It is fully anticipated that the development / site plan attached with the rezoning ordinance will conform to all applicable provisions of the 
UDC as well as to dimensional, developmental and design standards adopted by the City for all new development. 

YES The recommendation of Planned Development, codifies the preservation of the existing trees, primarily Oak, which provide additional 
screening and buffering beyond what is required by UDC Section 7.7.  A  screening & buffer strip of 10 feet along the northern property line 
and a strip of 15 feet along the street frontage of Morgan's Point Road (FM2271) is recommended.  Other landscaping requirements in 
compliance with UDC Section 7.7 will be addressed during the building permit stage as the lot develops.  Compliance to buffering and 
screening in compliance to UDC Section 7.7 as well as Planned Development conditions of approval will be confirmed during the review of 
the subdivision plat and building permit.

YES Water is available from existing City water lines in Morgan's Point Road.  Wastewater will require the extension of a sewer line.  Utility 
extension and drainage facilities will be addressed at the platting stage.  To date, no issues other have been identified.  

YES Parking will be provided for each use in accordance with UDC Section 7.5.

YES Streets will be developed in accordance with the design standards in accordance with UDC Section 8.2 requirements and reviewed during 
the platting stage of development.

YES Compliance and consistancy with the Thoroughfare Plan will be addressed during the subdivision plat stage.  No compliance issues have 
been identified. 



Site & Surrounding Property Photos 

Site: Undeveloped (As seen from Morgan’s Point Road) 
(AG) 

Site: Undeveloped (Existing vegetation along Northern Property Boundary) 
(AG) 



Site: Undeveloped (Looking from Southern Property Boundary) 
Note: Existing line of tree preservation along Morgan’s Point Road (Arrow) 

(AG) 

Site: Undeveloped (Interior of Site) 
(AG) 



North: Existing SF Residential Use on Acreage 
(AG) 

East:  Existing Single Family Residence 
Note: Buffering from Existing Trees & Vegetation 

(UE) 



 
 

East:  Existing Retail and Site of Undeveloped Office Warehouse Use  
(PD-GR, per Ord. 2016-4794) 

 

 
 

East:  Existing Retail Service Uses  
(PD-GR) 

SF Residence 



 
 

West: Undeveloped  
(AG) 

 

 
 

South: Existing Retail & Service Uses 
(PD-GR) 



Maps 
 

 
 

Location Map 
 

 
 

Aerial Map 



 
 

Zoning Map 
 

 
 

Future Land Use Map 



 
 

Thoroughfare & Trails Map 
 

 
 

Utility Map 



 
 

Notification Map 
 
 

 
 
 

FM 2271 Corridor Plan 
 

Future Land Use Map 
& 

Zoning Map 
 
 

SEE NEXT 2 PAGES 



 
 

 FM 2271 Corridor Plan – Future Land Use Map 
Subject Property Area encircled in BLACK 

 

 
 

Subject Area of Future Land Use Map (Enlarged) 

FM 2305 

FM 2271 

FM 2271 

FM 2305 



 
 

 
 

      FM 2271 Corridor Plan – Zoning Map 
   Subject Property Area encircled in BLACK 

 

 
 

Subject Area of Zoning Map (Enlarged) 

FM 2305 

FM 2271 

FM 2271 

FM 2305 



Tables 
 

Permitted & Conditional Uses Table (PD-GR) 
 
 

Permitted & Conditional Use Table - General Retail (PD-GR) 

Agricultural Uses Farm, Ranch or Orchard 

Residential Uses 

Single Family Residence (Detached & Attached)                                                                
Duplex                                                                                   
Townhouse                                                                           
Industrialized Housing                                                      
Family or Group Home                                                        
Home for the Aged 

Retail & Service Uses 
Most Retail & Service Uses                                               
Alcoholic Beverage Sales, off-premise   consumption, 
package Store (CUP) 

Commercial Uses 

Plumbing Shop                                                                               
Upholstery Shop                                                                   
Kennel without Veterinary Hospital (CUP)                    *  
Indoor Flea Market 

Industrial Uses 
Temporary Asphalt & Concrete Batching Plat (CUP)                                                                                     
Laboratory, medical, dental, scientific or research                                                                      
Recycling collection location  

Recreational Uses 
Park or Playground                                                             
Beer & Wine (On Premise Consumption) < 75% 

Vehicle Service Uses 

Auto Leasing, Rental                                                           
Auto Sales - New & Used (outside Lot)                         *  
Car Wash                                                                                                                                          
Vehicle Servicing  (Minor) 

Restaurant Uses With & Without Drive-In 

Overnight Accommodations Hotel or Motel 

Transportation Uses Emergency Vehicle Service                                              
Helistop  

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

Surrounding Property Uses 
 

 Surrounding Property & Uses 

Direction FLUP Zoning Current Land Use 

Site Suburban Commercial AG Undeveloped 
North Suburban Commercial AG SF Residence on Acreage 

South Suburban Commercial  PD-GR Existing Retail & Service 
Uses 

East Suburban Commercial UE & PD-
GR 

SF Residence on Acreage & 
Existing Retail & Service 
Uses (Office Warehouse)  

West Suburban Commercial AG Undeveloped & Scattered 
SF Uses 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Comprehensive Plan Compliance 
 

Document Policy, Goal, Objective or Map Compliance? 
CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use Map YES 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  YES 

CP Goal 4.1 - Growth and development 
patterns should be consistent with 
the City’s infrastructure and public 
service capacities 

YES 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map and 
Sidewalks Ordinance 

YES 

CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 

 
 
 
 
 



Development Standards 
 

 

Current  (AG)  
Residential 

Proposed  
(PD-GR) 
Non-Res 

Minimum Lot Size 1 Acre N/A 
Minimum Lot Width 100 Feet N/A 
Minimum Lot Depth 150 Feet N/A 

Front Setback 50 Feet 15 Feet  

Side Setback 15 Feet 10 Feet 
Side Setback (corner) 15 Feet 10 Feet 

Rear Setback 10 Feet  10 Feet 
Max Building Height 3 Stories 2 Stories 

 
 
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or 

use -  UDC Section 4.4.4.F3 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to 

residential uses are found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but 
not limited to: 

* Landscaping or solid fencing from 6 to 8 feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
* Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), 

and  
* Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 

 











EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, MAY 1, 2017 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 2: Z-FY-17-27 – Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a rezoning from 
Agricultural (AG) zoning district to General Retail (GR) zoning district on 2.485 +/- acres, 
situated in the George W. Lindsey, Abstract No. 513, located at 40 Morgan's Point Road.   

Mr. Mark Baker, Senior Planner, stated this item was scheduled to go forward to City Council for first 
reading on June 1, 2017 and second reading on June 15, 2017. 

This is a rezoning request of approximately 2.4 +/- acres and the applicant is requesting a straight 
rezoning from AG to the GR zoning. 

No specific use has been identified for the rezoning request. 

A subdivision plat may be required prior to development which would go through the Development 
Review process (DRC) and may require Planning & Zoning Commission review. 

The property is within the boundaries of the FM 2271 Corridor Plan. The Corridor Plan was adopted in 
1998 (Ord. No. 98-2589) and intended as a general development guide. It is located on both sides of 
FM 2271 and bounded by Bonnie Lane to the north and Belton Dam to the south. 

The subject property encompasses approximately 438 +/- acres of land and does identify GR as the 
base-zoning to deliver retail and service uses. It also identifies a Planned Development Concept as the 
implementation mechanism. 

The FM 2271 Corridor Plan provides guidelines for: 

Use of trees and other landscaping for corridor enhancement with flexibility for existing 
material; 

Promotes residential appearance of buildings; 

Pitched roofs 

Foundation plantings 

Brick / Masonry facades 

Building / Sign height limitations 

Limits on distances between driveways 

Two maps from the FM 2271 Corridor Plan are shown: the Future Land Use and Character Map and 
Zoning Map shown. 

Planned Development per the UDC Sec. 3.4. indicates: 



A Planned Development is a flexible Overlay Zoning District designed to respond to unique 
development proposals, special design considerations and land use transitions by allowing 
evaluation of land use relationships to surrounding areas through Development / Site Plan 
approval 

Binding nature of the Approved Development /Site Plan. 

There are no restrictions on the uses allowed on the base zoning of GR. 

Zoning map shown. AG is the current zoning and primarily for areas containing rural land uses or 
undeveloped acreage or used as a holding-zone after annexation. 

Staff recommends a Planned Development with the base zoning of General Retail (PD-GR) which is 
consistent with the FM 2271 Corridor Plan as well as being consistent with surrounding zoning retail 
and service uses as opposed to the straight rezoning to GR. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate the subject property as Suburban Commercial 
which is intended for office, retail and services uses adjacent to an abutting residential neighborhoods 
and in areas where community image and aesthetic value are to be promoted such as “Gateways” or 
“Corridors.” 

Both water and sewer are available to serve the property with a three-inch waterline in FM 2271 and 
a 12-inch sewer line in FM 2305. The sewer would potentially require an extension or easement due 
to its current location. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates FM 2271 (Morgan’s Point Rd) as a minor arterial. Any needed right-
of-way would be addressed with the platting process. 

A six-foot required sidewalk would be required along FM 2271 and addressed during the platting 
process. 

Any trail development for a local connector trail will be addressed with the platting process or 
construction plans. 

On-Site photos shown. 

The preservation strip along the northern property boundary would provide assurance through the 
Planned Development process to protect the more desirable existing trees along the Morgan’s Point 
frontage. 

Surrounding properties include existing single family residence on acreage, zoned AG, to the north, 
undeveloped land, zoned AG, to the west, existing retail and service uses, zoned PD-GR, to the south, 
and existing retail and service uses, zoned PD-GR, to the east.  

Some allowed uses cited for PD-GR (not all inclusive list). No changes to base GR uses. 

Current and proposed Development Standards for existing AG and proposed GR given. 



Fifteen notices were mailed in accordance with all state and local regulations with six notices returned 
in agreement and zero notices returned in disagreement. One notice returned undelivered. 

The request for rezoning complies with the Future Land Use and Character Map, the Thoroughfare 
Plan, UDC Section 3.4.5 (PD Criteria), the FM 2271 Corridor Plan, is compatible with surrounding uses 
and zoning, and public facilities are available to serve the property. 

Staff recommends approval of the request for a rezoning from AG district to PD-GR district subject to 
the following conditions: 

1. 10-foot tree preservation buffer on the northern property line; 

2. 15-foot tree preservation buffer – excluding ingress and egress points required along FM 
2271 street frontage; 

3. Credit for existing trees and other landscape material toward overall landscape compliance 
(UDC Section 7.4.4); 

4. Building height maximum of two stories; 

5. Residential appearance to buildings; 

6. Driveway openings no closer than 150 feet apart; and 

7. Freestanding signage with maximum 30 feet height. 

Commissioner Langley asked about the preservation of the buffer on the northern boundary with the 
residence with the fence, and it they would be required to add additional buffering. Mr. Baker
 responded that the area that is protected through the 15-foot buffer was not visible in the 
photos. To clarify, the 15 feet is incorporated into the buffer so no additional buffering would be 
required.  The fence seen in the photo is not within the area. 

Chair Rhoads opened the public hearing.  

There being no speakers, the public hearing was closed. 

Commissioner Crisp made a motion to approve Item 2, Z-FY-17-27, as presented, and Commissioner 
Alaniz made a second. 

Motion passed:  (7:0) 
Commissioners Ward and Armstrong absent 

 



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4847 

(Z-FY-17-27) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING DISTRICT TO 
GENERAL RETAIL ZONING DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 2.485 ACRES, 
SITUATED IN THE GEORGE W. LINDSEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 513, 
LOCATED AT 40 MORGAN’S POINT ROAD; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 
General Retail zoning district on approximately 2.485 acres, situated in the George W. Lindsey 
Survey, Abstract No. 513, located at 40 Morgan's Point Road, as outlined in the map attached 
hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the 
same would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance 
of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 

 
Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 

accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 

June, 2017. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of June, 2017. 
 

       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

   
 
            

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 
 

06/01/17 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW: 
 
Lynn Barrett, Assistant Director of Planning 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-17-28: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to Single Family Two zoning district 
of 46.766 acres and Neighborhood Services zoning district of 3.497 acres out of 50.263 +/- acres, 
situated in the Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692 and part of that certain 157.93 acre tract, 
Bell County, Texas, located at 5900 South 31st Street. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval for a rezoning from AG to SF-2 and NS 
zoning districts due to compliance with: 

1. The Future Land Use Map’s Suburban Commercial District; 
2. Surrounding zoning and anticipated retail and service uses fronting along this section of 

31st Street;  
3. The Thoroughfare Plan; and   
4. Availability of public facilities  

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At their May 1, 2017 meeting, the 
Planning & Zoning Commission voted seven to zero for approval of the rezoning from AG to SF-2 and 
NS of the 50.263 acre property, being called Bella Terra. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Belton Engineering, on behalf of the owner Mike Emmons, WGR Development, is 
requesting rezoning the 50.263 subject property from Agricultural district to SF-2 (46.7 +/- acres) and 
NS (3.5 +/- acres) out of a larger 158 +/- acre tract along South 31st Street, south of the Bentwood 
Subdivision and north of the Georgetown RR. The property is currently undeveloped.  
 
The Bentwood Subdivision is contiguous with the subject property and is also zoned SF-2 with NS 
along 31st Street. There are a number of residential and non-residential uses that are permitted by right 
in the NS zoning district. Prohibited uses include multi-family, HUD-Code manufactured homes and 
land lease communities, most commercial uses and industrial uses. 
 
The subdivision plat for this property has been submitted and is under review by the Development 
Review Committee. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 



06/01/17 
Item #12 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Future Land Use Map (CP Map 3.1) 
The subject property is entirely within the Suburban Residential land use district. The Suburban 
Residential district is intended for residential zoning districts, of moderate density, which the requested 
SF-2 zoning encompasses and, thus, is in compliance with the Future Land Use Map. 
 
Thoroughfare Plan (CP Map 5.2) 
The subject property takes access from 31st Street along the NS portion, and as it is a major arterial, 
requires a six-foot sidewalk on both sides. A six-foot sidewalk will be required at NS development along 
the subject property’s frontage. Currently, there do not appear to be funded or scheduled TCIP 
improvement projects along this section of 31st Street. 
 
Availability of Public Facilities (CP Goal 4.1) 
Water and sewer are available to the subject property and connection details will be addressed through 
the subdivision plat process.   
 
Temple Trails Master Plan Map and Sidewalks Ordinance 
The Trails Master Plan identifies a proposed existing City-Wide spine trail along the Georgetown RR 
which borders the subject property to the south. South 31st Street is also a proposed local connector. 
(City may agree to upsize the required 6’ sidewalk.) 
 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: Residential setbacks in the Agricultural district & SF-2 and non-
residential for the NS district standards are shown below. 
   
 10’ rear setback (Non-residential use abuts a residential zoning district or use - UDC Section 

4.4.4.F3) and, 
 
General provisions for buffering and screening for non-residential uses adjacent to residential uses are 

found in UDC Section 7.7, highlighted provisions include but not limited to: 
• Landscaping or solid wall or fencing from six to eight feet in height (UDC Section 7.7.4), 
• Refuse containers located in the side or rear of the property (UDC Section 7.7.6), and  
• Screened outdoor storage (UDC Section 7.7.8.B1). 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Fifty two notices to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property were sent 
notice of  the public hearing as required by State law and City Ordinance. As of Monday May 22, 2017 
at noon, three notices had been received in disagreement and four notices in agreement (including two 
from the developer).  
 
The newspaper printed notice of the public hearing on April 20, 2017, in accordance with state law and 
local ordinance. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Maps 
Site and Surrounding Property Photos 
Returned Property Notices 
Ordinance 
  



   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conceptual Lot Layout 



Current Zoning Bella Terra Property 

 

 
 

 Single Famly-2 

 AG 

 Neighborhood Services 

 General Retail 

  

  

  

  

Legend 

 



Geo
rg

eto
wn RR

Geo
rg

eto
wn RR

BUTTERFLY DR

BRA
SAD

ALN

DEERFIELD DR

TU
R
TL

E 
C
R
EE

K
 T
R
L

BLUE MEADOW DR

FA
W
N
M

EA
DO

WS
DR

W
O
O
D
ED

 C
R
EE

K
 C
V

FOX GLEN LN

M
EA

D
O
W
 W

O
O
D
 D
R

LE
G
A
CY

O
A
KS

D
R

C
LA

YT
O
N
 C
T

WINDSONG LN

A
B
ER

D
EE

N
 C
T

H
IG
H
M
EA

D
O
W

D
R

K
IN

G
 R
A
N
C
H
 D
R

GA
GE

C
T

B
U
TT

ER
FL
Y 
C
T

EL
LI
N
G
TO

N
 C
T

MISTY MORNING LN

W
AGGO

N
ER

CT

B
A
R
R
IN

G
TO

N
 C
T

PHEASANTRUNLN

ST
EC

H
ER

 C
T

M
EA

D
O
W
 W

O
O
D
 C
T

S 
31

ST
 S
T 
(F
M
 1
74

1)

Bentwood Park

SLOUGH DR
Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-28

AG TO SF-2 and NS

Address :
5900 S 31st ST

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 4/12/2017

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

CaseArea



Geo
rg

eto
wn RR

Geo
rg

eto
wn RR

BUTTERFLY DR

BLUE MEADOW DR

BRA
SAD

A L
N

FA
W
N
M
EA

D
O
W
SD

R

DEERFIELD DR

LE
G
A
CY

O
A
KS

D
R

WINDSONG LN

FOX GLEN LN

MEADOW WOOD DR

H
IG
H
 M

EA
D
O
W
 D
R

A
B
ER

D
EE

N
 C
T

EL
LI
N
G
TO

N
 C
T

MISTY MORNING LN

TU
R
TL

E 
C
R
EE

K
 T
R
L

B
A
R
R
IN

G
TO

N
 C
T

C
LA

YT
O
N
 C
TW

A
G
G
O
N
ER

 CT

B
U
TT

ER
FL

Y
 C
T

K
IN

G
 R
A
N
CH

 D
R

PHEASANTRUNLN

M
EA

D
O
W
 W

O
O
D
 D
R

S 
31

ST
 S
T 
(F
M
 1
74

1)

Bentwood Park

SLOUGH DRÜ

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-28

AG TO SF-2 and NS

Address :
5900 S 31st Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

AERIAL MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 4/17/2017

Streets

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Railroad

Temple Municipal Boundary

Parcels

ETJ Parcels

ZONE_TO
NS

SF-2

<all other values>



GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

GF

3

8

1
2

6

4

4

3

6

6

6 46

6

3

6

3

6

6

6

8

6

6

6

38

6

4
Geo

rg
eto

wn RR

Geo
rg

eto
wn RR

BUTTERFLY DR

DEERFIELD DR

BRA
SAD

A L
N

TU
R
TL

E 
C
R
EE

K
 T
R
L

BLUE MEADOW DR

FA
W
N
M

EA
DO

WS
DR

W
O
O
D
ED

 C
R
EE

K
 C
V

TAYLORS DR

FOX GLEN LN

M
EA

D
O
W
 W

O
O
D
 D
R

LE
G
A
CY

O
A
KS

D
R

WINDSONG LN

A
B
ER

D
EE

N
 C
T

B
U
TT

ER
FL
Y 
C
T

H
IG
H
M
EA

D
O
W

D
R

TAYLORS RIDGE RD

EL
LI
N
G
TO

N
 C
T

MISTY MORNING LN

C
LA

YT
O
N
 C
T

W
AGGO

N
ER

CT

PHEASANTRUNLN

KIN
G
RAN

CH
D
R

ST
EC

H
ER

 C
T

S 
31

ST
 S
T 
(F
M
 1
74

1)

Bentwood Park

SLOUGHDR

Ü

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-28

AG TO SF-2 and NS

Address :
5900 S 31st ST

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

UTILITY MAP

 lrbarrett
Date: 4/12/2017

Manhole

Gravity Main

GF Hydrant

Main

Parcels

CaseArea



Date: 4/12/2017

Bentwood Park

W
IN

D
C
LI
FF
 D

R

SLOUGH DR
SUMMER

H
IL
L
LN

(P
RI
VA

TE
DR

)

S 
31

ST
 S
T 
(F
M
 1
74

1)

A
B
ER

D
EE

N
 C
T

EL
LI
N
G
TO

N
 C
T

TU
R
TL

E 
C
R
EE

K
 T
R
L

DEERFIELD DR

BUTTERFLY DR

MEADOW WOOD DR

W
O
O
D
ED

C
R
EE

K
C
V

LE
G
A
C
Y 
O
A
K
S 
D
R

H
IG
H

M
EA

D
O
W

D
R

TIMBERRIDGEDR

B
A
R
R
IN

G
TO

N
 C
T

BLUE MEADOW DR

TAYLORS RIDGE RD

FA
W
N
ME

AD
OW

SD
R

WINDSONG LN

MISTY MORNING LN

PHEASANTRUNLN

B
U
TT

ER
FL
Y 
C
T

BRA
SAD

A L
N

TAYLORS DR

Geo
rg

et
own

RR

Geo
rg

et
own

RR

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-28

AG TO SF-2 and NS

Address :
5900 S 31st St

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/12/2017
 lrbarrett

FUTURE LAND
USE MAP

EXPRESSWAY

MAJOR ARTERIAL

COLLECTOR

LOCAL STREET

MINOR ARTERIAL

PRIVATE

RAMP

Parcels

Future LUP

Agricultural/Rural

Auto-Urban Commercial

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Residential

Business Park

Estate Residential

Industrial

Neighborhood Conservation

Parks & Open Space

Public Institutional

Suburban Commercial

Suburban Residential

Temple Medical Education District

Urban Center

CaseArea



Date: 4/12/2017

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[
[

[

[

[

[

[

[

[

[

[

[

[

[

[

[
[

[

Bentwood Park

W
IN

D
C
LI
FF
 D

R

SLOUGH DR
SUMMER

H
IL
L
LN

(P
RI
VA

TE
DR

)

S 
31

ST
 S
T 
(F
M
 1
74

1)

A
B
ER

D
EE

N
 C
T

EL
LI
N
G
TO

N
 C
T

TU
R
TL

E 
C
R
EE

K
 T
R
L

DEERFIELD DR

BUTTERFLY DR

MEADOW WOOD DR

W
O
O
D
ED

C
R
EE

K
C
V

LE
G
A
C
Y 
O
A
K
S 
D
R

H
IG
H

M
EA

D
O
W

D
R

TIMBERRIDGEDR

B
A
R
R
IN

G
TO

N
 C
T

BLUE MEADOW DR

TAYLORS RIDGE RD

FA
W
N
ME

AD
OW

SD
R

WINDSONG LN

MISTY MORNING LN

PHEASANTRUNLN

B
U
TT

ER
FL
Y 
C
T

BRA
SAD

A L
N

TAYLORS DR

Geo
rg

eto
wn R

R

Geo
rg

eto
wn R

R

Ü
Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-28

AG TO SF-2 and NS

Address :
5900 S 31st St

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

Date: 4/12/2017
 lrbarrett

Parcels

Thoroughfare Plan

Expressway

Major Arterial

Proposed Major
Arterial

Minor Arterial

Proposed Minor
Arterial

Collector

Proposed
Collector

Trails Master Plan

[ EXISTING, CITY
WIDE SPINE

! EXISTING,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

EXISTING,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

[ PROPOSED,
CITY WIDE
SPINE

! PROPOSED,
COMMUNITY
WIDE
CONNECTOR

PROPOSED,
LOCAL
CONNECTOR

CaseArea

THOROUGHFARE
AND TRAILS MAP



4107
PropID:
96777

5701
PropID:
13598

3300
PropID:
466490

5716
PropID:
371298
5718

PropID:
371299

5812
PropID:
371302

5813
PropID:
371303

5809
PropID:
371304

5805
PropID:
371305

5715
PropID:
371306

5608
PropID:
317514
5612

PropID:
317515

5604
PropID:
317516

2603
PropID:
317521

2607
PropID:
317522

2611
PropID:
317523

2615
PropID:
317524

2623
PropID:
317526

2624
PropID:
317530 2612

PropID:
317533

2604
PropID:
317535

2603
PropID:
317536

2611
PropID:
317538

2623
PropID:
3175412628

PropID:
317545

2616
PropID:
317548

2608
PropID:
317550

2604
PropID:
317551

5604
PropID:
332589

2807
PropID:
332603

2803
PropID:
332604

2808
PropID:
332606

2816
PropID:
332608

2711
PropID:
3326112720

PropID:
332613

2712
PropID:
332615

2711
PropID:
332618

2719
PropID:
332620

2720
PropID:
332621

2712
PropID:
332623

5704
PropID:
332634

5607
PropID:
332635

5703
PropID:
332636 5708

PropID:
3326375711

PropID:
332640 5716

PropID:
332641

5716
PropID:
348919

5804
PropID:
348921

5812
PropID:
348923

5809
PropID:
348924

5719
PropID:
348926

5715
PropID:
348927

2923
PropID:
348941

5785
PropID:
403015

2317
PropID:
196443

2313
PropID:
196444

2309
PropID:
196445

2304
PropID:
196453

2308
PropID:
196454

2316
PropID:
196456

2316
PropID:
196463

2317
PropID:
196464

2319
PropID:
196429 2303

PropID:
196433

2215
PropID:
196434

6340
PropID:
447139

2311
PropID:
196431

5619
PropID:
19641

5707
PropID:
103932

5703
PropID:
55111

2514
PropID:
18485

2714
PropID:
128679

2604
PropID:
131569

2706
PropID:
57007

5520
PropID:
74804

2803
PropID:
107954

5621
PropID:
47392

5811
PropID:
371290

5803
PropID:
371292

5717
PropID:
371293

5711
PropID:
371295

5710
PropID:
371296

5712
PropID:
371297

5707
PropID:
371308

5712
PropID:
371312

5716
PropID:
371313

5808
PropID:
371315

5812
PropID:
3713165816

PropID:
371317

3115
PropID:
371318

3111
PropID:
371319

3107
PropID:
371320

3103
PropID:
371321

3011
PropID:
371322

3015
PropID:
371323 5732

PropID:
332658

2584
PropID:
332651

2566
PropID:
332653

2526
PropID:
332655

2552
PropID:
332656

2582
PropID:
332657

5513
PropID:
317505 5507

PropID:
317507

5503
PropID:
317508

5508
PropID:
317510

5512
PropID:
317511

5514
PropID:
317512

5604
PropID:
317513

5608
PropID:
317517

5610
PropID:
3175185607

PropID:
317519
5603

PropID:
317520

2704
PropID:
317544

2603
PropID:
317552

2607
PropID:
317553

2615
PropID:
317555

2619
PropID:
317556

2703
PropID:
317559

5603
PropID:
332585

5607
PropID:
332586

5610
PropID:
332587

5608
PropID:
332588

2720
PropID:
3325912808

PropID:
332593

2816
PropID:
3325945604

PropID:
332595

5704
PropID:
332597
5708

PropID:
332598

5712
PropID:
332599

5720
PropID:
332601

2820
PropID:
332609

2719
PropID:
332628

2803
PropID:
3326292807

PropID:
332630

2811
PropID:
332631

2819
PropID:
332633

5811
PropID:
348903

5807
PropID:
348904

5803
PropID:
348905

5719
PropID:
348906

5707
PropID:
348909

5607
PropID:
348911

5604
PropID:
348914

5608
PropID:
3489155711

PropID:
348928

5710
PropID:
348929

5712
PropID:
348930
5716

PropID:
348931

5720
PropID:
348932
5806

PropID:
348933
5810

PropID:
348934

2903
PropID:
348936

2907
PropID:
348937

2911
PropID:
348938

2915
PropID:
348939

3007
PropID:
348943

6110
PropID:
196423

6116
PropID:
196424
6204

PropID:
196425

6210
PropID:
196426

6216
PropID:
196427

2304
PropID:
196460

2308
PropID:
196461

2312
PropID:
196462

2313
PropID:
196465

2316
PropID:
196467

2400
PropID:
207821

6016
PropID:
207012

6104
PropID:
207013

2313
PropID:
239883

6012
PropID:
239885

6004
PropID:
239887

2312
PropID:
239896

5928
PropID:
350630

3003
PropID:
332712

3105
PropID:
333234

3015
PropID:
333235 2509

PropID:
134416

2521
PropID:
134418

2609
PropID:
134420

6220
PropID:
196428

6365
PropID:
447136

5900
PropID:
96776

2534
PropID:
332654

5720
PropID:
318048

2704
PropID:
317528

2703
PropID:
317543

2707
PropID:
332617

5504
PropID:
317509

2616
PropID:
125456

6400
PropID:
453460

3320
PropID:
441210

2610
PropID:
26401

6502
PropID:
26401

6502
PropID:
26401

6426
PropID:
26401

6414
PropID:
26401

6514
PropID:
26401

6417
PropID:
26401

6510
PropID:
26401

6411
PropID:
26401

2716
PropID:
26401

6422
PropID:
26401

6410
PropID:
26401

6506
PropID:
26401

2720
PropID:
26401

6452
PropID:
26401

6502
PropID:
26401

6413
PropID:
26401

6418
PropID:
264016414

PropID:
26401

6411
PropID:
26401

6406
PropID:
26401

6410
PropID:
26401

6315
PropID:
26401

6406
PropID:
26401

6414
PropID:
26401

6409
PropID:
26401

6407
PropID:
26401

6402
PropID:
26401

6402
PropID:
26401

6410
PropID:
264016314

PropID:
26401

6213
PropID:
26401

6310
PropID:
26401

6403
PropID:
26401

6205
PropID:
26401

6306
PropID:
26401

6302
PropID:
26401

6402
PropID:
26401

6218
PropID:
26401

6406
PropID:
26401

6214
PropID:
26401

6210
PropID:
26401

6206
PropID:
26401

6202
PropID:
26401

6203
PropID:
26401

6320
PropID:
26401

6415
PropID:
26401

6419
PropID:
26401

5082-A

5091-A

5080-A

6011-D

5084-A

5088-A

5086-A

5083-A

5096-A

5091B-A

5091D-ABentwood Park

SLOUGH DR

S 
31

ST
 S
T 
(F
M
 1
74

1)

FOX GLEN LN

A
B
ER

D
EE

N
 C
T

EL
LI
N
G
TO

N
 C
T

BUTTERFLY DR

MEADOW

WOODDR

FA
W
N
 M

EA
D
O
W
S 
D
R

LE
G
A
C
Y
O
A
KS

DR

H
IG
H
 M

EA
D
O
W
 D

R

B
A
R
R
IN

G
TO

N
 C
T

DEERFIELD DR

B
U
TT

ER
FL
Y 
C
T

BRA
SAD

A L
N

W
A
G
G
O
N
ER

C
T

C
LA

YT
O
N
 C
T

K
IN

G
R
A
N
CH

D
R

Geo
rg

eto
wn R

R

Geo
rg

eto
wn R

R

SF-1

SF-1

NS

SF-3

SF-1

NS

SF-2

SF-1

SF-1

SF-1

NS
UE

SF-1

GR

GR

AG

Ü

Date: 4/12/2017
 lrbarrett

Zoning Case :
Z-FY-17-28

AG TO SF-2 , NS

Address :
5900 S 31st Street

GIS products are for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represent only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries and other features.

200'
NOTIFICATION MAP

CurrentZoning

HI - CUP

UE

UE - PD

SF-1

SF-1 - CUP

SF-1 - PD

SF-2

SF-2 - PD

SF-3

SF-3 - PD

SF-3 - CUP, PD

SFA

SFA-2

SFA-2 - PD

SFA-3

SFA-3 - PD

2F

2F - CUP

2F - PD

MF-1

MF-1 - CUP

MF-1 - PD

MF-2

MF-2 - CUP

MF-2 - PD

MF-3 - PD

O-1

O-1 - CUP

O-1 - PD

O-2

O-2 - CUP

O-2 - PD

NS

NS - CUP

NS - PD

GR

GR - CUP

GR - PD

GR - CUP, PD

CA

CA - CUP

CA - PD

C

C - CUP

C - PD

C - CUP, PD

LI

LI - CUP

LI - PD

LI - CUP, PD

HI

HI - PD

AG

AG - CUP

MH

MH - CUP

MH - PD

MU

MU - CUP

SD-C

SD-C - CUP

SD-H

SD-H - CUP

SD-T

SD-V

T4

T4 - PD

T4 - CUP

T5-C

T5-C - CUP

T5-C - PD

T5-E

T5-E - CUP

T5-E - PD

NO BASE

CUP

PD

Buffer

CaseArea



Site and Area Photos 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

View to West from S 31st St 

Property to North 



 

 

S 31st St 

View to North East 

S 31st St 

View to South 



 

 

S 31st St 

View to East 

















1 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2017-4848 

(Z-FY-17-28) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL ZONING 
DISTRICT TO SINGLE FAMILY TWO ZONING DISTRICT ON 
APPROXIMATELY 46.766 ACRES, AND NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES 
ZONING DISTRICT ON APPROXIMATELY 3.497 ACRES OUT OF 
APPROXIMATELY 50.263 ACRES, SITUATED IN THE REDDING ROBERTS 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 692, AND PART OF THAT CERTAIN 
APPROXIMATELY 157.93 ACRE TRACT, BELL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
LOCATED AT 5900 SOUTH 31ST STREET; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 

 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district to 

Single Family Two zoning district on approximately 46.766 acres and Neighborhood Services 
zoning district on approximately 3.497 acres out of approximately 50.263 acres, situated in the 
Redding Roberts Survey, Abstract No. 692 and part of that certain approximately 157.93 acre 
tract, Bell County, Texas, located at 5900 South 31st Street., as outlined in the map attached 
hereto as Exhibit ‘A,’ and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2:  Staff recommends approval of a rezoning from Agricultural zoning district 

to Single Family Two zoning district and Neighborhood Services zoning District. 
 

Part 3: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 
changes to the City Zoning Map. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 1st day of 
June, 2017. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 15th day of June, 2017. 

 
 

       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

____________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                 
Lacy Borgeson      Kayla Landeros 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

  
06/01/17 
Item #13 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 
 

 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution appointing one councilmember to the Hill Country 
Transit District Board. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Councilmember Judy Morales has served on this board since October 2015.  Her 
council term has expired, and therefore the City needs to appointment a new member.  At this time it 
is requested that another elected official be appointed to fill the position.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution  
 

  



 

 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
06/01/17 
Item #14 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 

 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution appointing one alternate member to the Bell 
County Public Health District Board of Directors. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Dr. Ray Ashcraft was appointed to the Bell County Public Health District Board of 
Directors in June 2009; and does not wish to be reappointed at this time. The Health District has now 
requested the City appoint a regular member and an alternate member to serve. The appointment of 
an alternate is provided for in the Cooperative Agreement with the Health District. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   N/A 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Resolution 
  


	10. 2017-4846: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING. Consider adopting an ordinance amending  Chapter 39 of the Code of Ordinances, “Wreckers.”
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of an easement necessary for the construction of the Charter Oak Water Line and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase, in an estimated amount of $5,500.
	Staff is now seeking authorization to purchase one easement needed for the construction of the Charter Oak Water Line and authorizing closing costs associated with the purchase, in an estimated amount of $5,500.
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of an easement necessary for the construction of the Bird Creek Interceptor project and authorizing closing costs and temporary fencing costs associated with the purchase, in ...
	Executive Session – Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code § 551.072 – Real Property – The City Council may enter into executive session to discuss the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property relating to City projects, the public discuss...
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of one property necessary for the expansion of Old Howard Road and Moores Mill Road and authorizing closing costs and relocation benefits associated with the purchase in an es...
	UDEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW
	Kevin Beavers, CPRP, Parks and Recreation Director
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a services agreement with International Security Agency of McAllen through September 30, 2018, in the estimated annual amount of $33,600 for the provision of security guard services at the...
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider adopting a resolution ratifying a Retail Sales Interlocal Agreement with Texas General Land Office for the purchase of electricity at $0.03410 per kWh for a five year term commencing for meter reads after April 30, 2019.
	UITEM DESCRIPTION:U Consider a resolution authorizing entering into to an Interlocal Agreement with the Belton Independent School District to provide school locations for after school latchkey programming.
	06/01/17
	Item #4(R)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	UDEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Mark Baker, Senior Planner
	06/01/17
	Item #4(R)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	06/01/17
	Item #4(R)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE:U Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive Plan Compliance table but further described below:
	06/01/17
	Item #4(R)
	Consent Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	UDEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Lynn Barrett, Assistant Director of Planning
	UCOMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:U The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan:
	UFISCAL IMPACT:U  Not Applicable
	ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing continued utilization of the JP Morgan Chase Bank N.A. commercial card program through August 31, 2019, as procured by the City of Fort Worth.
	06/01/17
	Consent Agenda
	Page 1 of 1
	ATTACHMENTS:
	ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053 finding that one property situated in the Vincent Barrow Survey, Abstract No. 64, and one property in the J.B. Daniel Survey, Abstract No. 259 and H....
	ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution pursuant to Chapter 2206, Government Code § 2206.053 finding that 0.517 acre in fee simple and 0.494-acre and 0.938-acre permanent easements situated in the Stephen Frazier Survey, Abstract No. 311, Bel...
	06/01/17
	Item #7
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING. Consider adopting an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 37, “Traffic,” to include a general update of the Chapter and changes to the two-hour parking regulations.
	ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING. Consider adopting an ordinance amending Chapter 39 of the Code of Ordinances, “Wreckers.”
	The City has a need for reliable and efficient wrecker services to assist with clearing traffic accidents and removing disabled vehicles. The contracted company is required to provide non-consent tows and towing of disabled vehicles within the City li...
	06/01/17
	Item #11
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	06/01/17
	Item #11
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 4
	06/01/17
	Item #11
	Regular Agenda
	Page 3 of 4
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive Plan Compliance table but further described below:
	06/01/17
	Item #11
	Regular Agenda
	Page 4 of 4
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	06/01/17
	Item #12
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 2
	DEPT. / DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:
	Lynn Barrett, Assistant Director of Planning
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan:
	06/01/17
	Item #12
	Regular Agenda
	Page 2 of 2
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	Randall Reed - Bid A Tab - One (1) Three Quarter Ton Light Duty Extended Cab Pickup Bed Delete with Utility Body.pdf
	Sheet1

	Randall Reed - Bid B Tab - One (1) 1-Ton Crew Cab and Chassis, Dual Rear Wheels with Utility Body.pdf
	Sheet1

	Environmental Programs Suite Remodel.pdf
	Sheet2

	Knob Creek - Budget Adjustment - Reallocate Funding - 101629 Knob Creek.pdf
	Budget Adjustment Form

	Security Guard Services for the Temple Public Library.pdf
	Sheet1

	Sound point - Staff Report Attachments.pdf
	PD Criteria and Compliance Summary (Exhibit) 01032017.pdf
	Sheet1

	Item #2 South Pointe (PZ) Staff Report (04172017).pdf
	04/17/17
	Item #2
	Regular Agenda
	Page 1 of 4
	APPLICANT / DEVELOPMENT:  Turley Associates (On behalf of Kiella Development)
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN (CP) COMPLIANCE: Compliance to goals, objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan are summarized by the attached Comprehensive Plan Compliance table but further described below:
	PROPOSED CITY COUNCIL MEETING SCHEDULE: This rezoning is scheduled for 1st Reading on May 18, 2017 and 2nd Reading on June 1, 2017.
	FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable
	Staff Report Attachments.pdf
	PD Criteria and Compliance Summary (Exhibit) 01032017.pdf
	Sheet1




	Z-FY-17-26 CC ATTACHMENT final smaller.pdf
	1 Zoning and Location Map
	2 SITE PHOTOS
	3 NORTH GATE MASTER PRELIMINARY EXHIBIT
	4 Future Land Use Map
	5 Tfare and Trails Map edited
	6 UtilityMap
	7 Notification Map
	8 CC Northgate Master Development Exception Matrix 4-10-17
	9 Returned Letters CC

	Z-FY-17-27 AG to GR - Staff Report Attachments.pdf
	Sheet1
	PD Criteria and Compliance Summary (Exhibit) 05012017.pdf
	Sheet1

	PD Criteria and Compliance Summary (Exhibit) 05012017.pdf
	Sheet1

	Exhibit A.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Exhibit A.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Exhibit A.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Exhibit A (PowerPoint Page).pdf
	Slide Number 1


	Z-FY-17-28 COUNCIL Attachments.pdf
	Attachments
	1 Attachment
	2 AerialMap
	3 OverallZoningMap
	5 UtilityMap
	6 Future Land Use Map
	7 Thoroughfare and Trails Map
	8 Notification Map
	9 Site and Area Photos
	10 Responses
	disagree from Hutchison
	Agree from Farmers Mutual Prot Assn
	three agreement notices


	Two later letters




